WIND AND TOPOGRAPHIC EFFECTS ON THE LABRADOR CURRENT AT CARSON CANYON



ERIC DOUGLAS KINSELLA







WIND AND TOPOGRAPHIC EFFECTS ON THE

LABRADOR CURRENT AT CARSON CANYON

Eric Douglas Kinsella, B. Sc.

(c)

A Thesis submitted in partial fulfillment

Master of Science

Department of Physics

Memorial University of Newfoundland

June 1984

Newfoundland

St. John's

ABSTRACT

Carson Canvon is located on the eastern slope of the Grand Bank and is about 70 km wide, 80 km long, and 700 m deep where it intersects the shelf break (110 m). Data from June of 1980 and 1981 are interpreted in terms of steady and time-dependent (wind-driven), interactions of the Labrador Current with the canyon. The mean velocity field is estimated from direct measurements and the dynamic topography relative to 200 dbar. Up and downstream of the canyon, the flow was predominantly along-isobath with speeds of O (20 cm s) near the shelf break 10 m above bottom, and 48 cm s⁻¹ at the velocity axis over the 500 m isobath. A 20 m thick cold core of 5 -1 °C water upstreams of the canvon separated into inner and outer cold cores over the canvon axis. and coalesced to reform a single core downstream. The degree to which the canyon perturbed the mean flow changed with position both along and perpendicular to the canyon axis with along-isobath flow near the shelf break: cross-isobath flow on the upstream side and cross-canvon flow in the center: further off-shelf, the flow remained undisturbed by the canyon. Divergence of the mean flow in the vicinity of a secondary head on the upstream side is indicated by the measurements, implying steady upwelling: This is supported by a 0.9 cm s⁻¹ residual, near-bottom flow toward the secondary head. A single upwelling event lasting 5 d was observed following 18 - 23 m s⁻¹ southwesterly winds of about 0.5 d duration. Current reversal at the shelf break occurred soon after the high speed winds ceased, followed by abrupt temperature (2.8 °C) and salinity (1.2 ppt) increases up to 1 d later. At 167 m depth in the central canyon region. isohalines rose at rates of 0.2 - 0.5 cm s⁻¹. The reversal was baroclinic: the Labrador Current continued to flow southwestward.

but with reduced speeds, and the reversal itself was confined to a layer centered at about 130 m depth. The reversal and decreased upper-layer speeds probably arise from the parotropic response to a wind-induced, decrease in see, surface alope: the upwelling, represents the slower barcolinic response. Steady upwelling in the presence of a shelf-break jet in the upper layer is modeled using a two-layer system and a vartical wall at the "shelf break. The model results differ from the usual (no jet) case: upwelling is suppressed by 26% at the cost, but extends to greater distancies offshore.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank Dr. Alex Hay for suggesting this research topic, and for his guidance, patience and support during the analysis. Dr. Warren Denner is thanked for initiating the experimental program. The efforts of these people and Adrian Waish and Brad DeYoung in making the field The crews of the programs a technical success are much appreciated. GADUS ATLANTICA and PANDORA II' are acknowledged for their help in the collection of data. Charile Fitzpatrick (Northwest Atlantic Fisheries Centre), Jeff Dodge, Dave Dawe and Jack Foley helped with the CTDanalysis. Dr., lan Webster made many important comments. I would also like to thank the staff of the Physics Department, and in particular: Mrs. Jo Barron (administrative details); Roger Guest (drafting), Bob Bradley (photography) and Marilyn Murray (typing references and some tables) for their help. Mobil Oll of Canada Ltd. is acknowledged for supplying meteorological and tidal data. Duncan Finlayson helped to interpret surface pressure charts. Personal financial support was provided in part by a Memorial University Fellowship. The field program was financed by the Newfoundland Institute for Cold Ocean Science (NICOS) and Fisheries and Oceans, Subvention #FMS 5427-1 to Dr. Denner and Dr James Helbig. NSERC operating grant A8446 to Dr. Hay financed the data analysis and provided the personal support that allowed me the freedom/to write this thesis. Finally, I would like to thank my wife Audrey, whose help enabled me to finish this work.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

12

13

13

15

16

18

19

20

122

23

24

26

30

35

37

43

45

10

51

67 71

75

81

81

ABSTRACT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF FIGURES

LIST .OF TABLES

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 Physical description of the the study area
- 1.2 Historical review
- 1.2.1 Labrador Current studies
- 1.2.2 Canyon studies
- 1.3 Organization of the thesis

CHAPTER 2 DATA SOURCES AND METHODS 3

- 2.1 Field programs
- 2.2 Processing of current meter records
- 2.2.1 Despiking
- 2.2.2 Filtering
- 2.2.3 Kinetic energy spectra
- 2.3. Processing meteorological and tidal data
- 2.4 Processing of CTD data
- 2.5 Dynamic height calculations:
- 2.6 Navigation

CHAPTER 3 1980 DATA

- 3.1. 1980 Current meter records
- S.2 1980 Kinetic energy spectra
- 3.3 .Meteorological and tidal data
- 3.4 1980 CTD data
- 8.4.1 Temperature and salihity sections
- 3.4.2 23-Hour time-series
- 3.5. Dynamic topography

CHAPTER 4 1981 DATA"

- 4.1. 1981 Current meter records
- 4:1.1 Vector plots
- 4.2 Meteorological and tidal data
- 4.3 Comparison of the 1980 and 1981 current meter data
- 4.4 1981 Kinetic energy spectra
- 4.5 1981 CTD data
- 4.5.1 Temperature. salinity and o, sections
- 4.5.2 Dynamic heights and geostrophic velocity profiles

CHAPTER	5. THE	MEAN	FLOW
---------	--------	------	------

5.1 The coordinate system: comparison of
5.2 Bottom friction
5.8 The velocity field upstream of Garson Canvon
5.4 Disturbances of the mean flow by the canyon 104
5.5" The momentum balance in the central canyon region 108
5.6 The splitting of the cold core
and possible steady upwelling
5.7 Comparison with other canvons
CHAPTER 6 WIND-DRIVEN UPWELLING
6.1 The translent upwelling response to a wind-impulse
6.2. Steady upwelling with a shelf break let
6.3 Discussion 13
6.4 Localized wind-driven upwelling at Carson Canyon? 13
the second state of the se
CHAPTER 7 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS
7.1 Summary 13
7.2 Conclusions 14
$\{X_{i}, \dots, X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \setminus \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \setminus \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \setminus \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \setminus \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \setminus \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{i}\} \setminus \{X_{i}\} \in \{X_{$
REFERENCES 14
APPENDIX A

APPENDIX C

LIST OF FIGURES

- 1.1 Location map showing NewYoundland, the Grand Banks and Carson Canyon (depth in meters)
- 1.2 Detailed bathymetry of Carson Canyon (depth in meters).
- 3.1 Current meter mooring (open circles) and CTD station (solid circles) locations for 1980 at Carson Canyon (depth in meters).
- 3.2 FLP, time-series of the I and J components of velocity for the \$4980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-1) - (top) and the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2) - (bottom)

27

28

29

32

36

39

- 3.3 SLP time-series of the I and J components of velocity for the 1980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-1) - (top) and the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2) - (bottom)
- 3.4 FLP (bottom). SLP (middle) and BP (top) time-series of temperature for the 1980 southwestern meter
- 3.5¹ FLP PVD's for the 1980 northeastern (top) and southwestern (bottom) current meters
- 3.6 Mean (SLP) velocity vectors for 1980 at Carson Canyon (depth in meters).
- 3.7 Kinetic energy spectra from the 1980: a) southwestern, and b) northeastern current meter, despiked data (90% confidence intervals).
- a) Northwesterly (C = 315 °T) and
 b) northeasterly (A = 45 °T) winds, and
 c) tidal heights for June. 1980 at Hibernia
- 3.9 Top, Northeastern (NE), and bottom, Central Axis (CA) temperature sections for 1980
- 3.10 Top. Southwestern (SW), and bottom. Far Southwestern (FS) temperature sections for 1980
- 3.11 Top. Northeastern (NE), and bottom, Central Axis (CA) salinity sections for 1980
- 3. 12 Top Southwestern (SW), and bottom, Far Southwestern (FS) salinity sections for 1980
- 3.13 Time-series of temperature (top) and salinity (bottom) at the 1980 CTD station 11

- 3.14 Dynamic topography (heavy lines) of the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar (expressed in dyn cm.= (dynamic height - 199 x 100) superimposed on the bathymetry (light lines with depth in meters). The solid crices indicate 1990 CD statton positions.
- 3.15 Time-series of dynamic abeights (in dyn.cm) of the 5 dbar surface, relative to 200 dbar at the 1980 CTD station 11 with the date in June along the horizontal axis.
- 4.1 Current meter mooring (open circles) and CTD station (solid circles) locations for 1981 (depth in meters)
- 4.2 FLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the 1981 southwestern meter (mooring 81-1)
- 4.3 FLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the central axis upper meter (mooring 81-2)
- 4.4 FLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the 1 and J components of velocity for the central axis lower meter (mooring 81-2). The temperature scale differs from Floures 4.2, 4.3 and 4.5 6
- 4.5(FLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the 1981 northeastern meter (mooring 83-3)
- 4.8 SLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the i and J components of velocity for the 1981 southwestern meter (mooring 81-1)
- 4.7 SLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the central axis upper meter (mooring 81-2)
 - 8 SLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the central axis lower meter (mooring 81-2). The temperature scale differs from Figures 4.6, 4.7 and 4.9

58

59

9 SLP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the 1981 northeastern meter (mooring, 81-3)

4.10 SLP PVD: 1981 southwestern meter, mooring (81-1)

- 4.41 SLP PVD: 1981 central axis upper meter. mooring (81-2)
- 4, 12 SLP PVD: 1981 central axis lower meter. mooring (81-2). Note the change in scale from Figures 4, 10, 4, 11 and 4, 13

4.13 SLP PVD: 1981 northeastern meter, mooring (81-3)

- 4. 14 24-hour segment-averaged vector plots for the 1981 shallow current meters. The 180 m isobath and the date in June are shown. The midpoint of each interval is 0530-GMT (2).
- 4.15 a) Overlay of the SLP: southwestern (triangle). northeastern (line), and central axis upper (star) current meter temperature records.
 - b) Northwesterly (C = 315 °T) and
 - c) northeasterly (A = 45 °T) winds
 - d) Tidal heights at Hibernia.
- 4. 18 8-Hourly surface pressure charts from 1200 GMT (Z) 7 June to 0600 GMT 8 June, 1981, at Carson Canyon (open circle) and Hibernia (closed officie to the north),
- 4.17 6-Hourly surface pressure charts from 1200 GMT (2) .8 June to 0600 GMT 9 June, 1981, at Carson Canyon (open circle) and Hibernia (closed circle to the north)

77

78

79

83

- 4.18 Overlay of 2.5 d of the FLP-filtered temperature time-series' from the 1980 southwestern (star). agd 1981 northeastern (line) current meter records.
- 4. 19 Kinetic energy spectra from the 1981; a) central axis lower, and b) central axis upper current meter. despiked time-series (with 90% confidence intervals).
- 4.20 Kinetic energy spectra from the 1981: a) northeastern, and b) southwestern current meter, despiked time-series (with 90% confidence intervals)
- 4:21 Central Axis temperature section for 11 June, 1981
- 4.22 Central Axis salinity (top) and or (bottom) sections for 11 June, 1981
- 4.23 Vertical profile of temperature (T) and salinity (S) at station 81-2 from the CTD cast of 6 June, 1981
- 4. 24 Vertical profiles of temperature (T) and salinity (S) from CTD casts on 10 June, 1981 at a) station 2A and b) station 1A.
- 4.25 Vertical profiles of geostrophic velocity between CTD stations: a) 28 and 3 (of 1981, solid line) and 235 and 4 (of 1980, dashed line). and b) 3 and 4 (of 1981, solid line) and 24 and 26 (of 1980, dashed line).

5.1 Vector plots of the mean, steady state currents at the 1980 and 1981 mookings, and coordinate system for the mean flow analysis

- x -

105

118

128

130

134

149. 4

.150

152

15

- 5.2 Two-layer representation of the Labrador Current at Carson Canyon.
- 6. 1. Schematic and coordinate system for the upwelling analysis
- 6.2 Comparison of the exponential (line, see equation 6.31) and the parabolic (star, see equation 6.33) forms of the interface (normalized as $\eta'_0 / \hat{\eta}'_0$).

6.3. Top., normalized upper-layer velocities (++ norm .ls_on=shell). Bottom, normalized lower-layer velocities (++' norm is off-shell). Line = "no jet", star ≠/nterior. and triangle = otterior, solution in the presence of a jet.

6.4 Normalizad η'. Positive η norm refers to upward deflections. Line = "no jet", star = interior, and triangle = exterior solution in the presence of a jet.

Al. Despiked time-series of direction, rate and the U and V components of velocity for the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2)

A2 Despiked I and J velocity components for the 1980 northeastern (mooring 80-2), top, and southwestern meter (mooring 80-1), bottom.

. Despiked time-series of the tand J components of velocity for the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80–2) – (top), and the 1980 southwestern meter (mooring 80–1) ⊂(bottom)

- A4. BP time-series of the I and J components of velocity for the 1980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-1) -(top) ; and the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2) -(bottom)
- A5. FLP time-series of the (L (+ eastward), and V (+ northward) components of velocity, for the J980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-1) - (top) and the 1980 northeestern meter (mooring 80-2) - (boitom)

SLP time-series of the U (+ eastward) and V (+ northward) components of velocity for the 1980 southwestern, meter (mooring 80-1) - (top) and the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2) - (bottom). BP time-series of the U (+ eastward) and V (+ northward) components of velocity for the 1980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-1) -(top) and the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2) -(toptom)

155

156

158

159

163

164

165

166

168

SLP PVD's for the 1980 northeastern (top) and-southwestern (bottom) current meters

Slick plots from the FLP. 1990 northeastern. (top and thrid from the top figures) and southwestern (second from the top, and bottom figures) meters sampled every 90 min. The upper two figures use the J (downstream toward the top of the page) and the I (upslope joward the right hand side of the page) velocity components.

A10 Direction, rate, V (+ northerly) and U (+ easterly) components of the wind data from Hibrenia for 1980

All Tidal heights from Hibernia for June, 1980

B) Despiked time-series of salinity, temperature, direction, rate and the U (+ eastward) and V (+ northward) components of velocity for the 1981 southwestern current meter

Despiked time-series of salinity, temperature, direction, rate and the U/(+ eastward) and V (+ northward) components of velocity for the 1981 central axis upper current meter

Despiked time-series of salinity, temperature, direction, rate and the U (+ eastward) and V (+ northward) components of velocity for the 1981 central axis lower current meter

Despiked time-series of salinity, temperature, direction, rate and the U.(+ eastward) and V (+ northward) components of velocity for the 1981 northeastern current meter

B5 Despiked time-series of the I (cross-isobath) component of velocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper; and central axis lower meters

Despiked time-series of the J (along-isobath) component of velocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper, and central axis lower meters

87 8P time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the 1981 southwestern meter (mooring 81-1)

B8 BP time-series of temperature satinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the 1981 central axis upper meter (mooring 81-2)

170

171

174

175

176

178

179

180

181

- BP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the 1981 central axis lower meter (mooring 81-2)
- B10 BP time-series of temperature, salinity, and the I and J components of velocity for the 1981 northeastern meter (mooring 83-3).
- B11 FLP time-series of the U (+ eastward) component of velocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom); northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper, and central axis lower meters
- B12. FLP time-series of the V (+ northward) component of velocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper, and central axis lower meters
- B13 SLP time-series of the U (+ eastward) component of velocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper, and central axis lower meters
- B14 SLP time-series of the V (+ northward) component of velocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, center axis upper, and central axis/lower meters
- B15 BP time-series of the U (+ eastward) component of velocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper, and central axis lower meters
- B16 BP time-series of the V (+ northward) component.of Belocity for the 1981 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper, and central axis lower meters.
- 817. FLP Progresive Vector Diagram (PVD) for the 1981 southwestern meter, mooring (81-1)
- B18 FLP PVD for the 1981 central axis upper meter.
- B19 FLP PVD for the 1981 central axis lower meter. mooring (81-2)
- B20 FLP PVD for the 1981 northeastern meter. mooring (81-3)

Slick plots from the FLP data of the 1980 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southvestern, central exis upper, and central axis lower meters asampled every 180 min and aligned with the local downstream direction (see Table 4.1) oriented lowerd the top of the page

xili -

183

184

185

186

187

322 Stick plots from the FLP data of the 1980 (from top to bottom): northeastern, southwestern, central axis upper, and central axis lower meters aampled every 180 min and aligned with north as pointing toward the top of the page

B23 12-hour segment-averaged yector plots for 1981

B24 Direction, rate, V (+ northerly) and U (+ easterly) components of the wind data from Hibrenia for 1981

B25 Tidal heights from Hibernia for 1981

LIST OF TABLES

- M., M., M.	
2.1	Aanderaa RCM4 current meter specifications 14
2.2	Gains of the filters used in this thesis
2.3	Nell Brown MK IIIB (1981), (N.B.), and Guildline 8707, MW V (1980), (GUILD), CTD specifications 21
3.1	1980 Mooring Information . 24
,4.1	1981 Mooring Information 49
4.2	Mean values of despiked current meter data from 1980 and 1981 76
4.3	Comparison of temperature and salinity measurements by the CTD and the central axis upper meter ("CAU") at mooring 81-2. 86
4.4	Dynamic heights for June, 1981
5.1	Geostrophic velocities (U_{n}) , Ekman layer depths (δ_{n}) and deflection angles (posilive is to the left and down-slope) for the 1980 pertheaters motor size a 10 m
é a	P optimated from OTD data by souther 5 10
	n, estimated from CID. data by equation 3.13
5.3	(diong-slope) and v (cross-slope) components of velocity* for 7 June, 1981 108
A.1	Statistics for the 1980 current meters 147
A. 2	CTD Cast information for June, 1980 148
B. 1a	Statistics for the 1981 southwestern meter 160
B. 16	Statistics for the 1981 central axis upper meter 160
B. 1c	Statistics for the 1981 central axis lower meter
B. 1c	Statistics for the 1981 northeastern meter
B.2	CTD Cast Information for June. 1981
C. 1	Parameters determining a, 190
.C. 2a	The coefficients A_{1} : the sum of terms and the sum of the first derivative terms for equation C. 18b at $y = 0$ ($\xi = \{0, 9\}$) 193
C. 2b	The the sum of the second derivative terms for equation C, 185 at $y = 0$ ($\xi = \{0, 9\}$) 193

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

This thesis constitutes the first description and analysis of physical oceanographic data from any of the submarine canyons that indent the southeastern edge of the Grand Bank of Newfoundland.

An outstanding feature of the dynamics is the presence of the Labrador Current: a strong, shelf-edge jet which flows with shallow water to its right and which is also a western boundary current. This thesis addresses two important aspects of canyon dynamics in the eastern Grand Bank region: the effect of abrupt topography on the mean flow of the Labrador Current, and the effects of impulsive wind forcing on the local circulation and cross-slope material fluxes. These processes are expected to be important to problems related to biological production and environmental problems related to the oil industry.

1.1 Physical description of the study area

The Grand Banks of Newfoundiand (Figure 1.1) extend southeastward more than 445 km from the latand of Newfoundiand. The Grand Bank covers an area of about $25 \times 10^5 \text{ km}^2$, is on average only 60 m deep, and is the largest bank in the world. The Flemish Cap liee to the east of the Grand Bank and is separated from it, by the Flemish Pass. Carson Canyon is **The** northerromopt of the canyons at the southeastern edge of the Grand, Bank.

The bathymetry in the vicinity of Carson Canyon is shown in Figure 1.2. Carson Canyon is U-shaped upslope of the 732 m isobath when viewed in vertical cross-section, and is approximately 10 km wide...



FIGURE 1.1: Location map showing Newfoundland the Grand Banks and Carson Canyon (depth in meters).



FIGURE 1.2: Detailed bathymetry of Carson Canyon (depth in meters).



The shelf break in the vicinity of Carson Canyon is identifiable, as the 110 m isobath. The canyon head intrudes 20⁵ km into the shelf. A distinctive feature is the presence of a "secondary head" on the northeast side of Carson Canyon.

1.2 Historical review

The eastern edge of the Grand Bank has been systematically surveyed. by the U.S. Coast Guard since the sinking of the Titanic in 1912 as part of the international ice Patrol (IIP) e.g. Scoble, 1975). With few exceptions since 1913, stations have been occupied binually by the IIP during April and May along transects across the eastern margin of the Grand Bank.

In recognition of the significance of physical oceanographic processes to the fisheries on the Grand Bank. the Canadian government has supplemented the JIP transects since 1951 (in the months of June and July) as part of its contribuilion to ICNAF (Internetional Commission for the Northwest Attantic Fisheries). Russlan fisheries oceanographers have also published reports on the data they have collected in the the Grand Bank area. The reader is réferred to ICNAF Special Publication No. 10 (1975). Kudio and Boystov (1978), and Kudio, Burmakin and Sterkhov' (1979) for summaries of the fisheries-related studies.

If the preeminence of the flahing industry could be said to be eclipsed in local current affeirs. It would be due to the discovery of massive oil and natural gas reserves in the Hibernia flaid on the east side of the Bank (Figure 1, 1). Hibernia is located on the shelf approximately 85 km due north of Carson Canyon. Existing physical oceanographic data for the react number been found indequate to permit assessment of safety and environmental factors. Data collected by the petroleum industry as part of their exploratory drilling: operations are beginning to 'contribute to our understanding of the physical oceanography of this area as 'they begome available in the public domain (e.g. Petrie, 1982; Petrie and Anderson, 1983).

1.2.1 Labrador Current studies

In this section, previous studies of the Labrador Current are reviewed with respect to the characteristics of the might flow and its variability, with particular reference to possible wind-induced effects.

3 With regard. Is the mean flow, a ploneering study by Smith. Soule and Mosby (1997) established that the Labrador Current originates at the conthern extremity of the Labrador shelf and is characterized by low temperatures (< 2 °C) and low selinities (< 34.3 ppt). An orithere branch passes over Carson Canyon as it flows southgards along the eastern margh of the Grand Bank, an inshore branch runs along the Newfoundland coast (Figure 1.1). From this point on, the term "Labrador Current will refer only to the offshore branch runes stated.

The speed of the Labrador Current at the southeastern edge of the Grand Bank based on geostrophic calculations has been estimated to be about 30 cm s⁻¹ (e.g. Hill, Jones, Ramster and Folkard, 1973). Hill et al. (1973) allo report that the high speed core (> 20 cm s⁻¹) is about 30 km Wide. In a recent summary of Grand Banks physical oceanography. Petrie and Anderson (1983) ¹give 4.1 x 10⁶ m³ s⁻¹ as the mean geostrophic transport of the offahore branch and a mean speed range of 20 to 60 m s⁻¹ relative to 1000 dbar. A trend towards increased apeeds during late spring and early summar has been observed by direct current.

measurements (Hayes, 1984; Mountain, 1980), in apparent contradiction of observations of a decrease in the geostrophic mass transport over the same season (Hayes, 1984).

A current meter study was undertaken by Robe (1975), to test the validity of the 1000 m depth of zero motion assumption (used by the IIP since its inception) to compute gestrophic velocities. Two moorings, each with a single current meter 40 m above bottom, were deployed close to the 1000 m isobath: the first in April - May on the mid-eastern slope of the Grand Bank, and the second in May - June to the southeast. The, flows at both meters are reported to be strongly rectified in the along-slope direction and an ~ 5 cm s⁻¹ southwestward residual, drift was observed in both Chales, it was concluded that the geostrophic values underestimate the speed by 10-30%.

Mountain (1980) presents results from a single mooring deployed in April-June. 190 km southwest of Carson canyon on the southeastern slope at a depth of 490 m, with current meters at 110 m and 380 m. Mean speads of 46 cm s⁻¹, and 18 cm s⁻¹ were reported for the upper and lower current meters respectively. The direction was toward the south, and there was a marked rectification of currents parallel to the isobeths intensitying with depth. Hill et al. (1973) discuss results from three current meters at unspecified depths on a single mooring in the Flemish Pass positioned on the west side of the velocity core of the Labrador Current in April. The current meter mooring was near the shelf break (bottom depth =130 m) and a residual/couthwestward (along-slope) flow of 18 cm s⁻¹ was measured by all three current meters.

Several studies have discussed the variability of the Labrador Current. Hill et al. (1973) report a "sudden" reversal to a northeastward, 6 cm s⁻¹ drift which persisted to the end of the current meter record. a 5 day period. It was suggested that the observed flow reversal was likely due to an easiward shift in the position of the Labrador Current velocity core. The reversal occurred 4 days after a period of gale-force southeasterty whichs:

Both wind stress and actual displacement of the position of the verbcity core have also been proposed as being responsible for certain variations in the Labrador Current by Seaconsult (1978). A mooring positioned in the northern end of Flemish Pass at about 1000 m depth for 3 months. starting in mid-April, was recovered and then immediately redeployed for another 3 months at the southern end, also at about 1000 m depth. Based on current meter data collected from the four meters on the southern mooring (at depths of 168, 481, 781 and 961 m). It was suggested that meandering of the Labrador Current velocity core caused variations in the records, including variations that would otherwise appear to be a spring/summer seasonal change in the properties, of the current. The records from the three current meters on the northern mooring. (at depths of 467, 767, and 927 m) indicated reversed northeastward flow during the first 4 - 5 d segment of the data, followed by persistent southward flow. The northeastward flow was related to a series of low pressure storms centered to the northwest that caused strong (e.g. 18 m s⁻¹) alongshelf, southwesterly winds. Hayes (1984) combined geostrophic velocities derived from CTD (conductivity-temperature-depth profiler) data with the same current meter records. The region of reversed flow was shown to lie between two southward flowing branches of a "bifurcated" Labrador current.

Hayes (1984) also suggested that baroclinically unstable waves cause

the > 2.5 d period. pesk energy signals in the current mater spectra. The coherency between the velocity field and the wind stress calculated from the Fleet Numerical Oceanographic Central. Monterey Galifornia 12hourly analysis with field was examined. The only significant coherency was that between the norm-south wind stress and the north-south velocity components in the pring for the current mater at 500 m for the 8 - 25 d band. The coherently peaked for a 15 d period and zero phase shift. The presence of significant energy at the interfield period suggested the possibility of some mechanism for impulse storm forcing. * (Harpes 1984. 9.9)

Mountain (1999) touind that a low-frequency signal of 10 to 18 d period in the along-slope component at both 110 and 380 m was coherent with the along shell wind stress (derived from 12-hourly wind values supplied by the U.S. Navy Fleet Numerical Weather Central). Medium energies for the along-slope velocity and wind stress, records were reported to le in the 10-18 d band. The along-shelf, low frequency response of the instrument at 110 m lagged the wind stress by exproximately one day and the lag was about two days for the current meter at 380 m. A 2-4 d periodicity was reported for the cross-stream component of velocity at both meters with the strongest signal at the upper meter. No current reversals were indicated by either meter, but near zero, valcolities were recorded by the lower meter on two separate occosions in April. Furtiliarmore, the onset of reduced velocities often appeared to occur at, or subsequent to, times of maximum upstream wind stress.

Robe (1975) observed that the residual flow reversed direction towards the northeast with a speed of 1 cm $s^{-1/2}$ for a period of 1 d at the northeastern mooring and with a speed of 2 cm s^{-1} for a 5 d period at

Ø

the southern mooning. It was reported that "no clear relationship" estated between the low frequency lluctualions and the stratace wind field at either location.

Wind-driven currents on the Grand Bank may be substantial. Perfect (1980) discusses data from moochage situated on the shelf at the Hilbernia site (Figure 1.1). Annual mean currents at Hilbernia were estimated to be negligible. Current drapcillons are evently distributed around the entire compass. On the other hand, maximum realdual currents in 1980, which were low-pass. Titlering' to remove slighels of periods < 1.8 d, reach 70° cm s⁻¹ at mid-depths and 30 cm s⁻¹ one-tail mean off boltom, and were found to be correlated with the geostrophic wind. The interaction of strong wind-induced shelt currents with the Labisdor Current, as opposed to the direct effects of wind on the Current itself, may be Important, but has yet to be modified.

1.2.2 Canyon studies

A particularly informative review of the recent literature on canyondynamics is given by Huthinance (1981), see also inman. Nordstrom and Flick (1976). Typically, one can expect to find significant up- and down-canyon motion, which is often perpendicular to the shelf black, even when the mean flow is along the shelf. Research into the circulation of shelfves indented by canyons consistentify indicates that canyons provide proferminal and localized sources of intermediate specth water for the inner shelf. This upweiling can occur as a result of the effects of panyon topography on the mean birculation, or on wind or long period wate induced motion. Freeland and Denman (1982) have shown that steedy, topographically controlled upwelling at Spur Canyon off Vancouver leland is driven by en along-canyon pressure gradient associated with the geostrophic (low above the canyon. Mayer, Han and Hansen (1982) have determined that the pressure gradient due to the sear surface slope driving the geostrophic (low above the Hudson Shelf Valley is balanced by the pressure gradient assoclated with the density field at a level surface slope driving the geostrophic flow above the hudson Shelf Valley is balanced by the pressure gradient assoclated with the density field at a level surface and a horizont. Below the horizon, the density valision results in a file pressure gradient which drives an along-axis, up-valley field. Cannon (1972) reports the same phenomenon occurs within the Juan de Fuce Canyon off Vancouver, leland, Seeward flow at the surface drives stuarine-like, shelfward currents in the submarine canyons of the Eurasian Basin according to Coachinan and Barnet (1982).

Wang (1980) discusses a theoretical model for iscalized upwelling () caused by the scalaring of large scale continental shelf weres by a canyon in the near-shore region.

Amplified, wind-induced upwelling, was observed by Shaffer (1978) near a nerrow. D(10 km) wide caryon of northwest Africa. Results from that any will be commented upon in further detail witen an upwelling model on the Carson Caryon srea is presented. Cannon (1972) suggests that strong, along-slope wind stresses cause slong-side currents below the main thermocilize in the Juan de Fuce Caryon. Mayer et gl. (1982) have synthesized results by Haush (1980) and others to show how a windinduced reversal (to s' nogliseat-werd (Josh of the mean current at the function short fullow is modilized by incition so that up-valley flow devices parallel to the valley dis. Considering with this result. Mayer. Molfoid and Learns (1981) found signe of localized upwelling in the Hutson Sheft Valley is ley due to the occurrence of Hurricane Belle: currents within the canyon were shoreward and parallel to the valley axis. Localized upwelling on the equatorward side of a mesoscale canyon was found in a two-layer numerical model by Pettley and O'Brien (1976). ' These authors report that the model results, are consistent with observations taken off the Oregon coast and that upwelling over the canyon persisted for at least 2.5 d after the upwelling-favorable wind stress stopped. An analytic solution was found by Killworth (1978) for the problem of the influence of stratification, and gradual along-shore variations of a vertical coastline over a flat bottom, on Impulsive wind-forced upwelling. It was speculated that a fully threedimensional upwelling/downwelling regime would leave residual upwelling on the equatorward, side of a canyon. The effects due to the continental slope were not determined, and Killworth suggests that the solution to the upweiling problem for small cross-canvon scales (typically = 10 km. which, by Figure 1.2, is about the same as that of Carson Canyon) is probably intractable analytically.

- 11,-

Studies of Internal wave dynamics in Hudson Canyon by Gordon. (1982), and by Hotchkiss and Wunsch (1982), and in a non-rotating experimental setup by Baines (1983) have shown that canyons trap internal gravity waves. Internal waves may have amplitudes several times those existing nearby but outside the canyon. The opposite may hold for barcolinic inertial oscillations. Mayer et al. (1991), while describing the presence of large' amplitude inertial. barcelinic signals generated during the passage of Hurricane Belle in current meter records from the New England shelf, observed that, except near the surface, there was, a negligible inertial signal registered by current meters at the same deptifies within the Hudson Shelf Valley.

1.3 Organization of the thesis

The theats is organized into 7 chapters. This introduction forms the line chapter. Chapter 2 is a summary of the data sources and data processing methodology. The 1990 and 1981 data are presented in Chapters 3 and 4 respectively. The 1800 and 1981 data are presented in Chapters and 4 respectively. The 1800 and 1981 data are presented in Chapters and 4 respectively. The 1800 and 1981 data are presented in Chapters and a summary and the conclusions of the steady state dynamics at Carson Canyon. Wind-induced upwelling in the presence of the laterally-sheared Labrador Currgen is discussed in Chapter 6. The seventh chapter gives a summary and the conclusions of the thesis.

CHAPTER 2 DATA SOURCES AND METHODS

2.1 Field programs

Two research cruises to Carson Canyon were undertaken, one in June 1960 on GADUS ATLANTICA and a second in June 1981 on PANDORA II. Each cruise involved CTD surveys and deployment and recovery of moored current meters.

Time-series of temperature, salinity, current direction and speed, and. In certain cases, pressure, were obtained from the current meters. The CTD casts provided vertical profiles of temperature and salinity to a maximum depth of 500 m. Salinity for both the CTD's and the current meters was calculated by the formula given by Bennett (1976). Meteorological data and tool height constituents were available, from the drilling rigs at Hibernia (Figure 1.1). Surface pressure charts were used to analyze a storm which occurred over the Grand Bank in June of 1981. All of the software for, current meter and CTD data analysis was developed as part of this thesis.

2.2 Processing of current meter records

Only Aanderaa RCMs current meters were used in the field programs. Table 2.7. gives the manufacturer's specifications for these instruments.

Translation of the Aanderaa binary encoded current meter tapes onto 9 track magnetic tape in physical units was performed at the Bedford Institute of Oceanography (BIO). A first edit of the data was made at the time of translation at BIO. / Standard deviations were calculated for the firection. rate, temporature and satinfur records. BIO defined "bad" records as those which were excessive in standard deviation: such records were "flagged" with a specific code. Flagged data were replaced by values which were calculated by averaging the two nearest neighbors.

SENSOR .	RANGE	ACCURACY	RESOLUTION	UNITS
Speed t	2.5 to 250	2% or 1	Threshold 2.0	cm s ⁻¹
Temp	-2.46 to 21.48	0.1	0.01	*C ·
Cond	0 to 77	0.2	0.07	k0 '' 'cm
Dir	1-360	5 to 7.5	0.35	degrees
Pres	0-650	6.5	0.65	dbar

After receipt of the data from BIO, magnetic deviation was added to the values of direction. The correction was +24.333 *T for the 1980 data and +23.5 *T for the 1981 data. The magnetic variation at Carson Canyon was derived by linear Interpolation of isogonic lines from the Magnetic Variation Chart for the North Allantic and Annual Pates of Change (British Navy) for epoch 1980.0.

In deriving velocity components from the current data, two coordinatesystems were used. One system used only in figures of Appendic as A and B, was aligned in terms of "U" and "V" components with U positive vastward and V positive northward. The second was formed by alignment with the bathymeiry specific to each mooring location: the "J" component is positive pointing downstream along the location and the "I" component is then always positive in the local upstoce direction.

- 14 -

2.2.1 Despiking ·

Editing of the current meter data was performed in 5 steps:

- "Differenced" time-series were created by subtracting a point from the next point in the sequence.
- (2) Questionable values of the differenced series were identified as being among the 10% of the points with the highest standard deviations. As a further check, the programs used to perform this technique also rated the questionable values in terms of the sign of the value with respect to neighboring points. The extremum whose sign is opposite to that of both its neighbors is probably an isolated pole and is tentatively classified as 'bad'. The remainder are considered 'suspect' to varying, degrees.
 - All questionable values were marked on prihiouts which listed all the records for each instrument. An attempt then was made to identify visually any patterns in the occurrence of questionable points. This identification was performed for patterns within a given time-series and for patterns among other time-series for each of the instruments. In several instances, an instrument would have a grouping of bad points for more than one parameter within the space of a few cycles. In these cases, many of the less suspect points were found to be present nearby as well. Such groupings were considered to be real, possibly the result of internal survey activity.

Scatter plots of temperature & salinity, U. & V and I & J component pairs also were employed to identify suspect values. Correlation between the points deemed to be bad or suspect using both methods was excellent. (5)

A visual inspection of the graph of each time-series was made. Bed points, it was perceived, consistently appeared as isolated appear. Finally, bad values were replaced by the average of the two colosest coints.

In total, less than 0.5% of all the data recorded for any instrument were replaced.

2.2.2 Fittering

Low-pass filtering was applied to the temperature, salinity, U. V. and J components of the despiked current meter records using movingaverage filters (Godin 1972, pp. 60-69) The first filter type employed on the despiked current meter data is called here the "first low-pass" (FLP) filter. A single filter is applied as three successive moving averages;" in blocks of 6, 6 and 7 data points for the 1981 FLP filter and of 15, 15 and 17- points for the 1980 FLP filter. Different filters are required because of the change in the sample interval from 2 minutes in 1980 to 5 minutes in 1981. These FLP filters are symbolized (Godin 1972, p. 62) as AsAsA, and AsA15A17 for the 1981 and 1980 cases respectively. Low-pass filtering reduces the variance of the time-series, and reduces the contribution by short period fluctuations to zero as long as the short period fluctuations sum to sero over the block of data being averaged. This demonstrates one reason why special care was taken to despike the data during editing Decause individual spikes bias the mean value of the slowly varying (i.e. loy-passed) signal. The filter A,A,A,+1 corresponds to a gain function (Godin 1972, p. 62);

 $\frac{1}{n^2(n+1)} \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\sin^2(n\pi\sigma\Delta t)\sin((n+1)\pi\sigma\Delta t)}{\sin^3(\pi\sigma\Delta t)} \end{bmatrix}$

multiplied into the spectrum of the record, where of is the frequency and Δf is the sample period. The spectrum is reduced to zero for periods less than the "cut-off" period ($\alpha \Delta f$) determined by the operator, with the smallest Jubscript, n. The period corresponding to the cut-off period for the FLP filters of 1990 (2 minute sample period) and 1991 (5 minute sample period) is then 30 minutes. Because the gain function is not parfectly sharp, there exists an "effective cut-off" period where the spectrum is reduced to < 1% of its initial Value. The gains of the FLP operators ($A_0^A A_0^A$ for 1981 and $A_{10}A_{10}A_{10}A_{10}$ for 1960) are both 0.7% at the same discutive cut-off period of 38 minutes. The FLP filter eliminates high frequency "noise" that may arise from internal waves.

A second low-passed (SLP) series was created by decimaling the FLP series to a heir hour sample period (by taking every 6th point in the smoothed records of 1981 and every 15th point for 1980) and then applying the $A_2A_2A_{25}$ set of moving averages. The cut-off period (=244 d_1) is 12 hours. The effective dut-off period for the SLP filter with a Itali-hour sampling rate is 14.3 hours at which point the spectrum is reduced to 0.5% of its original value. Therefore the SLP filter elimingtes the semidurant tide.

A "band-passed" (BP) series was created by subtracting the SLP series from the FLP series. The low and high effective out-off periods" then are respectively the same as the FLP (38 minutes) and SLP (14.3 hours) effective out-off periods. Of course the FLP series first must be decimated to a half hour sample period and points removed from the beginning and end of the remainder so that the set of smoothed series are properly aligned before the BP series can be computed.

These low-pass filters are non-ideal in that significant attenuation

- 17 -

_cocurs at periods greater than the cut-off period. (see for example Waiters and Heston (1982) for a comparison of the moving average with various other filters). Note that the -3 dB points (gain = 0.5) occurs at 7.00 x 10^{-1} and 3.01 x 10^{-2} cph for the FLP and SLP filter respectively. Table 2.2. presents a list of the gain functions at selected frequencies.

10.1	TABLE 2.2 Gains of the filters used in this thesis				
LABEL	FREQUENCY (cph)	A ₆ 2A ₇	A ² 15 ^A 17	A24A25	
M2	8.05 x 10 ⁻²	0.991	0.991	7.84 x 10 ⁻⁶	
Inertial	5.98 × 10 ⁻²	0.995	0.995	3.72 × 10 ⁻²	
o ₁	3.87 × 10 ⁻²	0.998	0.998	3.05 x 10 ⁻¹	
2 Day	2.08 × 10 ⁻²	0.999	0.999	7. 23 x 10 ⁻¹	

2.2.3 Kinetic energy spectra

The despiked, unfiltered I and J component series were used to obtain the spectra. Kinetic energy (KE) spectra were formed by adding the spectral densities computed from the two components. Prior to computing the spectra, each set of I and J component time-series were truncated at 4098 points. After removing the average from each time-series, those with less than 4096 points were paided with zeros evenly to the beginning and end until each series was 4098 points long. The maximum proportion of zeros added was 134%. Then the Hanhing window (Kanasewich, 1975) was applied to taper the endpoints and reduce alde-

- 18
band leakage. Spectra were calculated via the fast Fourier transform using the program "SPECTRA" from the "Statistical Analysis System" (SAS) library. The spectral densities were corrected by dividing by a factor of 0.75 which is the ratio of the variance of the original data to that of the windowed data as given. by

 $\lim_{\tau \to \infty} \frac{2}{\tau} \int_{0}^{\tau} \frac{1}{\left[\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2}\cos\frac{\pi t}{\tau}\right]^{2}}{dt} = 2 \times \frac{3}{8} = 0.75.$

where τ is the period of the time-series (the factor of two in front of the integral arises because of the symmetry of the window). The corrected spectral densities of the I and J components for each instrument were then added together to form a KE spectrum.

2.3 Processing meteorological and tidal data

Wind and tidal data for 1980 and 1981 were obtained from drilling rigs stationed at Hibernia. Tidal height projections for Hibernia were performed at BIO.

The wind data were decomposed into northeastery and southeastery components aligned with the upstream shelf break orientalion (4577). The positive A (along-slope) component is the component of the wind which blows from the 45*7 direction (northeasterly). The /positive C (northwesterly) component is aligned 90* to the left of A.

Wind speed and direction records were edited by visual inspection of the data plots. Large, isolated spikes invariably were traced to obvious encoding errors. The anemometer used to obtain the 1980 records was 80 m above sea level. In: 1981 the anemometer was positioned 76 m above sea level. Gill (1982, p. 29) supplies an example of wind speed variation with height which shows a decrease in the speed at 80 m to that at the sea surface by a factor of 1.9. However, other factors, especially the stability of the air, are important in estimating wind speed and direction at the sea surface. Lacking a suitable technique for the calculation of the wind atreas at Carson Canyon, a qualitative analysis of the geostrophic wind was performed on eight surface pressure charts (included in this thesis) from the Atmospheric Environment Service for June, 1981. These charts were also compared with surface pressure charts for the same period supplied by Nordo Lid. of St. John's, Newtoundiand.

2.4 Processing of CTD data

Table 2.3 gives the manufacturers' specifications for the CTO's used in The surveys of Carson Canyon. The 1980 CTD data were obtained using a Guildline Model 8707 Mk IV CTD. (see Table 2.3). Data were stored on cassettes and processed with a Hewlett-Packard 9825A Calculator. Salinity and density were computed using the Bennett (1976) formula. Bottle and thermometer data for salinity and temperature cellbration checks were not available. Editing of the data was not feasible given the limitations-thipsoed by the computer storage and hardware configurations.

Table 2.3 gives specifications for the Neil Brown Instruments Systems Mark IIIB CTD employed for the 1981 survey. Deroing (1983) discusses the calibration data for this CTD for the same period. Maximum calibration errors are reported for salinity and temperature, which are respectively: 0.0011 ppl. 0.008 °C for the fmean errors, and 0.012 ppl. 0.023 °C for the standard deviations. (Parity because no significant samsor drift was discovered during a factory calibration in 1982, the large values for the standard deviations are thought to be due to the calibration

20

technique, and not instrument error.) During a first pass through the data, a computer analysis package written in BASIC for the MINC 11/03 computer system sutomatically deleted all records that had a temperature < -2.0 °C or possessed pressure values lower than the preceding ones during the downcast. In this way the worst digitization errors and untrustworthy values (brimarily caused by the research ship's roll) were immediately removed. The data were plotted (as temperature, salinity and density profiles) and spike's identified visually. Records considered bad were removed via screen editing of the data listings. This latter process was performed iteratively until the data were considered form data listings and contoured by hand. Temperature and salinity profiles were plotted by the MINC computer.

TABLE	2.3: Nell MK	Brown MK IIIB IV (1980), (0	(1981), (N. UILD), CTD (B.), and Guildlin specifications	ne 8707.
INSTR	SENSOR	RANGE	ACCURACY	RESOLUTION	UNITS
N. B.	Pres	0-1600	0.8	0.024	dbar [†]
N. B.	Temp	'-32 to 32	0.005	0.0005	•C
N. B.	Cond	1 to 65	0.005	0.001	kn-1 cm-1
GUILD	Pres	0-500	0.5	0.16	4 dbar [†]
GUILD	Temp	-2 to 30	0.005	0.0005	•c
GUILD	Sal	0.1 to 40	0:005	0.001	- ppt

Salinity is the conductivity fatio expressed in Equivalent Salinity – Accuracy specified includes linearity, resolution, repeatability and calibration uncertainty relative to standard seawater.

1 dbar = 10 kPa.

2.5 Dynamic height calculations

 σ_{t} (sigma-D values were used to calculate the dynamic topography of the 5 dbar surface with respect to 200 dbar. Using σ_{t} values here is considered to be acceptable since the effect of pressure on density in calculating the dynamic height incurs a relative error of only about 0.35 in the upper 200 meters (based on CTD data from Carson Canyon) using standard tables from Knauss. 1978). It was necessary to compute the dynamic topography of the 5 dbar surface because CTD data were not recorded shallower than 5 m at some stations.

The level of no motion is assumed to be 200 m. This level was chosen for three reasons. One is for purposes of comparison with the results obtained by others in this area (e.g. Forrester and Benolt 1981, and Kudio et al. 1979). Secondly, current meters used to study the Labrador Current substantiate the observation from IIP geostrophic calculations that the baroclinic, high speed velocity core of the Labrador Current is restricted to the top 200 m of the water column (Seaconsult, 1978). As well, 'Haves (1984) states that the Labrador Current velocity core (< 200 m depth) is "decoupled" from barotropic currents below because of incoherency between spectra computed from current meter time-series. Lastly. If a level of no motion had been chosen much deeper than 200 m. then more extensive extrapolation of the dynamic topography into shallower regions would have been necessary. Estimates for casts shallower than 200 m were made using the method of Reid and Mantyla (1976). Dynamic height was calculated to the maximum depth available and then added to the result extrapolated at the same depth from the two nearest in line and downslope neighbors. Some bias in the dynamic topography over

1

depths leffs than 200 m may exist because of uncertainties due to the application of the extrapolation technique. Another possible source of blas in the determination of dynamic topography which may be significant is that of possibility error.

23

2.6 Navigation

They accuracy of the dual-channel SATNAV system used for navigation on GADUS ATLANTICA in 1980 is discussed by Stansell (1978). An estimate for the accumulated error expected under normal circumstances for navigation by SATNAV on the Grand Bank is about 1-2 km. The cruise log for 1980 occasionally included addenda of changes in the ship's location during, or just following, a satellite update. A change in recorded position of 1.5 km was indicated in one case. Navigation in 1981 on PANDORA II was performed with Loran C. Decca and acoustic soundings of the bottom topography. Positions obtained in 1981 may be nearly as accurate as those of 1980 simply because. In 1981, much effort was taken to align the ship with the distinctive bathymetry of Carson Canyon. Nevertheless, positioning error due to navigation by bathymetry is difficult to evaluate, but clearly depends critically on the accuracy of the original The spacing of measurements on the hydrographic bathymetric survey. survey chart is =2 km, which suggests possible errors of the order of 1 km. It is interesting to note in this respect that Shaffer (1976) reports an accuracy of ± 500 m off northwest Africa using only a bathymetric chart concurrently with acoustic soundings and the ship's speed and heading.

CHAPTER 3 1960 DATA

Current meter mooring and CTD positions for the 1980 cruise to Carson Canyon are shown in Figure 3.1. The moorings were located to the southwest (80-1) and northwest (80-2) of the canyon. The mooring, information is listed in Table 3.1. Plots of those data which are glecussed in the text are presented within this engineer: additional plots which are not discussed in detail may be toud of hopendix A.

TABLE 3, 1: 1980 Mooring Information

date they share and	1. Sec. 18.	C. Care Contraction
Mooring	80-1	80-2
Instrument	southwestern	northeastern
Instrument depth	120. m	164 m
Bottom depth	128 m	174 m
N. Latitude	45° 23, 1'	45**30.5*
W. Longitude	48• 46.6'	48• 38, 1'
Deployed (GMT/date)	1430/1 June	2134/1 June
ecovered (GMT/date)	1818/6 June	1046/8 June
Sampling Interval	2 min	2 min***
Orientation *	190 •T	225 •T
Comment	no salinity	no temperature
	at di ki	and no salinity

The orientation is the angle of the sobath at a given mooring in the downstream (b component of velocity) direction.





3.1 1980 Current meter records

Grephs of the FLP (first low-passed) and SLP (second low-passed) time-series of the I (cross-isobath) and J (along-isobath) components of velocity for the 1980 current meter data are given in Figures 3.2 and 3.3. Comparison of the two figures shows that the major source of variance is the semi-diurnal tide. This is also seen to be the case in the FLP and BP (band-passed) filtered jamperature data from the southwestern current major plotted in Figure 3.4 (the temperature sensor on the northeastern mater failed shortly after deployment). A 3 - 4 d period variation is also visually identifiable in the SLP series for the d component of-both instruments. No current reversals are observed in the records for the alongsteric contents.

Petrie (1982) compared the veriability of the current regime on and off the shelf, by considering the ratio of the mean to the standard deviation of measured speeds filtered to remove the diurnal and semi-diurnal tide. Using Hibernia data. Petrie obtained ratios of 0.08 for meters at less than 100 m. and 0.33 for instruments between 100 and 200 m. Comparing these to the ratio of 4.7 as reported by Mountain (1980) for a current meter at 110 m depth. Petrie (1982) (and later. Petrie and Anderson, 1989) concluded that the mean flow dominates the dynamics on the sestern slope of the Grand Bank, but that the dynamics on the Bank are dominated by fluctuations, which probably are meteorologically forced. According to Jumpance (1981, p.202), this result for the shelf regime is generally trub for wide shelves at distances. To the first helf break. Al Carson Canyon the SLP statistics in Table A1 of Appendix A yield ratios of 3.99 for the northegatern meter (mooring 90-2) and 3.88 for the southwestern meter (mooring 90-1). These values indicate that at the



FIGURE 3.2: FLP time-series of the I and J components of velocity for the 1980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-1) -(top) and the 1880 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2) -(bottom)



FIGURE 3.3: SLP time-series of the I and J components of velocity for 's the 1980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-2) - (top) and the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2) - (bottom)

•



FIGURE 3.4: FLP (bottom), SLP (middle) and BP (top) time-series of temperature for the 1980 southwestern meter

- 29 -

time of these measurements, the mean flow of the Labrador Current should dominate the dynamics at the shelf break near Carson Canyon.

FLP filtered progressive vector diagrams (PVD's) for both 1980 current meters are presented in Figure 3.5. A semi-diurnal tide superposed on a predominant mean flow is evident in these plots. The means of the residual (SLP filtered) velocities at each of the two current meter moorings. are presented in Figure- 3.6. Although the residual flow is predominantly along-isobath, it is seen that there exists a significant up-slope component of velocity at both sites. Estimates for the magnitude of the deflection are similar: 13.0° for the northeastern meter and 14.0° for the southwestern meter. From Figure 3.6, it can be seen that If the mooring positions are translated by distances <2 km in each case, then it to possible to infer along-isobath flow at both locations. The 2 km spacing between the sounding lines from which the bathymetric map was drawn introduces uncertainty in the direction of the isobaths at kilometer scales, which together with possible current meter compass errors (Keenan, 1979 and 1981) and navigational uncertainties, suggest that the mean flow could in fact be in the direction of the isobaths. Nevertheless, the fact that upslope residuals were observed at both locations indicates that the effect may be real.

3.2 1980 Kinetic energy spectra

This section may be omitted at a first reading, since the results of the spectral analysis are not essential to further discussion, but are included for completeness.

- 30 -





FIGURE 3.6: Mean (SLP) velocity vectors for 1980 at Carson Canyon (depth in meters).

Plots of kinetic energy spectra are presented in Figure 3.7. The strongest peak in both spectra may be seen at the M. (semi-diurnal) tidal/ frequency (8.05 x 10⁻² coh). The energy spectral density at the semidiurnal frequency for the southwestern meter at mooring 80-1 is 89 x 10³ cm² s⁻² cph⁻¹, and it is 66 x 10³ cm² s⁻² cph⁻¹ for the northeastern meter at mooring 80-2. In the spectra for the southwestern meter (Figure 3.7a), there is a subsidiary, but statistically nonsignificant peak (90% confidence) corresponding to a frequency of 5.58 x 10⁻² cph, which is close to the local inertial. frequency (5.96 x 10-2 cph). The energy spectral density at the O, (diurnal) tidal frequency (3.87 x 10⁻² cph), corresponds to a minimum in the spectrum of the southwestern meter. The second highest peaks visible in the spectrate are for the frequencies lower than 1.35-x 10-2 cph in both cases. Unlike the situation described for the southwestern meter, there exists a distinct minimum in the spectrum (Figure 3.7b) of the northeastern meter at the inertial frequency. Also different is the existence of a broad peak in the spectrum of the northeastern meter in the frequency range of 3.50 x 10⁻² and 4.23 x 10⁻² cph which encompasses the frequency of the O, tidal constituent.

Mountain (1980) discusses the spectra obtained from the slong- and cross-slope velocity records. (April-June) from current meters at 110 and 380, m (480 m bottom depth) in the high speed core of the Labrador Current to the southwest at Carson Canyon? Strong spectral peeks (or the semi-djurnal algnal in all the velocity component records are reported, as are small, statistically non-significant peaks (at the 95% confidence level) for the inertial and diurnal frequencies. Seeconsult (1978) reports a englicible tide lagnal and a strong inertial signal (as doss Hayes, 1984).



for the summertime records of a current meter at 168 m depth (= 800 m above bottom) In the Labrador Current at Flemish Pass. The absence of strong tidal signals is probably related to the greater water depth at the mooring in Flemish Pass. The Seeconsult (1978) report specifies that the group currents observed at the inertial frequency consist of bursts of internal wave activity. According to Rôbe (1975), the M_2 lide was the only periodic component that could be identified in the May-June velocity records from a current meter which was situated 40 m above bottom. 31.5 km upstream of Carson Canyon where the bottom depth is 981 m.

95

3.3 Meteorological and tidal data

Wind velocities (Figures 3.8a and b), obtained at Hibernia in 1980 are resolved along the direction of the continental slope immediately upstream of Carson Canyon in the meteorological senset positive A (45 77) gives the northeasterly (along-slope) wind component and positive C (315 77) gives the northeasterly (aross-stope) component. It is evident from Figure 3.8a and 3.8b that no-major storm activity took place during the research cruise. Note that the recorded wind speeds did not exceed 16 m s⁻¹, and, that there are no obvious wind-related effects in the current meter records.

The tidal height at Hibernia for the mooring period in June of 1980 is given in Figure 3.8c.. The tide at Carson Canyon is estimated to lag Hibernia by about 10 minutes (as estimated from a co-tidal chart for the M_o tides in the Atlantic, Neumann and Pierson 1986, p. 320).

2





3.4 1980 CTD - data

Sixty-four CTD casts, the locations of which are shown in Figure 3.1. were made in the Carson Canyon area. The time, position, and depth of each cast are listed in Table A2 of Appendix A. A 23-hour time-series of houry CTD casts was conducted at station 11 at the center of the canyon.

3.4.1 Temperature and salinity sections

The vertical cross-sections of temperature laken from CTD transecteare presented in Figure 3.3 and 3.10. These figures represent transects acrost the slope to the northeast (NE) of Carson Canyon, along the central axis (CA), along the southwest (SE) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Corresponding salinity sections to the far southwest (FS) of the canyon. Southwest (FS) and S) and S) primarity determined by solinity, and so. Isopyonals are approximately equivalent to isopathes). Note that stations 20. 21 and 33. 39 are repeated in the CA and SW sections, as are stations 39 and 70 in the CA, SW and FS sections.

Intrusions of warm weter, possibly representing Interleaving, are centered at about 200 m to the southeast (the right hand side) of all the temperature and satisfy sections except for the NE satisfy section.

The presence of localized deformations in the isolines of imperature and salinity at certain of the stations, which appear is peaks, are probably caused by tidal dersing as will shortly be demonstrated.



FIGURE 3.9: Top, Northeastern (NE) and bottom, Central Axis (CA) temperature sections for 1980



FIGURE 3.10: Top, Southwestern (SW) and bottom, Far Southwestern (FS) temperature sections for 1980







FIGURE 3.12: Top. Southwestern (SW) and bottom. Far Southwestern (FS) salinity sections for 1980

A Labrador Current 'cold core'. as it is referred to here, is defined by the region enclosed by the -1°C isotherm. A core of temperatures $\zeta - 1 \cdot C$ centered at about 100 m depth is a feature hybically observed in the Labrador Current (Seaconsult 1978, p. 22) and measurements of -1.5°C have been observed uniformly throughout the length of the Labrador Current as far south as 43°N (Smith et al. 1937, p. 27). At least one cold core is observed at a depth of =70 m in every temperature section. A single cold core is observed above the shelf break (the 110 m, isobath) in the two temperature sections (NE and FS) furthest removed from the canyon (Figures 3.9 and 3.10). The CA and the SW temperature sections exhibit two cold cores. An 'Inner' cold core is seen to extend over the shelf break at the head of the canyon in each of these two canyon transects. Note, however, this elifhough the 'outer' core is defined by different stations in each section, the same pair of stations are within the inner core in each case.

The cold core in the NE transect spans the 500 m contour, which is the location of the Labrador Current velocity core estimated by Mountain (1980). The projection of the 500 m laobath from the northeast slope into the canyon (Figure 3.1) intersects the outer cold cores of the CA (Figure 3.9) and SW (Figure 3.10) temperature sections by passing through the canyon just to the northeast of either CTD 26 or CTD 33. The center of the cold core in the FS section (Figure 3.10) is located in much shallower water than in the NE section (Figure 3.9).

The existence of two cold cores in the canyon transects does not appear to be an artifact of the CTD cast times (see Table A2 in Appendix A). If two cold cores are observed because a single stream (as in the NE and FS sections) was laterally advected along the canyon axis, then

- 42 -

the stream would have had to move up-canyon from station 24, past station 293 to station 21 at a rate in excess of 2 m s⁻¹. Then the single stream would have had to shift down-canyon along the southwest wall from station 21, and pass station 28 to arrive at station 30 with a rate greater than 3 m s⁻¹. These high speed fluctuations are unrealistic.

3.4.2 28-Hour time-series

The temperature and salinity time-series data from the 23 OTD casts performed at station 11 are displayed as depth vs. time graphs in Figure 3.13. The 23-hour time-series exhibit an apparent internal tide at the semi-diurnal frequency. The upward displacements of the isotherms and isobalines above 3000 fours and 1800 hours and 200 m. Peak displacements occur at about 0800 fours and 1800 hours and correlate well with the occurrence of high water at Hibernia (Figure 3.8c). In the previous section it was pointed out that the peaks in the isotherms and isobalines in the off-shelf transacts are probably due to tidal atlassing. The observation of vertical tidal excursions on the order of 100 m in only 3 to 4 hours, corroborates this point. Note also the sudden increase in the width of the cold core at 0700 GMT, and plater, in the width of the region enclosed by the -1.2 °C isotherm is 2000 GMT, both of which times correspond to high tide.

Ship drift while on station may contribute significantly to the variability observed. In the 23-hour series. Estimates of this sort of engor are difficult to make, however, especially because cross-canyon temperature and salinity oradients are not known.



FIGURE 3, 13: Time-series of temperature (top) and salinity (bottom) the 1980 CTD station 11*

17: 1

3.5 Dynamic topography

Contours of the dynamic topography of the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar are superimposed on the bäthymetry in Figure 3, 14. Dashed contours indicate where the extrapolation technique of Reid and Mantyla (1978) has been used been used to obtain values on the shelf (see Chapter 5), and where there is an insufficient number of stations on the downstream stide of the canyon.

A time-series of the dynamic height (Figure 3, 15) of the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar has been derived from the 23 casts at station 11. There is pronounced variability in the dynamic height values at the semi-diurnal frequency, with peak-to-peak changes of as much as 2 dyn cm. The minima in the dynamic height series approximately corresponds with times of high tide (Figure 3.8c). Similarly, the max-Imum peak in the dynamic height corresponds to low tide (which occurs at 1300 hours). The variability bears important consequences for the contour-Ing of dynamic topography at Carson Canyon since a range of 2 dyn cm represents a significant fraction of the variation in dynamic height over the upper canyon (Floure 3.14). It is possible that internal wave trapping (Chapter 1) may enhance tidal aliasing within the canyon. Precisely how much ship drift at station 11 contributes to the variability of the time-series In Figure 3.15 cannot be ascertained. It may be noted, however, that the gradient of the dynamic topography near station 11 (Figures 3.1 and 3.14) is such that as much as 50% of the peak-to-peak change in the dynamic height series could be accounted for by a ship drift of a few: kilometers.



FIGURE 3: 14:

Dynamic topography (heavy lines) of the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar (expressed in dyn cm = (dynamic height = 189 \times 1000 upperimposed on the bathymetry (light lines with depth in meters). The solid circles indicate 1890 CTD stabler positions.



FIGURE 3.15: Time-series of dynamic heights (in dyn om) of the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar at the 1980 CTD station 11 with the date in June along the horizontal axis.

Despite these uncertainties, the dynamic topography in Figure 3.14 exhibits a number of interesting features. Including shelfward defloction of the dynamic height contours at the canyon and a distinctive wave-like pattern in the canyon (e.e. These features are discussed further in Chapter

An estimate for the geostrophic speed at the Labrador Current axis upstream of Carson Canjon is 48 cm s⁻¹, calculated from the 1980 CTD pair 10-6 (see Figure 3.1). The axis of the Labrador Current velocity core (as distinct from the axis of the -1 \circ Cocid core) is estimated to follow the 500 m isobath where the gradient of state dynamic topography (Figure 3.14) is greatest at this location. This depth, it may be recalled from Chapter 1. compares with a depth of 480 m which Mountelin (1980) estimates to be the depth over which the high speed velocity core of the Labrador Current may be found. The figure of 48 cm s^{-1} compares favorably to the values of 46 cm a^{-1} and 60 cm s^{-1} for the average and maximum speeds reported respectively by Mountain (1980) from direct current measurements and by Robe (1975) from geostrophic velocity estimates

CHAPTER 4 1961 DATA

Figure 4.1 shows the locations of the 1981 current meter moorings and CTD stations at Carson Canyon. Table 4.1 presents details concerning the current meter moorings.

2 N	- / ·	V 5 V	
а 8 а ¹⁰ д	TABLE 4.1: 1981	Mooring Information	
Mooring	81-1	81-3	81-2
Inst. Inst. depth Bottom depth. N. Latitude W. Longitude Deployed Recovered Sampling Interval Orientation	southwestern 145 m 155 m - 45° 29.5' 48° 43.9' 2135/5 June 0930/18 June 5 min 150 °T	northeastern 144 m 154 m 45° 31.4' 48° 36.2' 2305/5 June 1145/18 June 5 min 350 °7	central axis upper lower 168 m 703 m 45° 29.1' 467 39.6' 185074 June 1800/19 June 5 min 210 ° 7

* The orientation is the angle of the isobath at a given mooring in the downstream (J component of velocity) direction.

The data for each of the four current meters are presented on separate figures in the following order: the southwestern meter, the only meter (at a depth of 145 m) on mooring 81-1; the central axis upper meter (186 m depth), the uppermose of two meters on mooring 81-2 and the only current meter not positioned 10 m above bottom; the central axis lower deter (703 m depth), the bottom meter on mooring 61-2; the northeastern current meter, the sole meter (144 m depth) on mooring 81-3. The southwestern, central axis upper and northeastern current meters be referred to as the "shallow" current meters. Dates marked on time-series piols denote 0000 h, Additional, pipts of data not discussed in detail in the text appear in Appendix B at the end of this

thesis





4.1 1981 Current meter records

Figures 4.2 - 4.5 give the FLP ("first low-pass" filtered) series of temperature. salinity. and the I (cross-isobath) and J (along-isobath) components of velocity for each of the 1981 current meters. Prior to about 9 June and after about 15 June. the FLP records of temperature and salinity of the shallow current meters exhibit characteristics (i.e. temperatures < 0 and salinities between 33 - 33.5 ppi) typical of the Labrador Current. The temperatures and salinities are generally much greater at the central axis lower meter (Figure 4.4) because of that current meters.

A striking feature in the FLP time-series, beginning about midday on 9 June, is the large and abrupt increase and subsequent gradual decrease in both temperature and salinity recorded by the shallow current meters (Figures 4.2, 4.8 and 4.5), and to a lesser getent, an increase in temperature recorded by the central axis lower meter (Figure 4.4). Maximum temperatures (nearly 2 °C) and salinities (nearly 34,5 ppt) for the shallow current meters are characteristic of deeper water. These records therefore suggest the occurrence of an upwelling event of = 5 d duration. The most intense signs of upwelling in the temperature and salinity records were registered at the southwestern (81-5) mooring, starting at 1420 h, 9 June (Figure 4.2). The starting times of the increases recorded by the other shallow current meters are difficult to ascertain because of the stronger semi-durnal signal. Although better demonstrated in subsequent piots, symmiation of Figures 4.2 - 4.5 indicates that substantial changes








which occur during June 9. This effect is most apparent in Figure 4.3 as an abrupt decrease of the J component of velocity as recorded by the central asis upper meter at near 0000 h on 9 June, which, upon comparison with the top two plots in the same figure, precedes the increases in temperature and satinity by about half a day. Hencelorth, the upwelling of intermediate water, along with associated changes in current patterns from those existing prior to 8 June, 1981, will be referred to in this thesis as the "upwelling event", or briefly, the "event".

With few exceptions, a vigorous semi-diurnal tide is clearly evident in all of the records presented in Figures 4.2 - 4.5. The exception) are: the absence of this tidal signal in the temperature and salinity records from the southwestern (Figure 4.2) and central axis lower (Figure 4.4) meters; and in the J component of velocity for the central axis lower meters.

The SLP filtered records ("second low-bass" filtered to remove inertial. simi-diurnal and higher frequency signals) are presented in Figures 4.8 - 4.8. Peak temperatures and salinities were recorded by the southwestern meter towards the end of 10 June (Figure 4.6). and by the northeastern meter early on 11 June (Figure 4.6). The central axis lower meter also indicates a temperature response to the event. At midder on June 9, the mean-temperature rose by -0.2 °C (Figure 4.8), about 1/10 that at the shallow meters. The higher temperatures at the deep, central axis lower meter persist longer than the time taken for the shallow burnet meters to show a recovery from the upwelling event.









Changes in the velocity field associated with the event are brought out most clearly in Progressive Vector Diagrams. PVD's computed from the SLP filtered data for each of the four 1981 current meters are given in Figures 4.10-+4.13. Asterists mark 0000 h for each day. Figure 4.10. the PVD for the southwester meter (145 m depth on mooring 81-1, Figure 4.1), shows clearly the start of the upwelling event on 8 June when the mean southward flow slows and then completely reverses to the orth. Attended the develops. The flow is cross-canyon to the east on June 12; during june 13, it accelerates towards the southwest; and on 15 June. The velocity shifts toward the south and decelerates for the remainder of the record.

In Figure 4.11, southweatward flow is indicated by the PVD. for the central axis upper meter (188 m depth on mooring 81-2; Figure 4.1), prior to 9 June the current slows. reverses toward the northnorthwest, and continues in this direction almost until June 12. A clockwise rotation then occurs until June 15, when the flow shifts abruptysoutheestward, the same direction as that prior to the event, and mainthins this direction to the end of the record.

The PVD for the central axis lower meter presented in Figure 4.12 (705 m depth on mooring 8)-2. Figure 4.1) is scaled 16 times larger than the others. A net northeastward drift of 0.9 cm s⁻¹ loward the secondary head (Figure 4.1). Is observed between 5 and 8 June. A mean downcomyon (scoutheastward) drift of 0.9 cm s⁻¹ pocurs during the event between 8 and 15 June.





FIGURE 4.11: SLP PVD: 1981 central axis upper meter, mooring (81-2).





The PVD for the north-eastern mater (144 m on mooring 81-3, Figure 4.1) is presented in Figure 4.13. South-washierd flow is indicated during the period before the start of the upweiling event, and from 14 June until the record ends. During June 8 the current direction shifts jo south-east-ward, but does not reverse. Late on 9 June, the current direction rotates dockwise, and is generally westnorth-west-ward until late on 13 June. From June 10 we flow returns to the south-west direction: but begins to slow financed who 16 June.

The PVD's permit the "onset" of the event in the velocity records to be defined in terms of the initial changes in direction: the reversals at the southwestern and central axis upper meters; and the near reversal at the northeastern meter. These direction changes correspond to zero-crossings of the J component at the southwestern and central axis upper meters (Figures 4.6' and 4. 7), and of the I component at the northeastern meters (Figure 4.9) . This definition corresponds to onset times of O700 h. 8 June at the southwestern meter; 1000 h. 9 June at the central /axis upper meter: and 1000 h. 8 June at the northeastern meter. The actual times. of onset, corresponding to initial deceleration of the mean flow, are difficuit to define in terms of the SLP velocity components and the PVD's. - but are estimated to lead the times defined above by 0.25 - 0.5 d. For example, the abrupt decrease of the J component recorded by the central and upper meter at 0000 h. 9 June (Figure 4.3), which does not appear to be tidally and uced. occurs 0.4 d before the zero-crossing lime above.

4.1.1 Vector plots

The 24 h segment-averaged velocity vectors for each of the shallow meters are plotted in Figure 4.14. The vectors represent the sum of the SLP filtered components from each of the 1981 shallow current meters after averaging over non-overlapping 24-hour segments. The segment-averaged vectors are plotted at the corresponding mooring positions on a plan-view chart showing the 180 m isobath at Carson Canyon. Only data from the central axis upper meter were available during the first 24 h speriod (8 June). Vectors were not drawn (after 6 June) if the speed was less than 0.7 cm s⁻¹. The midpoints of the segment intervals corresponding to ob330 GMT on the corresponding deg. (12-hour segment-averaged vector lots are given in Figure B33 of Appendix B.)

'The speedy state circulation at Carson Canyon, unperturbed by the upwelling event, is inferred from the vector plot for 7 June (the currents are averaged between 1730 h. 6 June - 1730 h. 7 June). Note that a line drawn through the northeastern (81-3) and central axis (81-2) mooring positions' parallels the continential slope upstream of Carson Canyon and that although there is some shellward flow (i.e. 20° deliaction towards the canyon head) indicated by the northeastern meter of 7 June, the cross-canyon flow observed by the central axis upper meter is parallel to the upstream leobaths." The current vector at the central axis upper mooring (in the 6 June frame does show, a dowg-canyon deflection of the mean current.

The first evidence, of the upwelling event in Figure 4.14 is a deceleration of the flow at the southwestern (81-1) and northeastern (81-3) moorings on June 8. A pattern suggestive of a clockwise gyre over Carson Canyon develops by 9 June but then changes to an anticlockwise





FIGURE 4.14: 24-hour segment-averaged vector plots for the 1991 shallow ourrent meters. The 160 m isobath and the date in June are shown. The midpoint of each inferval is 0530 GMT * (2). pattern on 10 June. The anticlockwise motion persists until 14 June. when the pattern changes drastically with the development of up-canyon flow at the central axis (81-2) mooging. The circulation indicated in Figure 4. 14 for 14 June shows that maximum mean currents are observed by both the southwestern and northeastern meters at this time (1730 h, 13 June - 1730 h. 14 June) which reflects the accelerations indicated in the PVD's in Figures 4.10 and 4.13. A day later, on 15 June, the circulation pattern appears to nearly return to that of 7 June, although the mean flow over the canyon continues to decelerate as indicated by the plot for 16 June. Figure 4.14 shows that the currents at the southwestern (81-3) mooring generally are constrained to follow the bathymetry. The mean current on 9 June at the northeastern (81-3) mooring possesses a large cross-isobath component (see also the I component of velocity, Figure 4.9) which is concugrent with the initial temperature and salinity increases associated with the upwelling event. However, this flow is in fact directed off-shelf. Only a north to northeastward flow, such as indicated by the vector of June 11 at this same mooring, can definitely travel onto the shelf. The temperature and salinity maxima at mooring 81-3 occurred during this period (Figure 4.9)

Figure 1.15a presents an overlay of the SLP isomperature time-series recorded by the shallow current meters. The highest temperature (1.8 °C) was recorded by the southwestern meter, the maximum temperatures observed at the northeastern and central axis upper meters ¹ both being 1.4 °C. The first increase in mean temperature is indicated in the northeastern meter record at 1600 h. 8 June, followed by increases recorded by the southwestern meter at 0500 h. 9 June, and then the cen-

69'-



FIGURE 4.15: a) Overley of the BLP: southwestern (triangle), northeastern (line), and central scis upper (star) ourrent meter temperature records. b) Northwesterly (C = 315-47) and c) northeasterly (A = 45-77) winds, d) Tidai hysiphits at Hibernia.

the upwelling perturbation probagated along the lip of the canyon with shallow water to the right before moving into deeper water. Peak temperatures are observed at progressively later times; on the evening of 10 June at the southwestern meter, early on 11 June at the northeastern meter, and early on 12 June at the central axis upper meter. All of the records indicate essentially complete decay of upwelling by 16 June, Maximum temperatures at the southwestern and northeastern meters correspond of upslope; flow at each mooring (Figure 4. 14) on June 10 and 11 respectively. Note, however, that these upslope flows indicate on-shelf upwelling in opposite directions. Referring now to the SLP temperature record of the central axis lower meter (Figure 4.8), ethe maximum temperature occurs near the end of 13 June, later than in the other temperature records. The start of the increase, midday on 9 June, is about the same as that measured by the central axis upper meter, but the relaxation time is much longer than the 5 or so days estimated for the shallow current meters. Also shown in Figure 4.15a, are arrows indicating the times at which the onset of the event was reflected in the velocity field. according to the definition discussed previously. Consequently, it is seen that the initial increases in mean temperature (and salinity; compare Figures 4.6, 4.7 and 4.9). lag the onset times defined for the velocity records at the northeastern and southwestern meters by = 0.25 - 1 d.

4.2 . Meteorological and tidal data

Wind velocities presented in Figures 4.15b and 4.15c, obtained in 1981 from an anemometer at 78 m above mean sea level on a drilling rig in the Hibernia field (Figure 1.1), are resolved parallel to the continental slope upstream of Carson Canyon with positive A being northeasterty

(45 °T) and positive C northwesterly (315 °T). Unlike the previous year (Ge Figure 3.8), Intense southeasteriles of about 0.5 d duration (June 7 ~ 8. Figure 4.15c) accompanied a severe storm while the 1981 current meter moorings were deployed. The peak wind speed at Hibernia of 23 m s⁻¹ directed from 130 *7 (C =-23 m s⁻¹ A = 0) was observed at 0600 h, 8 June. The high winds were generated by the gassage of a trowal ("transfer of warm air aloft") which was associated with a low pressure' system centered to the northwest of the Hibernia-Carson Canyon region. The storm development, including the passage of the trowal (marked by northwestward pointing arrows at Carson Canvon on 8 June), is shown in the surface pressure charts reproduced in Figures 4.16 and 4.17. These charts indicate that the intense southeasteriles on June 7 and 8 at Hibernia were preceded by high winds at sea level from the south to southwest at Carson Canyon. Consequently, it is suggested that high speed along-slope southwesteriles, which lasted for about half a day. developed at Carson Canyon sometime on 7 June and peaked earlier than 0600 h, 8 June. It is near the start of 8 June that the flow at the southwestern and northeastern meters began to slow before the onset of the event (i.e. before the establishment of an anticlockwise pattern over the canyon apparent in Figure 4, 14; see also Figure B23), and about 1.d before the first increase in mean temperature was registered by the northeastern meter (Figure 4, 15a). They role of the strong, impulsive, northwestward (along-slope) wind stress in the upwelling event of 1981 will be discussed later.

Tidal heights at Hibernia are plotted in Figure 4.15d. Neap tide coincides with a decreased amplitude of the M_2 signal between 10 - 13 June is the FLP filtered velocity components shown in Figures 4.2 - 4.5.

- 72--



FIGURE 4.16: 6-Hourly surface pressure charts from 1200 GMT (2) 7 June to 0600 GMT 8 June, 1981, at Carson Canyon (open circle) and Hibernia (closed circle to the north).



FIGURE 4. 17: 6-Hourly surface pressure charts from 1200 GMT (2)'8 June to 0600 GMT 9 June, 1981 at Carson Canyon (open circle) and Hibernia (closed circle to the north).

The higher trequency internal wave signals in the velocity records from the central axis lower meter (Figure 4, 4) are also suppressed during this period. The correlation between neap tide and the observed currents might be coincidental however. Huthnance (1981) reports that the neapspring cycle is not usually seen in current meter time-series obtained on or near the continental slope. Additionally, it was found by Hayes and Halpern (1976) that the horizontal kinetic energy of the baroclinic M, tide was reduced near the coast during an upwelling event. A similar effect at Carson Canyon is suggested by the increased amplitude of the semi-diurnal signal over the period of the event in the FLP series of temperature and salinity for the shallow current meters plotted in Figures 4.3 and 4.5 (see also the BP filtered records in Figures 88 and 810 in Appendix 8). The larger peaks in temperature and salinity during neap tide suggest increased oradients due to the ordsence of upwelled warmer, more saline, water in Carson Canyon. (Take special note of the large, isolated tidally induced peaks at 0600 h on 9 June in the temperature and salinity records of the t northeastern meter, Figure 4.5; before the increases become sustained over more than one phase of the tide.)

4.3 Comparison of the 1980 and 1981 current meter data

Mean values from the despiled time-series of temperature. salinity and the L and J components of velocity recorded before 0000 h. 8 June by the 1981 current meters are presented in Table 4.2. Those figures are also compared in Table 4.2 to mean values over the entire deployment period for the 1981 current meters 'radditional statistics are presented an Tables 81 A-D), and to the similar mean values aveilable from 1980 (also see Table A1 in Appendix A for the 1980 current meter statistics).

TABLE 4.2	: Mean	values of de	spiked curre	nt meter data f	rom 1980 and 198
current meter t	•Temp . '(• C).	Sal (ppt)	(cm s ⁻¹)	J (cm s ⁻¹)	$(J^2 + J^2)^{1/2}$ (cm s ⁻¹)
1981.		1.			- 1
SWN	1.1		1. 1. 1.	1. S. S. S. S. S.	
< 8 June	-0.73	33.15	3.6	6.9	7.8
CAU	0.00	33.45	0.4	6.3	6.3
<8 June	-0.01	33. 54	2.9	12.8 <	13:1
CAL	0. 38	33.70	1.1	4.2	4.4
< 8 June	. 3. 48	34.89	-0,4	1 -1:0	· 1.1 · ·
Total	3. 57	34.90	-0.4	€ ^{−0.4}	0.5
< 8 June	-0.60	33.30	-5.6	-3.2	6.5
Total .	-0.02	33.53	-4.7	-1.4	4:9
1980 -	1.1.12	1.	1.14.17.2	i a la parte	
SWN			and a start of the	the Same is	A A American St.
Total	-0.59		. 3.7	18.2	18.6
NEN		19 A.	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Section of the
Total .	A		3.9	19.0	19.4

† SWN = southwestern, CAU = central axis upper, CAL = central axis lower, NEN = northeastern:

Table 4.2 shows that there is no large difference between the average temporature recorded by the 1980 southwestern meter and those for the 1981, southwestern and northeastern meters, prior to 0000 h. 8 June. As a further comparison. Floure 4.18 demonstrates the high degree of dimilarity between a segment of the FLP temperature record from the 1980 southwestern meter are found to the FLP temperature record from the 1981 northeastern meter. (The 1981 northeastern meter are closed by the least affected by the topographical influence of Carson Canyon: no temperature record was obtained from the 1980 northeastern meter.) According to Table 4.2, velocity magnitudes at the 1981 hallow current meters 4 (2000 h, 8 June, are typically much idwer than the values from 1980.

which could be due to the influence of the canyon of to the cross-slope current shear of the Labrador Current (discussed in Chapters 3 and 5). Average increases of temperature. 0.57 C*. and of selinity. 0.23 ppt, are computed from Table 4.2 for all three shellow_current meters from before 8 June to that of the totals. Perhaps the goost noticeable effect of the event on the mean values is a 2 to 3-fold decrease in the speeds observed at the central axis (5) and its in the speeds observed at the central axis (5) and its 2 to 3-fold decrease in the speeds observed at the central axis (5) and the 4.2 are greater during the period prior of the upwelling event than these for the entire period.



FIGURE 4.18: Overlay of 2.5 d of the FLP-filtered temperature time-series. from the 1980 southwestern (star) and 1981 northeastern. (line) current meter records.

4:4 1981 Kinetic energy spectra

As in Chapter 3, the results of the spectral analyses are not central to the thesis, but are presented for completeness. Plots of the kinetic energy spectra for each of the 1981 current meters are presented in Figures 4, 19 and 4.20. Spectra for the 1981 current meters differ in many





respects from the description of those for 1980 (Chapter 3). foremost difference is that the maximum energy spectral densities in the 1981 spectra correspond, not to the M, tide (frequency = 8.05" x 10⁻² cph), but to lower frequencies, except for the 1981 northeastern meter (Figure 4.20a), for which the maximum spectral density occurs at the Mo tidal frequency. Another feature observed in all the 1981 spectra, but not in the 1980 spectra. is the presence of broad peaks between the O, tidal and the inertial frequencies (3.87 \times 10⁻²² and 5.96 x 10⁻² coh respectively). These maxima might be associated with the effects of the sheared current on internal-inertial oscillations induced by wind-impulse forcing (Mayer, et al- 1981). The spectrum of the central axis lower meter (Figure 4. 19a) contains the least energy of all and." shows two distinct and relatively broad peaks centered at 2.43 × 10-2 and 1.35 x 10⁻² cph. This spectrum, unlike the others, is norreddened: the energy density does not increase at the lowest frequencies. A broad peak in the spectrum of the northeastern meter (Figure 4.20a) is clearly defined at 1.62 × 10⁻² cph.

A notable feature of these spectra is the presence of secondary pasks with frequencies alightly smaller than the M_2 tide but larger than the intertial frequency at about 7.5 x 10⁻² oph. However, only for the spectrum for the northeastern meter (Figure 4.20a) is the secondary pasks statistically significant. The cause(s) of the secondary pasks mean the M_2 tide, in the Carson Canyon spectra is (are) hot known. The spectrum for the deep, central sis forem meter (Figure 4.19a) shows that statistically significant energy (4.x 10² om² s⁻² oph⁻¹) was generated af the semicdiurnal frequency in Carson Canyon at 700 m depth. Also, because of the near equivalence in depths, among the shallow current meters (see.

1.2

Table 4.1), there is evidently a southwestward, cross-canyon decrease in power of the M_2 ide: at the northeastern (58 × 10^3 cm² s⁻² cph⁻¹). Figure 4.20a): central axis upper (40,×10³ cm² s⁻² cph⁻¹). Figure 4.20b), (4.19b): and southwestern (28 × 10^3 cm² s⁻² cph⁻¹). Figure 4.20b), current meter positions. In 1980: the M_2 filde (on the continental slope) was greater at the southwestern (80-1) mooring (89 × 10^3 cm² s⁻² cph⁻¹). The cause of this cross-canyon decreases in M_2 tidal amplitude is not known; but may be reliated to the absence of times signet in a current meter record, obtained downstream of a southeestern Grand Bank canyon (Robe, 1975).

4.5 1981 CTD data

CTD station locations are plotted in Figure 4.1. The positions, times, and depths of these stations are listed in Table-B2 in Appendix B. Only 7 CTD casts were possible due to high winds.

4.5.1 Temperature, salinity and o, sections

Vertical cross-sections of temperature (Figure 4.21). salinity and density (Figure 4.22) were derived from one transact along the axis of Carson Canyon on 11. June. 1981. between 1500 and 1645 GMT. The Labrador Current cold core (the region bounded by the -1 $^{\circ}$ C isotherm) is evident in Figure 4.21 and the salinity is abolt 33.0 ppt at the depth corresponding to the cold core (about 80 m). The or section is included here to illustrate the equivalence of isotherms in acrycans. The CTD

- 81 -

data used in the 1981 sections (Figures 4.2) and 4.22) were obtained during the beford in which the central ada upper meter (at a depth of 168 m) registered now towards the secondary head, counter to the mean direction of the Labrador Current (Figure 4.14). The mean temperature and salinity values taken from the SLP (litered records of the central axis upper meter (see Figure 4.7) at this time were respectively 1.3 °C and



FIGURE 4.21: Central Axis temperature section for 11 June, 1981-

*





Generally, temperatures and the vertical temperature gradient below the cold core (Figure 4.21) are greater than for the 1980 central axis temperature section (Figure 3.9). Those leatherms > 0° C below 100 m depth slope upwards towards the canyon head. In addition, the Labrador Current cold core in 1981 (Figure 4.21) does not extend as far downcanyon as it did in the 1980 section. Nor does the cold core observed in 1981 intersect that location near station 25 (see Figure 3.1) which was estimated to be near the position of the velocity core.

The sailnity section for 1981 (Figure 4.22) differs significantly from the central axis sailnity section for 1980 (Figure 3.11), Below 100 m the sailnities are generally greater and the isobalines which are > 33.8 ppt slope upwards from the center of the canyon at station 3 to the head at station 28. The reversal in slope is not thought to be caused by tidal aliasing because the transact was completed in only 2.75 h. At depths shallower than 100 m, the temperature and salipity transacts resemble more closely those from 1980, especially at the shell break.

Figure 4.23 is a profile of temperature and salinity from a CTD cast prior to the upwelling event at 1400 h. 6 June at mooring 81-2 (see Ejgure 4.1). Salinities from Figure 4.23 are compared in Table 4.5 with salinities measured by the central axis upper mater in order to estimate the upper limits of vertical velocities during the upwelling event. Values for the central axis upper mater were taken from the despiked listing. The first two lines of data in Table 4.3 show that the measurements obtained by the two instruments are consistent. The arrival times of isohalines at the current meter, and the vertical separation of these same isohalines in the CTD profile, are used to calculate rates of isohaline ascent. The values are not interpreted as being representative of vegrical velocities.

.



because the advective contribution to the rate of salinity increase is unk-

TABLE 4.3: Comparison of temperature and salinity measurements by the CTD and the central axis upper meter (/CAU') at mooring 81-2					
Instrument	Temp (*C)	Sal (ppt)	Pres (dbar)	GMT/Date	
CTD 81-2	-0.10	33.45	167 .	1354/6 June	
CAU	-0.10	33.46	167	1335/6 June	
CTD 81-2	+0.07	- 33. 55 * .	*180 ,	1354/6 June	
CTD 81-2	+1.58	34.18	277	1354/6 June	
CAU	+0.08	33. 57	167	1255/9 June	
CAU	+1.41	34. 18	167	0340/10 June	
CTD 81-2 ·	+0.07	33.55	180 .: .	1354/6. June	
CTD 81-2	+1.12	33.99	229	1354/6 June	
CAU	+0.08	33. 57	167	1255/9 June	
CAU	+0.96	33.99	167 : .	1525/9 June	

A peak ascent rate of 0.5 cm s^{-1} is found from the bottom four lines in Table 4.3 using the amount of time takin (2.5 h) for the 33.99 ppt isohaline to undergo a 49 m (229 - 180 m) wettical displacement on June 9. A similar calculation for the 34.16 ppt isohaline results in a mean ascent gale of 9.2 pm s^{-1} for the upwelling of intermediate depth water on June 9 and 10. Asfant rates might possibly be greater at the other moorings where larger amplitude and more rapid increases than all mooring 81-2 were recorded (compare Figures 4.2, 4.3 and 4.5).

CTD stations 1A and 2A (Figure 4.1) were occupied one day earlier. But in the same locations respectively as stations 1B and 2B used in the sections (Figure 4.21-4.22). Temperature and salinity profiles collected at station 2A (Figure 4.1) at 1419 h on 10 June. 1981, are presented in Figure 4.24a. Figure 4.24b shows similar profiles for the CTD data collected at station 1A at 1258 h. also on 10 June. The two temperature



profiles in Figure 4.24 are of particular interest because they show no Labrador Current cold core water (4 -1 *C) at the head of Carson Canyon, even though one day later, on 1) June, the cold core possesses an observed thickness of 40 m (Figure 4.21) at station 18,

4.5.2 Dynamic heights and geostrophic velocity profiles

The dynamic heights calculated for the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar from CTD data collected on June 8 (station 81-2 only) and June 11, 1991, are listed in Table 4.4.

and the second sec					
TADIE 4 4.	During	h -labte	4	1	100
	i woamie	naidars	Inc	.IIIne	194

Station	Dynamic	Height	(dyn	cm);
18	-, ef	94	֥	
81-2)	93		
3	1 - 2	91.		

The range of values in Table 4.4 (88 - 94 dyn om) is not grossly different from that indicated by Figure 3.14 for the 1880 dynamic topography along the canyon axis. As in 1880, the dynamic heights for 11 June 1981 are seen to decrease away from the shelf break when referenced to the station locations shown in Figure 4.1. Implying geostrophic flow to the southwest. This direction is opposite to the -10 cm s⁻¹ northeastward flow measured by the central axis upper meter (Figure 4.11) at mooring 81-2 over the same pariod.

- 88 -

A vertical profile of geostrophic velocity for the pair of CTD stations 28-3 (the solid line in Figure 4.25a) is used to investigate this discrepancy. The line between these two stations intersects mooring 81-2 (Figure 4.1). Note the existence of a distinct, 4.4 cm a⁻¹ counter current at 130 m and positive (southwestward) geostrophic velocities above 100 m. The major differences between this profile and the corresponding profile for the 1980 station pair 238-24 (the dashed line in Figure 4.25a) at the head of the canyon (locations are given in Figure 3.1) are this counter current and the significant velocity decreases at all depths above 100 m in 1981. These observations therefore show that the Labrador Current was present at the central axis during the reversal at mooring 81-2 on 11 June- but with reduced speeds and displaced upwards by a counter current.

A geostrophic velocity profile for the 1991 station pair 3-4 (The solid line in Figure 4.25b) further down-slope from mooring 81-2, and along the central axis of Carson Canyon bears little resemblance to the corresponding profile from the 1990 station pair 24-26 (the dashed line in Figure 4.25b). The near doubling of the surface current in 1991 suggests a seaward shift of the velocity axis of the Labrador Current.

- 89



FIGURE 4.25: Vertical profiles of geostrophic velocity between CTD stations: a) 28 and 3 (of 1981, solid line) and 238 and 24 (of 1980, dashed line), and b) 3 and 4 (of 1981, solid line) and 24 and 26 (of 1980, dashed line).

- 90 -
CHAPTER 5 THE MEAN FLOW

In this chapter, the steady-state mean flow of the Labrador Current at Carson Canyon is analyzed., Important observations with respect to the mean flow are summarized first, using selected data from 1980 and 1981 to define a mean circulation pattern in the upper layer. Figure 3.14 gives the dynamic topography of the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar for the 1980 survey. Although ageostrophic effects are important, as shown later. in this chapter, and therefore affect the interpretation of Figure 3.14 as streamline pattern, several features of the mean circulation are inferred from the combination of the dynamic topography with the measured mean currents. Figure 5.1 gives the composite mean current vectors from 1980 (Figure 3.6) and 1981 (from the 7 June plot of Figure 4.14). The 1981 measurements precede the upwelling event. The mean currents up- and downstream of the canvon (moorings, 80-2 and 80-1) are predominantly along-isobath as is the dynamic topography (Figure 4.14) "In the same regions. This result is consistent with findings by others at points removed from canyons along the southeastern Grand Bank (Kudio et al. 1979; Mountain 1980). There is, however, an upslope deflection of the mean current at mooring 80-2 and the dynamic topography also shows a shelfward turning directly upstream of the canyon, which may represent an upstream, canyon-Induced disturbance (Chapter 3). Cross-isobath flow, over the northeastern wall, at and seaward of the secondary head, is indicated at mooring 81-3 and by the dynamic topography < 92 dyn cm. The mean flow at the 1981 southwestern mooring (81-1) is predominantly parallel to the southwestern wall, which is consistent with the along-isobath flow around the head and along the southwestern wall implied by the 92 and 93 dyn cm contours. The mean current at the central axis mooring



FIGURE 5.1:,

Vector plots of the mean, steady state currents at the 1980 and 1981 moorings, and the coordinate system for the mean flow analysis (81-2) is cross-canyon, approximately tangential to the contours of dynamic height. Wave-like features are present in the dynamic topography in the lee of the canyon. Toward the canyon mouth in deep water, relatively unperturbed, cross-canyon flow is indicated by the dynamic topography ≤ 89 dyn cm.

Finally, the 1880 CTD sections show that the cold core of the Labrador Current billurcates at the canyon (Figures 3.9 and 3.10). The warmer water separating the take cores is located downstream of the secondary head. Furthermore, a net near-boltom drift of 0.9 cm s⁻¹ lowerd the secondary head; both prior to and subsequent o the upweiling event in 1981, was observed at the central axis lower, meter (Figure 4.12):

These observations combine to produce a consistent mean flow pattern, of which the principal characteristics are predominantly alongloobath flow in the fer field up- and downatream of the canyon, crossisobath flow at the head and at the southwestern wall and central axis, along-isobath flow at the head and at the southwestern will wave-like features in the canyon iee, splitting of the cold temperature core, and a deep return flow ioward the secondary head, at the pentral axis.

In this chapter, after comparing the measured and socarcophic velocities. The importance of bottom triction to the current measurements is estimated. Then, explanations for the existence of the principal features of the mean flow (listed above) are sought by examining the implications of the constraint imposed by potential forticity conservation. Finally, the magnitudes of the non-linear and forticits acceleration terms in the central canyon region are estimated and compared.

~ 93

1 The ocordinate system: comparison of measured and geostrophic velocities

The coordinate system for the mean flow analysis (Figure 5.1) is aligned with the upstream bathymetry. The along-slope velocity component u is positive pointing toward 25 *T (+,x) and the cross-slope component v is positive in the off-shelt direction loward 135 *T (+ y). Note that this system is, distinct from the I, (cross-lsobath) and J (along-isobath) velocity component system used earlier.

Variations in the measured and geostrophic mean velocities are now compared. A representative estimate for variations of the mean speed at Carson Canvon is ±5 cm s⁻¹ (from the standard deviation of the SLP components for the 1980 current meters, Table A1 in Appendix A). The variation in- the direction of the observed mean current is small: * ±3* (see the SLP PVD's for 1980 'In Figure A8 In Appendix A). The time variation in dynamic height at a single station in the central canyon region is 2 dyn cm (Figure 3, 15). As discussed in Chapter 3, this is apparently due to a semi-diurnal internal tide, although the contribution from ship drift is unknown and could be significant. To the degree to which this observed variation is both real and representative of the area, the dynamic topography is likely to be tidally allased. . Nevertheless, the flow pattern inferred from the dynamic topography is consistent with the measured mean directions. Furthermore the variations in these directions are small. It is concluded that flow directions estimated from Figure 3, 14 are not grossly In error.

It remains to make a direct comparison between geostrophic and measured velocities, which comparison will teat the assumption of a 200 m level of no motion. Unfortunately, this comparison can be made only at

the southwestern (80-1) mooring, because the loss of salinity measurements at station 4 (see Figure 3.1) precludes the possibility of obtaining a reliable geostrophic estimate at the northeastern (80-2) mooring. The measured velocity at 120 m depth at mooring 80-1 (approximately the same location as station 37; see Figure 3.1) is 17.3 cm s⁻¹ (from the SLP Imean components of Table A1, Appendix A), which yields a 16.1 cm s⁻¹ component perpendicular to the line joining stations 37 and 38. The geostrophic velocities calculated at 120 m between stations 38 and 39 (13.6 cm s⁻¹), and stations 38 and 37 (14.3 cm s⁻¹), have been linearly extrapolated to station 37. The result is 14.6 cm s⁻¹ at station 37, which is smaller than the measured value by only 9%. Part of this difference may arise because the use of a 200 dbar depth of no motion results in an underestimate of the geostrophic velocities... It must be pointed out, however, that the geostrophic velocities represent averages across a sheared let between stations whose average spacing is O(10 km). The observed agreement between measured and geostrophic velocities may therefore be fortuitous.

5.2 Bottom friction

The Ekman layer depth δ_E is defined as $(2A_V'/1)^{1/2}$ (e.g. Pediosky 1979, p. 177). A_V is the vertical addy viscosity coefficient and t is the Coriolis parameter, which at Carson Canyon (45.5° N) is 1.04 x 10⁻⁴ s⁻¹. Gill (1982, p. 332) estimates δ_E by a quadratic drag law for the bottom stress in terms of the interior, geostrophic velocity (defined here by the symbol U_Q) such that.

0 = + 4C UG / 1

(5.1)

where an order of magnitude estimate of C_D is typically 2 x 10⁻³ (e.g. Csanady 1982, p. 12).

Estimates of $U_{\rm G}$ and $\delta_{\rm E}$ for the northeastern meter (on the upstream, 80-2 mooring) have been calculated in the following manner: The velocity components in the bottom Ekman layer are (Pediosky 1979, p. 178).

$$u = U_{G} \left[1 - e^{-z/\delta_{E}^{2}} \left| \cos(z/\delta_{E}^{2}) \right] \right]$$
(5.2a)

and.

(5.2b)

(5.3)

where z = 0 at the sea floor. The speed, R, is therefore given by $\sqrt{u^2 + v^2}$, or, $R = U_G \left[1 + e^{-2z/0}E - 2e^{-z/0}E_{\cos(z/0}E^{-1})\right]^{1/2}$. (5.2c)

(Note that the definition of $\delta_E = \left[\frac{2}{T}\frac{A_V}{T}\right]^{1/2}$ is different from that used by Arml and Millard (1975), who used the height (D_E) at which the speed in the bottom boundary layer was 99% of, and in the same direction as, the Interior flow. That is, $R = 0.99 U_G$. For comparison, at $z = \theta_E$, $R = 0.88 U_G$ and is directed at an angle of 21° to the left of the interior floy, and $\theta_E = 5\theta_E$.) Substituting for θ_E using (5.1) with z = 10 m, R= 19.5 cm.s⁻¹ (the SLP mean components from Table A1), and P $C_0 = 2 \times 10^{-3}$, equation 5.26 becomes.

 $0.195 + U_{G} \left[1 + e^{-1/4U_{G}} - 2e^{-1/8U_{G}} \cos(1/8U_{G}) \right]^{1/2}.$

This equation can in principle be solved iteratively for U_{Q} , for which δ_{F}

0.0

can be then obtained using equation 5.1. Table 5.1 was constructed by following this procedure for different values of C_D . The values in Table 5.1 are therefore the geostrophic velocities and Ekman layer thicknesses required to give the observed speed of 19.5 cm s⁻¹ at 10 m above bottom. The directions were obtained using equations 5.2 and 5.2 b. Note that the right hand side of equation 5.3 has a maximum value of 0.177 which is approached for values of $U_Q > 100 \,\mathrm{cm \ s^{-1}}$. Therefore, equation 5.2 cannot be satisfied for $C_D = 2 \times 10^3$ and R = 19.5 cm s⁻¹.

TABLE 5.1: Geostrophic velocities. $U_{\rm Q}$, Ekman layer depths, $\delta_{\rm E'}$, and deflection angles (positive is to the left and down-slope) for the 1980 northeastern meter at z = 10 m.

Ce × 103	U _G (m/s)	0 _E (m)	Angle (degrees)	
> 1.7.	s = .	-	in -	
1.6	0.495	30.0	36.0	
1.4	0.312	17.0	30.0	
1.2	0.240	11.0	23.0	
1.0	0.203	7.8	16.0	
0.9 .	0.194	6.7	13.0	
0.8	0. 187	5.7	9.6	
0.7	0.183	4.9	6.3 -	
0.6	0.182 .	4.2	3.4	
0.5	0.184	3.5	1.0	
0.4	0.189	2.9	-0, 52	
0.3	0.194	2.2	-0.64	

The larger (> 10*) deflection angles in Table 5. It which correspond to $C_D > 0.8 \times 10^{-3}$, are to the left of the interior geostrophic flow, and were this interior flow to be approximately along-isobath as expected (see the next section), would result in a large downslope component of velocity at 10 m above bottom, in contradiction with observations. The smaller (-1 to 6*) deflection angles correspond to low values of C_D , and values of O_c (5 m. Similar Ekman layer thicknesses are reported in the ilterature,

- 97 -

value of 2.94 m was derived by Janowitz and Pietralesa (1980) in a barotropic model of the time-dependent response in the shelf-slope region to a uniform applied wind-stress. In the limit of long times, the predicted interior geostrophic velocity parallel to the slope was found to be time-independent and equal to 19 cm s⁻¹. Using (5.1), this geostrophic velocity and 2.94 m Ekman layer thickness gives 0.3 × 10-3 for the value of C_D (f = 0.8 x 10^{-4} s⁻¹). In the remainder of this, chapter it will be assumed that $\delta_{F} < 5$ m. and that as a result, the measured currents effectively represent the interior geostrophic flow. Although this requires rather low values of C. (~ 0.5 x 10-3), comparable values have appeared in the recent literature. Moreover, Csanady-(1982, p. 12) states that Co is known to within an order of magnitude at best. Therefore, in the absence of velocity measurements distributed in the vertical to demonstrate otherwise, the additional complications associated with including friction in the analysis are probably unwarranted.

5.3 The velocity field upstream of Carson Canyon

Observations of the velocity field upstream of Carson Canyon are now analyzed in terms of the potential vorticity of the flow. According to direct current measurements at mooring 80-2 (Figure 5.1), the mean, near shelf-break speed of the Labrador Current is 19 cm s⁻¹ at 10 m above bottom along the 170 m ¹sobath. The maximum velocity of the Labrador Current is estimated to be 48 cm s⁻¹ from the 1980 CTD pair 10-8 assuming geostrophy and a depth of no motion at 200 m (Chapter 3). The velocity and the 500 m isobath (Figure 3.14). An estimate for the cross-stream variation of the mean velocity is needed at this point because it determines the magnitude of the relative vorticity, which itself party determines whether or not the mean flow will follow the isobaths. It cannot be reliably obtained from the dynamic topography because the station spacing is so large. An expression for the cross-stream velocity profile of a free jet is therefore derived, and its applicability to the Labrador Current discussed later.

The vertically integrated, horizontal momentum equations for a twolayer system in which the upper and lower layers move at speeds u and u' in geostrophic equilibrium are, for the upper layer

(5.4

(5.5)

(5.1

(5.7)

and for the lower layer $t u' = -g \eta_v - g' \eta'_v$

u = -g' 7.

where the subscript y denotes differentiation with respect to y. the crossstream coordinate. η is the sea surface sevention. η' is the elevation of the interface between the two layers, $g' = \frac{D'-p}{D'}g$, and the density p' in the lower layer is greater than the density p in the upper layer. (A simitar representation is shown schematically in Figure 6.1.) The equilibrium thicknesses of the upper and lower layers are $h'\eta - \eta'$ and $h'+\eta'$, where h'and h' are constants. The potential vorticity (e.g. Gill 1982, pp. 232 -233 and p. 235) is, for the upper and lower layers respectively:

<u>ζ+/</u> (h+η-η') and

(h'+7)

where $\zeta = -u_{ij}$ and $\zeta' = -u'_{ij}$ are the relative forticities in the upper

- 99 -

and lower layers, since the cross-stream velocities are assumed to be zero. Stommel (1965, pp. 108 – 109) showed that the potential vorticity is nearly uniform across the Gulf Stream. The assumption is made here that this is also true of the Labrador Gurrent, although it cannot be justified in terms of the measurements presented here. Discussion returns to this point later. Consequently, the potential vorticity of each layer unform in the cross-stream direction, is equal to the constant value $\frac{1}{b}$ in the upper layer and $\frac{1}{b^2}$ in the lower flayer outside the jet where the velocity is zero. Equating the potential vorticities (5.6) and (5.7) in each layer with their unitorm values outside the jet region, the following relations are **R**ound for the upper and lower layer respectively:

The difference velocity $\hat{u} = u$ is found in terms of η by subtracting (5.5) from (5.4).

 $\hat{u} = \frac{g}{r} \eta'_{y} \tag{5.10}$ Subtracting (5.8) from (5.9), making the approximation $\eta << \eta', \mbox{ diff}$

ferentiating the result with respect to y, and then substituting $\hat{\psi}$ for $\hat{\pi}_y$, from (5.10) yields

 $\hat{u}_{yy} = \frac{t^2}{a' \left[\frac{hh'}{h+h'}\right]} \hat{u}$

= U₀ e

 $-u_{y} = \frac{f}{h} \left[\eta - \eta' \right]$, and

 $-u'_{v} = \frac{f}{h'} \eta' .$

With the assumption that the jet is restricted to the upper layer (w' << u), w replaces \hat{w} in (5.11), which may then be integrated to give Δ

(5.12)

(5.11)

(5.8

Here. U_o is the maximum speed of the jet at its axis (y = 0) and R_j is the internal Rossby radius of deformation, given by,

 $\sigma \frac{hh'}{h+h'} = \frac{\sigma'}{f}$

for two-layer flow, where $c' = \sqrt{\sigma \frac{chh'}{h+h'}}$ is the (first baroclinic mode) long interfacial wave speed (Gill 1982; c. 207).

(5.13)

Equation 5. 12 will now be applied to the Labrador Current. choosing the origin of the y-axis to be at the 500 m isobath, the approximate location of the velocity axis, as shown in Figure 5.1. Table 5.2 presents values of A_j estimated from the CTD data using equation 5.13. A typical, values of A_j is 8,0 km. The line segment perpendicular to the continential alope between mooring 80-2 and 500 m depth northeast of Carson Caryon is 8.0 km long (see Figure 5.1). Employing A_j = 8.0 km. y = 8.0 km, the speed estimate $U_0 = 46$ cm s⁻¹, and equation 5.12, the estimated speed at mooring 80-2 is w = 18 cm s⁻¹. This is within 6% of the measured speed (19 cm s⁻¹).

Using the above results, the cross-stream shear near the shelf break is estimated to be $t \in t = \left[-\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right] = \frac{u}{R_f} < \frac{16 \text{ cm s}^{-1}}{8 \text{ km}} = 2.2 \times 10^{-5} \text{ s}^{-1}$. This may be an upper limit. A decrease in shear on the shelf side of the Labrador Current has been sported by Hill et al. (1973). Their Figure $\xi(a)$ for the geostrophic current contours for a section across the slope about 30 km south of Carson Canyon shows an asymmetry between the two sides of the velocity core with greater shear on the left hand side of the Labrador Current looking downstream. It is concluded that 1 < < t in the violity of the shelf break upstream of the canyon.

CTD	P'-Px10-4	h+h***	R,†
Station	· · · · ·	(meters)	(kliometers)
1980		1	
. 10	· 7.38878	400	8.2
11.	6. 98897	550	9.0
14	4.00971		6.8
15	4. 68144	640	7.6
16	4.36989	690	7.5
-251	5.03203 -	870	8.4
26	4.73981	1.180	8.4
38 .	4. 24375	. 500	6.5 -
1981			
81-2	7.49582	600	9.5

taken at 150

p' taken at deepest level of cast (normally 500 m) **h = 200 m is the level of no motion and h+h' = bottom depth. the mean of all casts is R, = 8.0 km.

The flow near the shelf break upstream of the canyon appears nearly barotropic. This is suggested by the close agreement between the measured velocity-10 m above bottom and the interior geostrophic velocity at the 1980 northeastern meter calculated from equation 5.12. Furthermore, the downward sloping ischallnes > .33.2 ppt intersect the bottom well below the shelf break (Figures 3.11 and 3.12). This indicates reduced horizontal density gradients, close to the shelf break (isohalines being approximately equivalent to isopycnals), which implies a decrease in the vertical shear because of the thermal wind equation (e.g. Gill. 1982. p. 217). Hill et al. (1973) report an 18 cm s⁻¹, barotropic flow at

= 130 m depth northeast of Carson Canyon (also see Chapter, 1).

Under barotropic conditions, $\left[\frac{\zeta + f}{D_0 + \eta}\right]$ is the potential vorticity. where D_{α} is the water depth (e.g. $D_{\alpha} = D_{\alpha}(y)$ is the depth upstream of Carson Canyon). For hydrostatic (i.e. shallow water) motion in the absence of friction, potential vorticity is conserved along a pathline. That

(5. 14)

(5.15)

 $\frac{d}{dt} \left[\frac{\zeta + I}{D_0 + \eta} \right] = 0$

where $\frac{d}{dt} = \frac{d}{\partial t} + u \frac{d}{\partial y} + v \frac{d}{\partial y}$. It is noted at this point that this provides some justification for the use of uniform potential vorticity in the previous model: that, in the light of (5, 14), cross-stream mixing would cause the time-averaged potential vortigity to be uniform. For steady flow, pathlines and streamlines are equivalent, and C in natural coordinates along a streamline is given by (Gill 1982, p. 235).

 $\zeta = \frac{-\partial U}{\partial r} - \frac{U}{r}.$

Here U is the speed of a fluid column along the streamline, and r is the local radius of curvature of the streamline. The signs are chosen for rightward curvature and $\frac{\partial U}{\partial T} > 0$, as appropriate to the right hand side of the Labrador Current looking downstream, and the northesstern side of the Labrador Current looking downstream. and the northesstern side of the Labrador Current looking downstream. And the northesstern side of the Labrador Current looking downstream. And the northesstern side of the canyon. Negative vorticity is associated with the cross-stream shear and the rightward curvature of the flow. The conditions for which along-looking by scaling C with respect to f. Consequently, dividing equation 5.15 by f defines two Roseby numbers: the shear Goaseby number $R_0 = \left|\frac{\partial U}{\partial T}\right| = \frac{\partial}{R_1}$ by equation 5.12. and the curvature Roseby number $R_0^{-1} = \left|\frac{\partial U}{\partial T}\right|$. For small R_0^{-1} and the curvature, if $Cl < \ell$ and, provided $\eta < C_0$, equation (5.14) requires that $\tilde{u} \neq 0_0^{-1} = 0$. Therefore, the flow is along-lookath. If R_0^{-1} or R_0^{-1} become large, then conservation of potential vorticity no longer implies along-lookath flow.

103 -

Upstream of Carson Canyon, $r \rightarrow \infty$, and therefore $R_{ig}^{\prime} < < 1$. Using the estimates obtained above, $R_{g'} < 0.22 < 1$ near the shell break. The flow should therefore be approximately along-isobath.¹ It can also be shown (Gill 1982, p. 235) that under these conditions the flow at the shelf break upstream is geostrophic.

5.4 Disturbances of the mean flow by the canyon

For a bardellinic jet like the Labrador Current lighthe upper layer of a two-layer system, the extent to which the jet responds to changes in the underiving topography depends on the depth of, and stratification in, the layer representation of the Labrador Current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of potential vorticity for steady flow in a two-layer fluid. In the line in the labrador Current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of potential vorticity for steady flow in a two-layer fluid. In the line in the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of potential vorticity for steady flow in a two-layer fluid. In the line in the flow of the labrador labor flow of the flow of the flow of the labrador in the labor flow of the labrador current at the line in the line in the labor flow of the labrador current at the labor flow of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation of the labrador current at Carson Canyon in Figure 5.2. For f = constant, conservation

 $\begin{bmatrix} v_{o\overline{\partial}x}^{} + v_{o\overline{\partial}y}^{} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \zeta_{o} + \frac{f}{h}v_{o} \end{bmatrix}^{*} = 0 \qquad (5.16)$ $\begin{bmatrix} u_{o}^{}\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + v_{o\overline{\partial}y}^{} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \zeta_{o}' - \frac{f}{h}v_{o}' + \frac{f}{h}v(0 - D_{o}') \end{bmatrix} = 0 \qquad (5.17)$

where primes refer to the lower layer, and the zero subscripts indicate the values of the variables in the geostrophic illmit, excepting $D_{\phi}(y)$ which its the depth upstream. Clearly, the terms in the square brackets are constant along streamlines. It is also clear that if there is no flow in the lower layer, no vertical velocities will arise from changes in topography and therefore the bottom boundary condition cannot influence the shape of the interface. In this case, the flow is along isoplath of π_{ϕ}^{0} provided $\phi_{0} \ll \frac{1}{2}\pi^{2}\phi_{0}$, and $\pi^{2}\phi$ does not interset, the bottom. Examining Figure 5.2, this argument, suggests that because the interface layers have been interface speeds that because the interface speeds the interface speeds the interface speeds the interface speeds that because the interface speeds the interface speeds that because the interface speeds the interface speeds that because the interface speeds that because the interface speeds the interface speeds that because the interface speeds the interface sp

- 104 -

geward the shell, the Labrador Current will be influenced by canyon topography in varying degrees as a function of the off-shell coordinate. y. Three regions of the canyon are defined in Figure 5.2. In the upper canyon region (UR). corresponding to the head, the flow is approximately barotropic, but with lower speeds due to cross-stream shear. The central canyon, or transition region (TR), is in the vicinity of the intersection of $z = -h + \eta$ with the bottom, where the flow will begin to be influenced by the stratification. In the lower canyon region (UR), which extends seaward of the transition region, the bottom lies well below the infortce.



FIGURE 5.2: Two-layer representation of the Labration Current at Carson Canyon.

Consider the upper convon region. The radii of curvature of the isobaths between =140 m and the shelf break (110 m) at and immediately upstream of the head are sufficiently large that the mean flow should be along-isobath. For example, hpical values of the radii of curvature for the 128 m isobath are 7.5 km at the head and 11 km upstream of the head. According to equation 5.12, the speed and cross-stream shear at the 128 m isobath are 7.5 km at the head and 11 km upstream of the head. According to equation 5.12, the speed and cross-stream shear at the 128 m isobath upstream of the canyon, are 13 cm s⁻¹ and 1.6 x 100⁻⁵, respectively. Therefore, $R_0^{-1} = 0.16$ and $R_{-0}^{-1} < 0.17$ at the 128 m isobath. Because R_{-0}^{-1} and R_{-0}^{-1} are both small. It is suggested that the mean current is storg-isobath at depths < 140 m at the head of Carson Caryon, as, indicated by the dynamic topography (Figure , 3.14), although no current meter data are available to support this.

The region shell/ward of the head (e.g. of the 140 m isobsth) in Figure 3.14 is somewhat perplexing. The contours of dynamic height cross isobaths, and speeds upstream appear to increase in the on-shelf direction. These effects may be artifacts of the extrapolation of dynamic heights into this shallow region using the method of Reid and Maniyla (1976).

In the transition region, cross-laobsth and cross-canyon flow were observed at moorings 81-2 and 81-3 (Figure 5.1). These directions are consistent with the local dynamic topography (Figure 3.14). The radiil of curvature of the local dynamic topography (Figure 3.14). The radii of curvature of the local dynamic topography (Figure 3.14). The radii of curvature of the local dynamic topography (Figure 3.14). The radii as 1.1 are (2 km between approximately the 146 m and 914 m isobaths at about 46* 35' W). Selection of these radii as length topograph (Figure 3.14) when U = 20 cm s⁻¹. This suggests that the relative vorticity associated with the ourspire of the path would become too large for

- 106 -

- 107 steady slong-isobath flow to be maintained (e.g. $\vec{u} \cdot \vec{v}_0 \neq 0$ in equation 5. 14), consistent with the observations.

The theory of flows over topographic depressions is not well developed. In contrast, flows over raised topographic features have been studied extensively (see the reviews by Hogg, 1980; Smith, 1979). Smith (1979: see also Gill 1982, pp. 274 - 283) discusses the effects of stratification on the horizontal deflection of Swinds, caused by a mountain ridge where rotation is important. There is a leftward deflection of isobars and streamlines beginning upstream; pronounced ageostrophic (cross-isobar) flow in the region over the ridge; and a stationary lee wave in the pressure field with a wavelength comparable to the width of the ridge. The equivalent problem for an infinite trench does not appear to have been studied, but similar phenomena are to be expected, although with differences arising from the changes in the vortex column lengths being of different sign. For example, Satchelor (1967, pp. 573 - 574), shows that downstream of a ridge, a uniform barotropic flow is deflected to the right. of its upstream direction: the same flow over a trench would be deflected to the left. It is tempting to suggest that the rightward turning of the dynamic height contours upstream of Carson Canyon and the wave-like pattern in the dynamic topography in the lee of the canyon axis are the result of a response similar to that presented by Smith (1979), but in the opposite sense. The wave-like features may, however, be associated. instead with the small unnamed canyon immediately downstream of Carson Canvon (Figures 3, 1 and 3, 14).

The velocity axis of the Labrador Current lies within the lower canyon region J.R., Figure 5.2) wherein the thick lower layer effectively isolates the upper layer flow from the topography. Accordingly, the dynamic topography > 89 dyn cm (Figure 3, 14) Indicates undisturbed, crosscanvon flow in this region.

5.5. The momentum balance in the central canyon region

The measurements to be employed, are the 1981 mean currents prior to the upweiling event shown in Figure 5.1. The v and v components of these velocities are presented below in Table 5.3.

TABLE 5.3: u and v components of velocity for 7 June. 1981 Mooring Meier. u (cm a ⁻¹) v (cm a ⁻¹) 91-1. southwester 6, 7 6, 8 81-2. contral als upper 14, 6 -0, 2 B1-3. northeaster 8, 2 -3, 1	-			T.
Mooring Meter u (cm s ⁻¹) v (cm s ⁻¹) 81-1 southwestern 6.7 6.8 81-2 central axis upper 14.6 -0.2 81-3 portheastern 6.2 -3.1	TABLE 5.3	u and v componi	ents of velocity for	7 June, 1981.
- 81-1. southwestern 6.7 6.8 81-2. central axis upper 14.60.2 81-3. northeastern 8.23.1	Mooring	Meter	u (cm s ⁻¹)	v (cm s ⁻¹)
	81-1 81-2 81-3	southwestern central axis upper northeastern	6.7 14.6 8.2	6.8 -0.2 -3.1

Values for the non-linear terms in the horizontal momentum equations were obtained with respect to the central axis mooring using the velocities from Table 5.3 and the equations below. Subscripts are defined as; are a southwestern, as a central axis upper, nen = northeastern. Primes represent the distances between the southwestern and central axis moorings; dy' in the cross-slope direction (4, 48 km), dx' in the along-slope direction (3.50 km), dx is the separation (the along-slope distance) of the northeestern-and central axis moorings (6, 14 km). In the xdirection

 and in the y-direction,

$$\frac{\partial \mathbf{v}}{\partial \mathbf{x}} = u_{cau} \left[\frac{\mathbf{v}_{cau} - \mathbf{v}_{nen}}{\Delta \mathbf{x}} \right] = 7.0 \times 10^{-5} \text{ cm s}^{-2}$$
(5.18c)

$$v \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} = v_{cau} \left[\frac{v_{swn} - v_{cau}}{\Delta y'} - \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} \frac{\Delta x'}{\Delta y'} \right] = 0.3 \times 10^{-5} \text{ cm s}^{-2} (5.18d)$$

For comparison, the Corlolis accelerations are, for the x-direction,

$$f_{cau} = 2.1 \times 10^{-5} \, \mathrm{cm \, s}^{-2}$$

and in the y-direction.

 $= 150 \times 10^{-5} \text{ cm s}^{-2}$.

It is clear that in the off-shelf (y) direction, the non-linear terms are negligibly small in comparison with the Coriolis acceleration at the central axis modring. In the cross-canyon direction on the other hand, the $u\frac{\partial u}{\partial x}$ term is an order of magnitude larger than either the Coriolis acceleration or the other non-linear term. Provided triction is not important, this sugests that in the steady state, the momentum balance in the cross-canyon direction is between the non-linear term and the pressure gradient, and is geostrophic in the off-shelf direction along the canyon axis.

5.6 The splitting of the cold core and possible steady upwelling

The warmer water, separating the two cold cores at the central axis appears at stations 238 and 28 (Figures 3.9 and 3.10), which are downstream of the secondary head (Figure 3.1). This suggests that the source of the warmer water is in the vicinity of the secondary head. In Section 5.4, it, was suggested that along-labehth flow is maintained during the turn around the lip of the canyon on the sheltward aide of the secon-

- 109

dary head. but that cross-laobath flow occurs across the northeastern wall seaward of the secondary head. This may result in a horizontal divergence at the secondary head, which one would expect to cause a decrease in the vertical thickness of the cold core. Further, such a divergence would result in steady local upwelling of the warm water needed to divide the cold core. Evidence to support this interpretation may be the deep. 0.9 cm s⁻¹ drift toward the secondary head registered by the central axis lower meter before and after the upwelling event (Figure 4.12), which could represent a compensating flow driven by the steady upwelling.

Two processes will probably result given that there is persistent upwelling, at the secondary head: 1), mixing of deep water into the Labrador Current: (2) other upwelling processes would possibly be enhanced (e.g. Blanton, Atkinson; Pietratesa and Lee 1981) At the secondary head. That the temperature and sailnity increases during the 1981 upwelling event were first observed at the northeastern meter (Chapter 4) may be evidence of this enhancement.

7 Comparison with other canyons

The circulation at Carson Canyon is dominated by the cross-canyon flow of the Labrador Current. Since this current flows with shallow water to its right. Isopycnals slope downward toward the shall, leading to the dynamical tramework discussed in the preceding acctions and sketched in Figure 5.2. It is perhaps not surprising, therefore, that the results of other canyon studies have been difficult to apply directly to this system. Mountain, Coachman and Asgaard (1978) report that barrowstric pressure drives the up- and down-axis flows observed at Barrow Canyon in the

- 110 -

Chukchi Sea. Unlike the situation at Carson Canyon, however, where the circulation is dominated by the cross-canyon flow of the Labrador Current, Barrow Canyon's axis is parallel to the major current directions of the area (Mountain, 1983, personal communication).

The model reported by Mayer et al. (1982) for the interior flow at the head of the Hudson Shelf Valley applies only where the canyon axis is shallow (~ 70 m below the shelf) and the frictional bottom, boundary layer is about 10 m thick. In that case, the boundary layer represents a significant fraction of the canyon depth, and therefore, bottom stress makes an important contribution to the dynamics. Along canyon flow is observed in the Hudson Shelf Valley and the model by Mayer et al. (1982) predicts a seaward flow along the central axis. Carson Canyon is much deeper and the frictional bottom boundary layer is probably < 5 m. Bottom stress is therefore probably less important to the Carson Canyon problem, and was lanced in the previous sections.

Below a certain depth in a canyon² called the horizon by Mayer et al. (1982). a non-zero axial pressure gradient associated with the stratification may exist. This leads to an estuarine-like, headward flow in the deep layer of the Hudson Shelf Valley. Provided the cross-canyon length scale is small enough, the pressure gradient in the lower layer is balanced by bottom stress (Mayer et al. 1982). Cannon (1972) reports that the same balance exists in Juan de Fuce Canyon. Carson Canyon is wide at the central axis mooring position and the Coriolis term would probably cause a rightward amplification of a deep baroclinic ourrent in the up-caryon sense. Nevertheless, this effect may provide an alternate explanation for the observed residual flow toward the ascondary head.

Freeland and Denman (1982) have modeled residual up-canyon flow

- 111 -

and steady upweiling in Spur Canyon off Vancouver Island. Shelfward flow within the canyon is implied by the along anyon pressure gradient associated with a persistent cyclonic gyre to the north of the canyon head and by the narrow canyon width which inhibits cross-canyon flow. Consequently, the along-canyon momentum bajance (in accordance with the coordinate system of Figure 5.1 and with z increasing positively upwards from zero at the sea surface) is given as.

 $v \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + w \frac{\partial v}{\partial z} = \frac{-1 \partial p}{p \partial y}.$

where $\frac{\partial\rho}{\partial y}$ is the pressure gradient associated with the geostrophic flow above the canyon. This mean current flows cross-canyon, but with shallow water to the left, so that isopyopals slope up toward the shelf. Within the canyon, the pressure gradient induces sheltward flow (1, e, v < 0 in equation 5. 19), and the condition that steady flow be parallel to the isopyonals.

(5.19)

(5.20)

$$\vec{u} \cdot \vec{\nabla} \rho = v \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial v} + w \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial z} = 0$$

therefore requires that steady shelfward upwelling occur. It is to be noted that this flow can be coupled to the shoreward transport in the bottom Ekman layer on the shelf, which is to the left of the mean current essociated with the gyre.

Useful insights are gained by qualitatively applying the results obtained by Freeland and Denman (1982) and by Mayer et al. (1982) to Carson Canyon, assuming initially that within the canyon transverse flow is negligible. At Carbon Canyon, the pressure associated with the geostrophic flow decreases off-shelf which, using (5.19), would imply a seaward current (v > 0) within the canyon. Because kopyonals slope upward away from the shell (because the mean current flows with the shell to its

- 112 -

right), equation 5.20 implies steady <u>saward</u> upwelling along isopyohais. At Spur' Canyon, the sloping bottom was represented by Freeland and Denman as a streamline parallel to the axis and the source for the upwelled water is inflow at the mouth from the Juan de Fuca Canyon. This approach meets with difficulty at Carson Canyon, because the isopyonais intersect the bottom. Furthermore, a source for the seaward, along isopyonal flow is required. This could be the seaward transport in the bottom Ekman layer beneath the Labrador Current on the shelf, or a return flow from deeper water along the canyon axis of the type discussed by Mayer et al. (1982). If it is assumed that the pressure gradient which drives the seaward upwelling drives the bottom flow as well, then the following relation gives the along-canyon momentum balance in the bottom boundary layer:

- 113 -

 $0 = \frac{-1}{p} \frac{\partial p}{\partial y} + A_y \frac{\partial^2 v}{\partial y^2}.$

where $\frac{\partial E}{\partial y}$ 0. This balance necessarily implies offshore flow at the bottom. Suppose, however, that a "horizon", similar to that proposed by Mayer et al. (1992), forms the upper boundary to the bottom layer. At the horizon, the offshore pressure gradient is assumed to vanish. Equation 5.21 then implies shoreward flow in the bottom layer, since the pressure gradient is due solely to siratification.

An order of magnitude estimate of this shoreward flow can be obtained using the approach of Mayer et al. (1982). Assuming that the bottom layer is vertically mixed, then it follows that p independent of z, and that the pressure below the horizon at some depth z is

 $p(z) = p(-D + \Delta) + p(y)g(-D + \Delta - z)$

(5. 22)

(5.21)

where D = the bottom depth, Δ = thickness of the bottom layer, and (-D + Δ) is the depth of the horizon. The axial pressure gradient is there-

(5. 23)

(5.24

(5.25)

 $\frac{\partial p}{\partial y} = g \frac{\partial p}{\partial y} \left[(-D + \Delta) - z \right]$

since $\frac{\partial p}{\partial z}$ is assumed to vanish at the horizon. Substitution of (5.23) into (5.21) and transformation of the result using $\gamma = \frac{(-D + \Delta) - z}{\Delta}$ the dimensionless depth below the horizon, gives,

$$A_{\nu}\frac{\partial^2 \nu}{\partial \tau^2} = \frac{g \, \partial \rho}{\rho \, \partial y} \Delta^3 \tau \; .$$

fore

Equation 5.24 is integrated subject to the boundary conditions; $\frac{\partial \mathbf{v}}{\partial T} = 0$ at $\Upsilon = 0$ (the shear stress is zero at the horizon), and $\mathbf{v} = 0$ at $\Upsilon = 1$ (the no-slip condition at the bottom). Therefore, the flow injuste bottom layer

$$= \frac{g}{6\rho A_{\rm o}} \frac{\partial \rho}{\partial y} \Delta^3 (\gamma^3 - 1)$$

which is equivalent to the result given by Mayer et al. (1982). An estimate of the along-axis density gradient is obtained from the 34.6 and 34.7 ppt isohalines shown in the 1980, central axis salinity section of Figure 3.11 (bottom). These isohalines, are about 4 km apart at the bottom, yielding a positive density gradient of 0.05 × 10⁻³ g cm⁻³ / 4 × 10⁵ cm = 1.25 × 10⁻¹⁰ g cm⁻⁴. Because the high frequency currents have amplitudes greater than the 0.9 cm⁻³⁻¹ residual (see the 1 component record in Figure 4.4), the eddy viscosity is estimated using the mean amplitude U_{ay} of the high frequency currents that $A_{x} = 32 \times 10^{-2} U_{ay}^{-2}$ (Gill 1982; p. 332), which gives $A_{y} = 8 \text{ cm}^{2} \text{ s}^{-1}$. It is not possible to estimate 4 from the Carson Canyon data. It seems reasonable, however, to take $\Delta = 10$ m as a

rough estimate of the thickness of this frictional bottom boundary layer. Evaluation of (5.25) at the horizon ($\dot{r} = 0$) yields a shelfward velocity of v = -2.5 cm s⁻¹, which is the same order of magnitude as the measured residual.

In summary, seaward upwelling below the lip of Carson Canyon may be supported by inflow from the bottom Ekman layer at the head of the canyon or by up-canyon flow in a density-driven frictional bottom laver. The latter interpretation is supported by the observation of the 0.9 cm s⁻¹ drift toward the secondary head at 10 m above bottom. It is not clear, however, that the assumption of no cross-canyon flow is valid in Carson Canvon. This assumption depends on two conditions (Freeland and Denman 1982): 1) that the width of the canyon $\langle R \rangle$ = the length scale of the geostrophic flow above the canyon, and 2) that the walls be vertical. At Carson Canyon, condition 1) cannot be readily justified as an approximation because the width # A, # 8 km and condition 2) is not immediately satisfied because of the ~, 1:10 slope of the walls (Figure '1.2) ... As a comparison, R, = 17 km = 3 x width of Spur Canyon, and Freeland and Denman question whether the 1:7' bottom slope of the walls at Spur Canyon is sufficiently close to vertical. Finally, it has also been sucgested that the residual upcanyon drift might be driven by steady, topographically controlled upwelling in the vicinity of the secondary head.

- 116 - CHAPTER 6 WIND-DRIVEN UPWELLING

During the upwelling event of 1981, a counter current existed beneath the southwestward flowing Labrador Current (see Chapter 4). The counter current was northeastward at the central axis upper meter, in the same direction as the peak wind stress (Figures 4.16 and 4.17). A current reversal at the southwestern (81-1) mooring and a near reversal at the northeastern (81-1) mooring occurred nearly simultaneously and 0.25 - 1 d earlier than increases in mean temperature (Floure 4, 15) and salinity (compare Flaures 4, 6, 4, 7 and 4, 9). Further, the speeds started to decrease about 0.25 -0.5 d before the major changes in direction. The temperature and salinity increases at the northeastern mooring led those at the southwestern by about 0.5 d (Figure 4.15). Because the phase speeds of long surface waves are much greater than those of long interfacial waves, the delay between the changes in velocity and those in temperature and salinity may fesult from a lag between the corresponding barotropic and the baroclinic responses to the wind impulse. The distance along the isobath of depth, and = 160 m, between the northeastern and southwestern moorings is 20 km. A barotropic wave of phase speed an would require 8 min to traverse this distance. In contrast, the first-mode baroclinic wave speed = $R_1 \times f = 0.8$ m s⁻¹ (where $R_2 = 8$ km is the Internal Rossby deformation radius discussed in Chapter 5) implies a time difference of 7 h between the occurrence of the baroclinic response at the southwestern and northeastern moorings. If the baroclinic response is characterized by interfacial Kelvin waves, which travel with shallow water to the right, the response at the southwestern mooring would lag that at the northeastern mooring by this amount.

6.1 The transient upwelling response to a wind-impulse

In order to show how the deformation of the sea surface by the wind stress might cause a current reversal at the shelf break, consider a twolayer representation of the Labrador Current over the continental slope (Figure 6.D.' If the Labrador Current were not present, the equilibrium sea surface at z = 0 and the equilibrium interface between the two layers at z = -h would both be level. Here, the Labrador Current is directed into the page, parallel to the x axis with an undisturbed velocity of tv_0 in the upper layer. The initial, undisturbed sea surface deplacement (η) is negative. Both decrease in magnitude with distance y away from the shelf. The initial velocity of in the bottom layer is zero. (Primed, veri-bables refer to the lower, layer.) The momentum equations in the upper layer.

(6, 1)

(6.3)

(6.4)

 $Iu_0 = \frac{-1}{\rho}p_y$ $g = \frac{-1}{\rho} p_z$

and in the lower layer.

 $\phi = \frac{-1}{p'}p'_{y}$ $g = \frac{-1}{p'}p'_{y}$

where subscripts denote differentiation, σ is the acceleration due to gravity, ρ is the pressure, and ρ is the density. The sea surface elevation is defined by $\pi(y,t)$, and the elevation of the interface above -h is given by $\pi'(y,t)$. Equations 6.2 and 6.4 may be vertically integrated to obtain.

- 117 -



-h +n' < z <

-h + T

z. < -h HAT

(6. 5)

(8.6)

(8.7)

(8.9)

 $p = pg(\eta - z)$

In the upper layer, and

 $p' = \rho g (\eta + h - \eta') + \rho' g (-h + \eta' - z)$

or,

 $p' = \rho g \left(\eta - z \right) + \Delta \rho g \left(-h + \eta' - z \right)$

In the lower layer (where $\Delta p = p' - p < p$). Sea level atmospheric pressure has been set to zero. When differentiated with respect to y, the pressure gradient terms for the upper and lower layer become respectively.

 $\frac{1}{\rho'}p'_{y} = g\eta_{y} + g'\eta'_{y}$

where

 $g' = \frac{\Delta \rho}{\rho'}g = \frac{\Delta \rho}{\rho}g$

since Ap << p (Boussinesq approximation).

Equations 6.5 and 6.6 are substituted into the horizontal momentum equations 6.1 and 6.3 to obtain.

 $f u_0 = -g \eta_{0y}$ (6.8

 $0 = g \eta_{0y} + g' \eta'_{0y}$

The subscript 0 refers to the undisturbed state of the Labrador Current.

Suppose that a short time after the wind impulse occurs, the sea surface is depressed impulsively, by a factor η , with 1 η_{u} 1 < 1 η_{0} 1. The

character of the response is expected to be determined by the properties

of the waves generated on the sea surface and the interface. For time scales greater than 1/f after the impulse, the time derivatives of velocity may be ignored, and long waves will have traveled distances greater than the Rossby radii of deformation. Because the phase speed of long interfacial gravity waves is very much less than that of long surface gravity waves. It is reasonable to suppose that there is a time lag between the occurrence of maximum deformation of the sea surface and ther-of the interface in response to the impulse. Because the sea surface along is expected to decrease in response to an upweiling favorable wind, this time lag implies an imbalanced pressure gradient in the lower layer. Assuming addrophy, the resultant offshelf momentum balance for the lower layer.

 $a \, \bar{n}_{y} + a \, n_{0_{y}} + a \, n_{0_{y}} = -i \, \bar{u} \, > 0$

where \vec{u}' is the current induced in the lower layer by the non-zero pressure gradient. Taking into account the signs in the last relation, $\vec{u}'' < 0$. That is, a counter current forms in the lower layer, to the left of the shelf break. Similarly, the addition of $\pi \vec{x}_{0}$ on the right hand side of (6.8) reduces the velocity in the upper layer. Evidence for a reduction in the upper layer flow with a concurrent reversal in the lower layer at Carson. Canyon were presented in Chapter 4 (see the discussion of the gestrophic velocity profiles in section 4.5.2). Barcolinic adjustment, and the associated upwelling of deep water, should then take place later, since the barcolinic response time is expected to be determined by the (slower) Internal waves. Afterwards, the system will return to the pro-avent equilibrium. Petitey and O'Brien (1976)² discuss theoretical and observational systemce that upwelling fetaxation times are at least 2.5 d. consistent with

- 120 -

hat observed here (Figure 4. 15a).

6.2 Steady upwelling with a shelf break jet

A comprehensive model for the upwelling event of 1981 at Carson Canyon would require that topography, continuous stratification and the shear of the Labrador Current be considered. Killworth (1978), however, concludes that even the upwelling problem posed by a combination of the first two conditions will require a sophisticated numerical model. Wang (1980) has developed a numerical model of the very complex upwelling situation for a simple canyon geometry with stratification. That problem was simplified somewhat by the addition of a coastal boundary at the canyon head. Very localized upwelling may be induced at a canyon because of the Increased along-canyon transport associated with those short waves which result from scattering of large scale continental shelf waves (for which the transport is predominantly cross-canyon) by the canyon. A solution for the problem of shelf break upweiling in the presence of a major, horizontally sheared current has not been previously addressed in the literature. Niller (1969) investigated the upwelling response at the base of a free baroclinic jet (not coastally trapped) due to wind stress parallel to the jet axis. The principal feature was the role of the non-linear interaction of wind-induced velocities via the mean. cross-stream shear. A similar formulation is considered below coastally trapped case.

An snalyto, two-layer model of time-dependent upwelling in the presence of a horizontally sheared current is presented below. The model is based on a coastal upwelling scheme presented by Alli (1992, pp. 403 -409), which uses the linearized momentum equations to describe the barcolinic response to a continuous wind stress that is suddenly applied. The problem is made non-linear by the addition of a term involving the cross-stream shear of an upper layer jet. The continental slope is represented by a vertical wall at the shelf break, to the left of which lies the field bottom (Figure 8.1). A is the thickness of the upper layer and A' is the thickness of the lower layer. Only the region within = 30 km of the shell break wall is considered, so that the contribution of ine barotropic mode to the displacement of the interface (considered by Caanady.-1982, pp. §§-91) will be ignored. (The barotropic mode is only important at distances on the order of the Rossby deformation radius (Pedicsky 1976, p. 78) which is = 300 km for the shelf break depth of 100 m at the settern Grand Bank.)

The coordinate system is that defined in Figure 6.1, with v and v the positive southwestward (+x), and off-shell (+y) velocity components respectively. z is positive vertically upwards. The wind atress at the sea surface, $-r^2$, acts in the x direction (i.e. northeastwards) and is spatially uniform. It is assumed that along-slope gradients are negligible compared to cross-slope gradients so that $\frac{\partial}{\partial x}$ terms may be taken as zero in all cases. The effects of the along-slope topography at Carson Carson the upwelling will be discussed qualitatively at a taker point. Interfacial and bottom-stress will be ignored. The set of horizontal momentum equations for the upper layer are:

(6, 10)

(6. 12)

The set of equations for the lower layer are.

 $u_t + vu_y - tv = \frac{1}{p}r_z$

v,+10 = -1p

",- fv' = 0

- .122 -

The vertical momentum balance is assumed to be hydrostatic (e.g. equations 6.2 and 6.4). Therefore, equations 6.5 and 6.6 will be used for the pressure gradient terms.

The vertically integrated continuity equations are.

 $\frac{\partial}{\partial t}(\eta - \eta') + \frac{\partial}{\partial y}[(h + \eta - \eta') \sqrt{f}^2 = 0$

for the upper layer, and

 $v'_{t}+fu' = \frac{-1}{n'}p'_{t}$

 $\frac{\partial \eta'}{\partial t} + \frac{\partial}{\partial v} [(h' + \eta') v'] = 0$

for the lower layer. In these and subsequent equations, the velocity com[±] ponents are vertically averaged over each layer.

After substituting 6.5 and 6.6 in equations 6.1) and 8.13, and making use of the rigid lid approximation. $1\pi_1 < < 1\pi_1^2$ (which is expected to yield the baroclinic response), the vertically integrated equations become, for the upper layer.

$$+ v u_y - t v = \frac{\tau_0}{\rho(h-\eta')}$$

 $v_t + t u = -g \eta_y$

3 [(h-1')v] = 1'

and for the lower layer $u'_{1} - tv' = 0$

v' + fu' = -g'n' - gny

a [(h'+η')v'] = -η'

(6. 19)

(8, 16)

(6. 17)

(6. 18)

(6. 13)

(6, 14)

(6.15)

(8.20)

(6.21)

where it has been assumed that $i\eta | << h$. For brevity, scripts are dropped from π_{Ω}^{k} with the understanding that τ refers to the wind stress.

- 124

Before the upwelling event begins, the undisturbed, horizontally sheared Labrador Current flows in the +x direction with a velocity

 $u_0 = \frac{-q}{l} \eta_{0}$ (6.22)

(with $v_0 = 0$) in the upper layer. The velocity initially is zero in the lower layer (i.e., $u'_0 = v'_0 = 0$), so that π_0 and π'_0 are related by equation 6.20 with the left hand side = 0. The momentum balance before, the event is given by equations 6.8 and 6.9. Let

 \vec{u} , \vec{v} , $\vec{\tau}$, $\vec{\eta}$, and $\vec{\eta}$ are perturbations caused by the applied wind stress. These relations are substituted into equations (6.16) – (6.21) and the tildes are dropped. (With the assumption that $\vec{u}_y << \vec{u}_{0y}$, the only formal change occurs in equation (6.16), where \vec{u}_y becomes \vec{u}_{0y} .) The following operations are performed on the indicated equations:

-f x (6.16) + at (6.17) for the upper layer

 $v_{tt} = tvu_0 + t^2 v + \frac{f \tau}{\rho(h - \eta')} + g \eta_{vt} = 0$

u' = ū' v = v

 $\eta = \eta_0 + \tilde{\eta}$ $\eta' = \eta'_0 + \tilde{\eta}'$

and -1 x (8.19) $-\frac{3}{4t}$ (8.20) for the lower. The results are, for the upper and lower layers respectively.

(6. 23)

Equation (6.21) is used to eliminate the η' term in the last relation and the approximation $|\eta'_0| >> |\eta'_1|$ is made. This result, combined with equation 6.23, yields.

- 125 -

$$v'_{tt} + t^2 v' - g' \frac{\partial}{\partial y^2} (h' + \eta'_0) v'] = v_{tt} - t v u_0 + t^2 v + \frac{t \tau}{\rho(h - \eta'_0)}$$
 (6.25)

A boundary condition of no flow across the shelf break is determined by the vertical wall at the shelf break (Figure 6.1). This selection might be criticized, but it is not entirely unwarranted. Exchange of water across the shelf break in the real ocean is probably limited to the bottom Ekman laver. Some models (e.g. Johnson and Killworth, 1975, and Lill, 1979) explicitly result in a situation whereby most of the water upwelled along a bottom laver of the continental slope does not cross the shelf break, but instead recirculates back out over the continental slope and above the bot-It has been found theoretically by Johnson and Killworth tom laver. (1975) that no normal flow across the shelf break occurs in the interior, and that on-shelf flow, is restricted to the bottom Ekman layer. This layer is probably < 5 m thick at Carson Canyon (see section 5.2). On-shelf flow, restricted to a 5-10 m thick bottom layer, is reported by Janowitz and Pletrafesa (1980) for a wind-induced upwelling event at the New England shelf break. According to Huthnance (1981, pp. 202 - 215), upwelling, the effects of eddles or meanders, and mixing all seem to be restricted to within ~O (A,) of the shelf break. Finally, the Ekman transport in the bottom boundary layer underlying the Labrador Current is to the left, which is offshelf. The restriction of negligible flow across the shelf break is therefore not purely arbitrary, and it provides a boundary condition at the shelf break in the absence of a canyon. Consequently

(6.24)

= 128 eliminating π'_{p} from equations. 6.18 and 6.21 and integrating with respect to y. the boundary conditions v(y=0) = v'(y=0) = 0, requires that.

$$(h-\eta'_{0})v = -(h'+\eta'_{0})v'$$

(6.26)

(6.30)

A single equation for v^* results when equation 6.28 is used to substitute for v in (6.25);

$$r'_{tt} + l^2 r' - l \frac{(h' + \eta'_0)}{D} r' u_{0y} - g' \left[\frac{h - \eta'_0}{D} \right] \frac{l_0^2}{\eta^2} \xi(h' + \eta'_0) r' = \frac{\tau l}{\rho D}$$
(6.27)

where D = h+h'.

A steady solution is sought, so v_{H}^{*} is taken equal to zero. This requirement again supposes that a time of at least $O(t^{-1})$ has passed since the beginning of the applied wind stress (Gin, 1982, p. 398). In this analysis, it is assumed that D = 3000 m is the depth at the top of the continental rise and that h = O(100 m). Therefore, $D = h^{*} > h$ leads to the possibility of assuming that $I = v_{0} | \ll h^{*}$ in (6.27). Making all the above assumptions, equation 6.27 becomes.

$$t^{2} - tu_{0}(\mathbf{y})\mathbf{v}' - g'(h - \eta'_{0})\mathbf{v}'_{yy} = \frac{\tau I}{RD}$$
(6.28)

By making the substitution $\sigma \eta_{0y} = -\sigma' \eta'_{0y}$ and differentiating (6.22) with respect to y, the result.

 $u_{0_{\gamma}} = \frac{g}{r} \pi'_{0_{\gamma\gamma}}$ (6.29)
gives a 2^{nd} order differential equation in π'_{0} and v' upon substitution in

(8.28).

$$a^{2} - a^{\prime} \eta^{\prime}_{0} \gamma^{\prime} - a^{\prime} (b - \eta^{\prime}_{0}) v^{\prime}_{yy} = \frac{\tau i}{\rho D}$$

A relation for π'_0 in terms of y is now sought. In Chapter 5, the horizontal spear relation.
(where a = Internal Rossby deformation radius) was shown to provide an approximate description of the Labrador Current. Similarly, an expression for $\eta_{(1)}$ is,

- 127 -

 $u = U_0 e^{-y/a}$

$$r_0 = -\hat{\eta}_0' e^{-y/q}$$
 (6.31)

where $\hat{\pi}'_0$ is the initial separation between the interface (below) and the upper layer at z = -h (above) at the shelf break. Substitution of (6.31) into (6.30) results in a 2^{nd} order differential equation for v'.

$$\mathbf{v}'\left[t^2 + \frac{g'}{a^2}\hat{\pi}'_0 e^{-\gamma/a}\right] - g'(h + \hat{\pi}'_0 e^{-\gamma/a})\mathbf{v}'_{yy} = \frac{\tau f}{\rho D}$$
(6.32)

The solution to (6,32) is not known. However, a solution to (6.30) can be obtained if the exponential form of η'_0 (equation 6.31) is approximated by a parabolic shape.

$$\dot{n}_{0}^{\prime} = -\frac{\hat{\pi}_{0}^{\prime}}{l^{2}} (L-\gamma)^{2}$$
 (6.33)

where L is the distance from the shelf break at which η'_0 becomes equal to zero (Figure 6.1).

Putting (6.33) in (6.30) and dividing the combination by $-\sigma'h$, the following differential equation is obtained.

$$\left[1 + \frac{\hat{\pi}'_0}{hL^2} (L-y)^2\right] \mathbf{v}'_{yy} - \left[\frac{f^2}{g'h} + \frac{2\hat{\pi}'_0}{hL^2}\right] \mathbf{v}' = \frac{\tau t}{\rho Dhg'}$$
(6.34)

The "exterior" solution for $\pi'_0 = 0$ when $\gamma > L$ is found from the reduction of (6.34).

 $-\frac{t^2}{\pi'h}v' = -\frac{\tau t}{\rho Dhg}$

. (6.3

(5 12)

One of the boundary conditions is $\lim v = a$ constant. Therefore, the $y \ge L$ exterior (*ex*) solution is,

(6.36

V'ay = Ae y/a

where A is a constant to be determined and $a = \frac{(g'h)^{1/2}}{T} = 7-8$ km is the internal Rossby deformation radius for 0 = h' > h (see, Chapter 5). By matching (5.86) with the "Interior" solution of equation 6.34 for $\eta'_0 \in 0$ when $0 \leq y \leq L$, the constant A may be determined. Before deriving the interior solution, however, a value for L must first be chosen. For $L = 3 \times a = 21-24$ km. (6.33) is a good approximation to the exponential form of the interface (Figure 6.2).





- 128

The figure for L quoted above is used in Appendix C to compute the interior, solution of (§.34) using the method of Frobenius for the special case $\frac{\hat{T}_{0}}{D} = 0.9$, and to obtain the value of A in equation 6.36.* Solutions from Appendix C are reproduced here: for the interior ("in"), $r'_{in} = \frac{T}{\rho I D} \frac{1}{6} \left[0.2335(1+6\xi^{2}+5\xi^{4}) \right]$ (6.37) - 2.403(ξ +2 ξ^{3} +0.6 ξ^{5} -0.11429 ξ^{7} +0.647619 ξ^{9} , + 5

$$= \frac{\hat{\eta}'_0}{\hbar} \left(1 - \frac{y}{L} \right) \quad \text{or} \quad \eta'_0 = -\hbar \xi$$

0.54.5.1

and for the exterior (*ex*),

 $v'_{ex} = \frac{\tau}{\rho I D} \left[1 - 2.55 e^{-y/a} \right]$ L 4

In the absence of a sheared jet. (6.36) again results but A is determined solely by the boundary condition, v' = 0 at y = 0. In that case, $v' = \frac{T}{2} \left[1 - \frac{-T}{2} \right]$

(6. 39)

 $\mathbf{v}' = \frac{\tau}{\rho f O} \left[1 - g^{-\mathbf{y}/\mathbf{a}} \right] \qquad 0 \le \mathbf{y} \qquad (6, 40)$

which is the usual result (see Casnady 1982, p. 89). At the eastern Grand Bank (Figure 1, 1 shows the bathymetry), where $\tau < 0$, (6, 40) indicates that in the Assence of a sheared jet, there would be shellward flow in the lower layer which decays exponentially away from the shell break. Note that the results for v in (6.37) - (6.40) are independent of time. Solutions 6.37 - 6.40 have been normalized by $\frac{\tau}{f D D}$ and the results for v in (6.37). Comparing the solution for v when there is no preexising current, to v in and v is in Figure 6.3 (bottom).

- 129 -



Top, normalized upper-layer velocities (+v norm is on-shelf). Bottom, normalized lower-layer velocities (+v' norm is off-shelf). Line = 'no fet', star = interior, and triangle = exterior solution in the presence of a fet.

reduced by the presence of a jet, and that the maximum reduction in the magnitude of v^{*} is about 14% at χ = 2 s. Therefore, on-shelf flow may be suppressed because of the Labrador Current. •

The velocity in the upper layer is simply found by using equation 6.26, which is rewritten as.

$$=\frac{-(h'+\eta'_0)}{(h-\eta'_0)} v'$$
 (6.41)

Therefore, when $\eta'_0 \neq 0$, substitution of ξ from (6.38), and taking the limit $\frac{h}{h} >> 1 > \xi^2$ (0Cy <L), gives the interior solution for the upper layer.

(8 49)

$$l_{in} = \frac{-\tau}{\rho f D} \frac{h'}{h} \frac{1}{(1+\xi^2)} \frac{1}{6}$$

x (0.239(1+6 2+5 4)

- 2.403(E+2 E +0.6 E -0.11429 E +0.047619 E + 5]

0 < y < L

or.

$$n = \frac{-\tau}{\rho f D} \frac{h'}{h} \frac{1}{(1+\xi^2)} v'_{In} \qquad 0 \le y \le L$$
(6.43)

In the case where $\pi'_0 = 0$, the exterior solution for v using (6.39) and (6.41) is.

$$x = \frac{-\tau}{\rho I D} \frac{h'}{h} \left[1 - 2.55 e^{-y/a} \right] L \zeta y \qquad (8.44)$$

 $\alpha = \frac{-h}{h} v'_{ex} - c c c$

The solution for v in the absence of a jet is found by combining (6.41) and (6.40) so that.

- 131 -

132 $v = \frac{-h'}{h}v' = \frac{-\tau}{\rho/\rho}\frac{h'}{h}\left[1 - e^{-\gamma/a}\right] \quad 0 \leq \gamma \leq L$ (6.46)

which again is the usual result. As in the case for the lower laver, the upper layer, cross-slope velocities are independent of time. Note too that the velocities in the upper laver are opposite to those in the lower laver. Values normalized by $\frac{-\tau}{\sigma(0)} \frac{h^2}{h}$ for the upper layer, cross-slope flow according to the interior solution (6.40), the exterior solution (6.42), and the solution in the absence of a jet (6.46) are shown in Figure 6.3 (top). The upper layer velocities are considerably reduced in the presence of the jet, as may be shown by the 42% reduction between y = a and y = 2 a (about 7 - 14 km from the shelf break).

An expression for η' , (also called η' , before dropping the tilde in equation 6.23); the perturbation of the interface from n' at equilibrium for 0 4 y 4 L, is derived by solving equation 6.21. (or equivalently, Here, equation 6.21 is expanded and the approximation $|\eta'_0| >> |\eta'|$ (made earlier in equation 6.25) is assumed, so

-n't = n'0 v' + (h'+n'0)v'y

(6. 47)

Equation 6.47 for the interior with η'_0 given by (6.33) is.

 $-\eta'_{l0} = 2 \frac{\hat{\eta}'_0}{l} \left[1 \frac{\gamma}{L} \right] v'_{l0} + \left[h' - \hat{\eta}'_0 \left[1 \frac{\gamma}{L} \right]^2 \right] v'_{l0}$

Substitution of £ (6.38) in the last equation and noting

 $\frac{d}{dy} = \frac{-1}{1} \frac{\hat{\pi}'_0}{h} \frac{d}{dt} \text{ yields},$

The approximation. $\frac{h}{h} >> 1 > \xi^2$ (06/4L) is made (also used parlier in connection with equation 6.41) which removes the ξ^2 term from equation 6.49, $\frac{h}{h}$ is replaced by 0.9 (see Appendix C), L by 3 *a*, and (6.49) rearranged so that,

$$\mathcal{P}_{i}a_{t} = \frac{-\overline{\{0,9\}}}{3 a} \frac{h}{h} \left\{ 2t \frac{h}{h} : \mathbf{v}_{in} - \mathbf{v}_{in} \right\}$$
(8, 50)

Integration of (8.50) with respect to t with the boundary condition that $\eta'(t=0) = 0$, and substitution for v'_{in} from (8.39) yield the interfor solution for the perturbation of the interface.

$$n'_{in} = \frac{-\pi i}{p t_{a}} \frac{h'}{D}$$
 (6.51)

$$x \frac{10.9}{18} \left\{ 2 \frac{h}{h} \left[0.2335 (\xi + 6\xi^2 + 5\xi^5) \right] \right\}$$

 $= 2.424 \left(\xi^2 + 2\xi^4 + 0.6\xi^6 - 0.11429\xi^6 + 0.047619\xi^{10} \right) + 5$

- [0. 2335 (128 + 208³)

0 < y < L

. The exterior solution to the time integral of (6.47), with $\eta'_0 = 0$ and η'_0 given by (6.39), is,

$$T_{ex} = \frac{-\pi t}{\rho t a} \frac{h'}{D} 2.55 e^{-\gamma/a}$$

-Tt h' e-y/a

In the case where there is no pre-existing sheared jet, the solution to (6.47) using (6.40) for v' is simply.

0.5 4

(6. 53)

(6. 52)





Normalized n. Positive n prime norm refers to upward deflections. Line = 'no jet', star = interior, and triangle = exterior solution in the presence of a jet.

It may be seen in Figure 6.4 that the elevation of the interface at the shell break (y = 0) is reduced by 20%. In the case where a jet is present. Interestingly, upwelling is enhanced at distances 3.1.5 a, or, > 10 km away from the shell break. A peak is evident at y = 3a. Careful inspection of Figure 6.3 (bottom) shows that there is an inflection point at y = 3a. The flattening of the curve implies that the second derivative of this lower layer velocity is not continuous there. This inflaction might be due that is sumption made in equation 6.28 that $h > n'_{0}$ before taking the 2nd derivative with respect to y. The discontinuity does

- 134 -

not result from truncation of the polynomial equation. C.18b of Appendix C. used to solve for v'_{in} . Calculation of the derivative of C.18b (see Table C.2b) shows that the resultant series is convergent, and that the maximum error is only 2% because of truncation: At y = 3a, upwelling is greater by 30% when a jet is present.

6.3 Discussion

Figure 6.3 shows that velocities are reduced in both layers when a shelf break jet is present. Nevertheless, transports must remain the upper and lower layers individually, because the cross-slope motion of water is utilimately driven by the Ekman transport in the open octean. The decreased velocities are the result of an increase in the length solite which is called the "effective internal deformation radius". To see how the absence of a sheared jet implies. With u_0 and π'_0 equation 6.28 is given by (6.35) and the solution is as given by (6.40).

The typical length scale is the internal deformation radius, $a = \frac{10^{-n}}{r} = 7$ km, which may be seen to arise from equation 6.35, and therefore, from equation 6.28. In an analogous festion,

g' (h-1'0)

(8.54)

is the effoctive internal deformation radius for the sheared jet case according to equation 6.28, . By scaling η_0^* by $-\overline{\eta}^*$ (found to be 90 m in Appendix C) and combining (8.29) and (6.81) η_0^* u_0^* . (6.54) becomes,

- 135



 $\frac{1+a_{a}}{1+\frac{2}{6}a_{a}} = 1.26a$

Since $a = \frac{\Psi^{n}}{f}$, and with $a_{n} = \frac{\pi}{h} = 0.9$ (as determined in Appendix C), the new length scale is therefore.

Consequently, a' is 26% more than a. or, # 8.8 km. Note that since the effect of shear $\{u_0\}$ is a reduction of a; but that the effect of the initial deflection of the interface $\{h_0'\}$ is an increase of a. the presence of a current (a linear slope for $\hat{\mu}_0'$) is probably more important than shear in reducing the upwelling at the shelf break. At least this is so for the parameters choosen to represent the Labrador Current.

This model does not consider the shear on the right hand add of the Labrador Current looking downerream. The effects of bottom slope would have to be considered in that case and the path to a solution is not clear. Nevertheles, from previous discussion it seems that the downward sloping isopythelis associated with the Labrador Current are more important to the suppression of upwelling than is the shear. Also, this model does not take into account the change in sign of the shear at the case of the Labrador Current. Niller (1969) has examined the effects on upwelling of wind streas over a sheared jet through the non-linear term. His results suggest that downwelling could be produced slong the ads of the Labrador. Current by an upatream-directed wind streas. 6.4 Localized wind-driven upweiling at Carson Canyon?

In Chapter 4, a comparison of CTD data from 1980 and 1981 Indicated that the vertical structure along Carson Canyon's central axis is strongly perturbed by the upwelling event close to the shell break. The amplitude of the temperature and salinity changes at the central axis uppar meter are lower than at the shell break meters. These observations are consistent with the result that the magnitude of the disturbance (e.g. the upward motion of the interface given by equations 6.50 - 6.52) should decrease almost deponentially away from the shell break. The question is whether this effect is more or less pronounced at the canyon.

- 137 -

Shaffer (1976) discusses data which were collected in a canyon of dimensions similar to Carson Canyon, but off the northwestern coast of Africa. Density sections drawn from CTD transects parallel to the canyon axis indicated that upwelling of intermediate layer (-300 m) water due to an along-shellwind stress was most intense in a O(3 km) wide zone at the head. Mean vertical velocities of 10⁻² to 10⁻¹ cm s⁻¹ were directly measured in the fixed upwelling center which formed at the head of the canyon using free floating, neutrally buoyant vertical current meters. Very much smaller velocities were found outside the zoffe.

No data are evailable in the far field during the Carson Canyon upwelling event of June. 1981. and therefore the extent to which this event might have been amplified at the canyon is not known. However, similar wind-induced upwelling events, but in the absence of a strong jet. have been observed at the shelf break off Nova Scotla (Peirle, 1963). Upwelling events associated with off-shelf Etman surface transports were caused by along-slope winds of speed > 10 m s⁻¹ blowing for 2 oppore days. and October to December 1977. Vertical velocities of 0.05 - 0.2 cm s⁻¹ are estimated from the abcent of isotherms from intermediate#depths. On-shelf bottom currents of about 1 m s⁻¹ peck speed are reported. It is suggested that variations in the along-slope topography could amplify the cross-shelf currents.

CHAPTER 7

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

7.1 Summary

There are essentially three parts to this thesis: 1) analysis of the observations pertaining to the mean flow of the Labrador Current at Carson Canyon. 2) analysis of the observations of a time-dependent wind-induced upweiling event in the canyon in 1981, 3) a model of wind-induced steady coastal upweiling in the presence of a coastally trapped let.

- 139 -

The mean flow characteristics at Carson Canvon were synthesized from data collected in 1980 and in 1981. The dynamic topographymot the 5 dbar surface relative to 200 dbar. cross-slope CTD sections of temperature and salinity, and moored current meter measurements from both years were combined to produce a mean flow pattern. The principal characteristics of the pattern are: predominantly along-isobath flow in the far field up- and downstream of the canyon, cross-isobath and cross-canyon flow at the northeastern wall and central axis, along-isobath flow at the head and at the southwestern wall, wave-like features in the canyon lee, solitting of the cold (< -1 °C) temperature core downstream of the secondary head, and a deep return flow toward the secondary head at the central axis. The influence of stratification and topography on the mean flow was examined using a 2-layer, conceptual model, and arguments based on the conservation of potential vorticity. The mean flow models presented by Mayer et al. (1982) and Freeland and Denman (1982) are applied to Carson Canyon.

A wind-driven upwelling event of about 5 d duration occurred as a result of a storm with peak wind-speeds of 28 m s⁻¹ directed parallel to

the shelf break in the vicinity of the canyon. The onset of the event was defined as a simultaneous reversal of the measured current on the southwestern side of the canyon and a near-reversal on the northeastern side near the shelf break at 145 m depth. 10 m above bottom on 8 June. Abrupt temperature (2.8 °C) and salinity (1.2 ppt) increases associated with brief periods of on-shelf flow occurred at these locations about 1 d after the start of variations in the velocity field as the result of upwelling of water from intermediate depths (~ 300 m). Both the magnitude and rate of change of temperature and salinity decreased away from the shelf break toward the center of the carron. Based on CTD data and moored current meter measurements from the central canyon region, peak and mean rates of ascent of isohalines of 0.5 cm s⁻¹ and 0.2 cm s⁻¹ were found for the initial phase of the event. The geostrophic current at 5 dbar relative to 200 dbar exhibited reduced speeds, but remained southwestward over the central axis during the upwelling event. At the same time, however, a 10 cm s⁻¹ current in the opposite direction was measured at 167 m depth. This counter current was also present in a vertical profile of geostrophic velocity at the mooring location as a 4.4 cm st flow centered at 130 m.

Because the phase speed of a long surface wave is much greater than that of a long Interfacial wave, and the current reversal of June 8preceded upwelling by about 1 d. the current reversal waspeptialned as the transient, barotropic response to a sudden sea-surface depression caused by meteorological forcing. The possible effect of the Labrador Current on shelt break upwelling was studied by extending the usual linear, two-layer coastal model scheme (e.g. Gill 1982, pp. 403 - 408) by adding a coastally trapped upper-layer-lay. This Introduces a non-linéar

- 140 -

term which arises from the cross-stream, advection of streamwise momentum by wind-induced motion. Cross-stope velocities in each layer were reduced compared to the case when no jet is present. A final expression for the interfacial deformation indicated a 26% reduction of upwelling at the coast and an enhancement of upwelling at greater distances off-shore due to the presence of the jet. The suppression of upwelling was traced to a 25% increase in the value of the internal Rossby deformation radius?

7.2 Conclusions

Investigation of the circulation in submarine canyons is a recent development in physical oceanography. This is the first study of any of the eastern, Grand Bank canyons. The dynamics at Carson Canyon are different from those of other canyons discussed in the literature because of the presence of the Labrador Current. This current is a narrow 50 cm (s⁻¹) at trapped at the shelf break and continental slope which flows across the canyon with shallow water on_the right, and so isopycnals slope downward toward the shelf. Transport in the bottom Ekman layer is expected to be off-shelf.

The mean flow interaction with the canyon changes with off-shelf distance due to changes in stratification, and due to an abrupt reduction of the radii of gurvature of the isobaths seaward of the decondary head on the upstream side of the canyon. Hortcontal divergence and steady upwellling at the secondary head are hypothesized, and may account for the observed upcanyon residual near-bottom flow. An alternate explanation based on the Mayer et al. (1982) and Freeland and Denman (1982) models is given, and illustrates the importance of the direction of the oross flow above the canyon relative to the direction of Marcreaning axial

- 141 -

depth.

A wind-induced upwelling or within Carson Canyon was amplified at the shell break and on the downstream side. It is not known to what extent the effects were localized to the canyon. However, model results indicate that the Labrador Current inhibits wind-induced upwelling at the shell break outside canyon regions.

The results indicate that topographically controlled upwelling may occur at the secondary head, wind-driven, upwelling occurs near the shelf break at the canyon, and that this latter type of upwelling may be suppressed by the Labrador Cuirtent outside canyon regions. These processes affect the local circulation and cross-slope material fluxes, which are expected to be important to problems related to biological production and environmental problems related to the oil industry.

Future studies at Carson Canyon should be based on better navigation than has been available, and should include measurements of local winds. CTD surveys should be more closely spaced to resolve the cross-stream velocity structure and should be uninterrupted and repeated to reduce tidal aliasing, and more and longer term current measurements both in the vertical and in the near and far field are required.

- 143 -

Armi, L. and R. C. Millard, Jr. (1976) The bottom boundary layer of the deep ocean. Journal of Geophysical Research, 81, 4983-4990.

Baines, P. G. (1983) Tidal motion in submarine canyons-a laboratory experiment. Journal of Physical Oceanography, 13, 310-328.

Batchelor, G. K. (1967) An Introduction to fluid dynamics. Cambridge University Press, 615 pp.

Bennett, (1976) Conversion of in situ measurements of conductivity to salinity. Deep-Sea Research, 23A, 157-165.

Blanton, J. O., L. P. Atkinson, L. J. Pietrafesa and T. N. Lee (1981). The intrusion of Gulf Stream water across the continental shell due to "topographically-induced upwelling. Deep-Sea. Research. 28A. 393-405."

*Cannon, G. A. (1972) Wind effects on currents observed in Juan De Fuca , Submarine Canyon. Journal of Phylical Oceanography, 2, 281-285.

Coachman, L. K. and C. A. Barnes (1962) Surace water in the Eurasian. Basin of the Arctic Ocean. Arctic. 15. 251-277.

Csanady, G. T. (1982) Circulation in the coastal ocean. D. Reidel Publishing Co., 279 pp.

DeYoung, B. (1983) Deep-water exchange in Fortune Bay Newfoundland. M. Sc. Thesis, Memorial University. St. John's, Newfoundland, 146 pp.

Forrester, W. D. and J. R. Benoit (1981) Physical deeanography of waters over the Grand Banks of Newfoundiand. Prepared for Mobil Oil Canada Ltd., confidential (unpublished) manuscript. 81 pp.

Freeland, H. J. and K. L. Denman (1982) A topographically controlled upwelling center off southern Vancouver Island, Journal of Marine * Research, 40, 1069-1093.

Glil, A. E. (1982) Atmosphere-ocean dynamics. In: International Geophysics Series, Vol. 30, William L. Donn. editor. Academic Press, 682 pp.

Godin, G. (1972) The analysis of tides. University of Toronto Press, 264 pp.

Gordon, R. L. (1982) Internal modes in a submarine canyon. Journal of Geophysical Research, 87C, 582-584. Hayes, R. M. (1984) On the flow through Flemish Pass. Unpublished manuscript, 27 pp.

Hayes, S. P. and D. Halpern (1976) Variability of the semidiurnal internal tide during coastal upwelling. Memoires Societe Royal des Sciences de Liege. 6 serie, tome X, 175-186.

Hildebrand, F. B. (1962) Advanced Calculus for Applications. Prentice-Hall of Canada, Ltd., 646 pp.

Hill, H. W.; P. G. W. Jones, J. W. Ramster and A. R. Folkard (1973) A note of the Labrador and Atlantic Currents to the east of Newfoundland Grand Bank. ICNAF resource Document 73/116 (Serial No. 3082), 34 pp.

Hogg, N. G. (1980) Effects of bottom topography on ocean currents. GARP Publication Series, 23, 167-205.

- Hotchkiss, F. S. and C. Wunsch (1982) Internal waves in Hudson-Canyon with possible geological implications. Deep-Sea Research. *29A, 415-442.
- Hsueh: Y. (1980) On the theory of deep flow in the Hudson Shelf Valley. Journal of Geophysical Research. 85C, 4913-4918.
- Huthnance, J. M. (1981) Waves and currents near the continental shelf edge. Progress in Oceanography, 10, 193-228.
- Inman, D. L., C. E. Nordstrom and R. E. Flick (1976) Currents in submarine canyons: An air-sea-land interaction. Annual Review of Fluid Mechanics. 8, 275-310.
- Janowitz, G. S. and L. J. Pietrafesa (1980) A model and observations of time-dependent upwelling overthe mid-shelf and slope. Journal of Physical Oceanography, 10, 1574-1583.
- Johnson, J. A. and Killworth P.D. (1975) A bottom current along the shelf break. Journal of Physical Oceanography, 5, 185-188.
- Kanasewich, E. R. (1975) Time sequence analysis in geophysics... The University of Alberta Press, 364 pp.
- Keenan, P. V. (1979) Sourcea of compass error within the Aanderaa recording current meter: revised 1979. Bedford Institute of Oceanography Report Series B1-R-73-6, 70 pp.

Keenan, P. V. (1981) Aandepaa recording current meter compass error caused by mooring system components. Bedford Metitute of Oceanography Report Series B1-R-81-6, 27 pp. Kill worth, P. D. (1978) Coastal upwelling and Kelvin waves with small longshore topography. Journal of Physical Oceanography. 8, 188-205.

Knauss, J. A. (1978) Introduction to physical oceanography. Prentice Hall of Canada Ltd., 328 pp.

- Kudio, B.P., V.P. Boystov (1978) Dynamics and salinity of waters in the Newfoundiand area in 1978-77. Internal Communication of the Northwest Atlantic Fisheries". Redbook 1972. Part III.
- Kudlo, B. P., V. V. Burmakin, and U. S. Sterkhov (1979) (Geostrophic circulation of the Northwest Atlantic waters according to long-term dates. Internal Communication of the Northwest Atlantic Fisheries Resources Document No. 5489.
- Lill, C. C. (1979) Upwelling over the shelf break. Journal of Physical Oceanography, 9, 1044-1047.
- Mayer, D. A., H. O. Moljeld and K. D. Leeman (1981) Near-Inertial Internal waves observed on the outer shell. In the Middle Atlantic Bight In the wake of hurricane Belle, Journal of Physical Oceanography. 11, 87-108.
- Mayer, D. A., G. C. Han and D. V. Hansen (1982) Circulation in the Hudson Shell Valley: MESA physical oceanographic studies in New York Bight, 1. Journal of Geophysical Research, 87C, 9583-9578.

Mountain, D. G., L. K. Coachman and Knut Aagaard (1978) On the flow through Barrow Canyon. Journal of Geophysical Research, 85C, 4097-4100.

Mountain, D. G. (1980) Direct measurements in the Labrador Current. Journal of Geophysical Research, 85C, 4097-4100.

Neumann, G. and W. J. Plerson, Jr. (1966) Principles of physical oceanography. Prentice-Hall, 545 pp.

Niller, P. P. (1969) On the Ekman divergence in an oceanic jet. Journal of Geophysical Research, 74, 7048-7052.

Pedlosky, J. (1979) Geophysical fluid dynamics, Springer-Verlag, 624 pp.

Petfley, M. B. and J. J. O'Brien (1976) A three-dimensional simulation of coastal upwelling off Oregon. Journal of Physical Oceanography. 6, 164-180.

Petrie, B. (1982) Aspects of the circulation on the Newfoundiand Continental Shell. Canadian Technical Report of Hydrography and Ocean Sciences, No. 11. 78 pp. Petrie., B. and C. Anderson (1983) Circulation on the Newfoundland Continental Shelf. Atmosphere-Ocean, 21, 207-226.

Reid, J. L. and A. W. Mantyla (1976) The effect of the geostrophic Flow upon coastal sea elevations in the Northern North Pacific Ocean. Journel of Geophysical Research. 81, 3100-3110.

Robe, R. Q. (1975) Circulation East of the Grand Banks, 1973. ICNAF resource Document 73/116 (Serial No. 3082), 7 pp.

Seaconsult, Marine Research Ltd. (1978) Analysis of ocean currents. Flemish Pass. 1603 - 740 West Pender St., Vancouver, Canada, V6C-288, 164 pp.

Scoble, Lt. R. W. (1975) International Ice Patrol Operations 1972 - Why so many icebergs. ICNAF resource Document 77718 (Serial No. 3082). 34 pp.

Shaffer, G. (1976) A Mesoscale Study of Coastal Upwelling Variability off NW-Africa. Meteor Forschungsergebnisse A, 17, 21-72, 23

Stommel, H. (1965) The Gulf Stream. University of California Press. 248 pp.

Smith, R. B. (1979) The Influence of mountains on the atmosphere. Advances in Geophysics. 21, 87-230.

Smith, E. H., F. M. Soule and O, Mosby (1937) The Marion and General Greene expeditions to Davis Strait and Labrador Sea. Bulletin of the U.S. Coast Guard, No. 19. 259 pp.

Stansell, T. A. (1978) The transit navigation satellite system. Magnayox Co.¹, 83 pp.

Wajters. R. A. and C. Heston (1982) Removing tidal-period varitations from time-series data using low-pass digital filters. Journal of Physical Oceanography. 12, 112-115.

Wang, D-P. (1980) Diffraction of continental shelf waves by irregular alongshore geometry. Journal of Physical Oceanography, 10, 1187-1199.

-	147 -

Appendix A

TABLE A1: Statistics for the 1980 current meters

-	SOUTHWESTERN			N	ORTHE	DRTHEASTERN		
COMPONENT	MIN	MAX	MEAN	σ	MIN	MAX	MEAN	σ
((cm/s)		1.0		1				
Despiked .	-15.8	26.1	3.7	8.3	-20.1	32.6	3.9	7.9
FLP	-13.9	22.1	3.8	8.1	-18.3	25.6	. 3.9	7.6
SLP	. 2.0	6.4	4.2	1.2	0.7	9.2	4.4	. 2. 1
BP	-13.5	17.8	0.2	7.7	-18.8	16.1	-0.1	6.8
J (cm/s)				- 1971 C. 4				
Despiked	-0.1	36:3	18.2	7.7	-1.7	40.9	19.0	8.3
FLP	3.9	34.8	18.3	7.6	1.1	38.5	18.9	8.1
SLP	.9.8	24.1	16.8	4.5	12.5	26.0	19.0	4.4
BP	-9.7	12:8	-0.1	4.7	-11.6	13.3	0.1	6.2
T (°C)	A						1. 1. 1	
Despiked	-0.96	-0.02	-0.59	0.21				
FLP	-0.96	-0.06	-0.59	0.21				
SLP	-0.71	-0.38	-0.54	0.10		3	12	
BP	-0.28	+0.43	0.00	0.15	0			1

1980 Tables

Τ,

148 -

Appendix A

ABLE	A2:	CTD	Cast	Information	for	June.	1980	

Station	Time/Date	Latitude ,	Longitude	Depth of
Number	GMT/June	deg. min.N	deg min.W	Cast (m)
- Ï	0528/4	45 40.00	48 40.00	85
2	0654/4	45 36, 22	48 35, 10	86
3	2110/1	45 33 00	48 33 50	129
4	2252/1	45 29 12	49 26 16	490
5	0045/2	45.25 02	48 21 45	591
6	0218/2	45 21 98	40 16 60	509
7	1640/2	45 21.00	40 16 79	400
	1619/0	45 21.25	40 10.73	499
ě	2930/4	45 20 61	40 20.40	309
30	2319/4	45 30.01	48 38.19	380
10	1000/1	45 20.97	40 02.21	370
	20	45 29.	40 30.	500
	nourly.	- · · ·	a 141	
20	Casis .	45 07 00	40 00 75	. 400
12	0000/3	45 27.00	40, 30, 75	. 499
10	0352/0	45 27.50	48 37.82	500
14	1/05/4	45 23.49	48 33.79	502
10	0829/2	45 23.26	48 33.94	504
16	223112	45 22.88	48.33.71	499
1/A	2110/2	45 19.10.	48 29.12	501
17B	1635/3	45 19.92	48 29.33	502
18	0358/2	45 16.18	48 24.25	498
19	1810/2	45 16.12	48 24:73	501
20	0400/4	45 35.00	48 48.00	85
21	005945	45 .32.56	48 46.50	127
22	1249/1	45 31.50	48 44.89	179
23A	0250/3	45.37.26	48 43.45	252
23B	0013/5	45 31.18	48 43.31	243
24	2235/4	45 27.52	48 38.96	405
25 0	1835/4	45 25.34	48. 37.77	402
26	1805/5	45 22.05	48 36.56	500
27	0600/2	45 15.76	48 29.61	500
28	0204/5	45 28.08	48. 44. 96	126
29	0143/6	45 24.86	48 43.22	152
30	0240/5	45 23.72	48 42:44	280
31	1935/5	45 23.79	48 40.37	412
32	0034/6	45 23. 30	48 41.01	389
. 33	1547/4 .	45 19.87	48 37.94	502
34	0148/4	45 30.05	48 55 98	66
35	0010/4	45 26.00	48 51.50	79
36	2335/5	45 22.44	48 47 51	104
37	2306/3	45 22 50	48 46 70	131
38	2112/3	45 18.53	48 42 20	399
39	1927/3	45 15 07	48 37 21	499
40	1751/3	45 11 20	48 32 68	400
		10 11.20	10 02.00	-700

1980 Figures

Appendix .



FIGURE A1: Despiked time-series of direction, rate and the U and V components of velocity for the 1980 northeastern meter (mooring 80-2)





FIGURE A3: Despiked I and J velocity components for the 1980 northeastern (mooring 80-2), top, and southwestern meter (mooring 80-1), bottom.

٩











FIGURE A7: BP time-series of the U (+ eastward) and V (+ northward) components of velocity for the 1980 southwestern meter (mooring 80-1) -(top) and the 1980 northessiern meter (mooring 80-2) -(bottom)











FIGURE A11: Tidal heights from Hibernia for June, 1980

- 160 -Appendix B

COMPONENT	MINIMUM	MAXIMUM	MEAN	σ
((cm/s)	*			
Despiked	-28.2	18.2	0.3	5.9
FIP	-25 4	14.9	0.9	5 7
OLD.	2 -7 4	A 0	0.0	3.4
50	10.0	0.0	0.2	0.4
	-10.3	10.8	A. U	3.9
J (Cm/s)	00 F			10.0
Despiked	-20.5	. 41. 5	6.3	10.6
FUP	-19.2	39.8	5.4	. 10. 5
SLP .	-9.4	25.8	6.7	-8.6
BP .	-11.7	15.7	0.1	5.6
T (°C)				· · · · · ·
Despiked	-0.85	1.93	0,00	0.95
FLP.	-0.83	1.93	0.00	0.95
SLP -	-0.79	1.79	0.10	0.94
BP	* -0.76	-0.40	0.00	0.14
S (ppt)		그는 가장 가 있어	19 C 1	
Despiked	33.02	34.26	33.45	0.40
FIP	33.03	34 21	33 45	0.39
SIP	33.07	34 16	33 49	0.39
00	-0.20	.0.10	0.01	0.00
OF.	-0,30	0.19	0.01 /	0.00
	the second second	100 TO 100 TO 100		
TABLE BID: SI	atistics for the 1	981 central axis upp	er meter	<u></u>
COMPONENT	MINIMUM	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM	MEAN	σ
COMPONENT	MINIMUM	MAXIMUM	MEAN	<u> </u>
COMPONENT	MINIMUM -23, 7	1981 central axis upp MAXIMUM	MEAN	<u>σ</u> 9.8
COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked	-23.7 -22.8	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27. 7 26. 9	1.1	σ 9.8 9.7
COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP	-23.7 -22.8 -12.7	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27.7 26.9 12.0	MEAN	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5
COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP BP	Atistics for the 1 MINIMUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27.7 26.9 12.0 17.4	1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1	9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3
I (cm/s) Despiked FLP BP J (cm/s)	-23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27.7 26.9 12.0 17.4	1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0.	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3
I (cm/s) COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP BP J (cm/s), Despiked	Atistics for the 1 MINIMUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27.7 26.9 12.0 17.4	MEAN 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0 4.2	9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3
I (cm/s) COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP BP J (cm/s) Despiked FLP	Atistics for the 1 MINIMUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -23.1	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27.7 26.9 12.0 17.4 28.1 28.1 28.7	er meter* MEAN 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0. 4.2	9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2
I COMPONENT I Com/s) Despiked FLP BP BP J Com/s), Despiked FLP SLP	atistics for the MINNUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -21.1 -21.6	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27. 7 26. 9 12. 0 17. 4 28. 1 28. 7	er meter* MEAN 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0. 4.2 4.2	9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1
TABLE BIB: SI COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP BP J (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP SLP SLP	iatistics for the 1 MINIMUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -21.1 -15.6	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27. 7 26. 9 12. 0 17. 4 28. 1 28. 7 16. 1 19. 1	inf inf 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 0	9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9
TABLE BIB: SI COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP BP J (cm/s). Despiked FLP SLP BP	iatistics_for the 1 MINIMUM 0 -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -21.1 -15.6 -14.3	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27. 7 26. 9 12. 0 17. 4 28. 1 28. 7 16. 1 17. 1	er meter* MEAN 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0 4.2 4.2 3.8* 0.0	9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9 5.0
TABLE BIB: SI COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP BP J (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP BP T (c)	iatistics, for the 1 MINIMUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -21.1 -15.6 -14.3	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 27.7 26.9 12.0 17.4 28.1 28.7 18.1 17.1	er meter* MEAN 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0 4.2 4.2 3.8 0.0	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9 5.0
(ABLE BIB: S) COMPONENT i (cm/s) Despiked FLP BP J (cm/s) Despiked FLP BP BP T (c) Despiked	iatistics, for the 1 MINIMUM 0 -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -21.1 -15.6 -14.3 -0.44	981 central axis upp MAXIMUM 1 27.7 28.9 12.0 17.4 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 16.1 17.1 1.81	er meter* MEAN 1, 1 1, 1 1, 1 1, 1 1, 1 0, 0 4, 2 4, 2 4, 2 4, 2 3, 8 0, 0 0, 38	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9 5.0 0.58
(ABLE BIB: S) COMPONENT i (cm/s) Despiked FLP BP J (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP BP T (c) Despiked FLP	iatistics, for the -1 MINIMUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -22.8 -12.7 -13.5 -23.2 -21.1 -15.6 -14.3 -0.44 -0.42	1 27.7 28.9 12.0 12.0 17.4 28.1 28.7 28.1 18.1 17.1 1.81 1.77 1.81	ier meter MEAN 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 0.0 0.38	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9 5.0 0.58 0.58
COMPONENT COMPONENT Component	Atistics for the 1 MINIMUM -23.7 -22.0 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -21.1 -15.6 -14.3 -0.44 -0.42 -0.26	1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.7 16.1 17.4 16.1 17.1 1.81 1.77 1.43 3.3	Here meter MEAN 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0 4.2 4.2 3.6 0.0 0.38 0.38 0.49 0.49	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9 5.0 0.58 0.58 0.55
TABLE BID: SI COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP SLP SLP BP T (cm/s) Despiked FLP SLP SLP SLP SLP SLP	aitstics for the 1 MINNUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -21.1 -15.6 -14.3 -0.42 -0.28 -0.28	1 28.1 28.7 7 28.9 12.0 17.4 28.1 28.7 16.1 17.1 1.81 1.77 1.43 0.53 3.3	Her meter MEAN	σ 9,8- 9,7 5,5 7,3 11,2 11,1 9,9 5,0 0,58 0,58 0,58 0,55 0,18
(AGLE BID: S) COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despikad FLP BP J (cm/s) Despikad FLP BP T (cm) Despikad FLP SLP BP T (cm) Despikad FLP SLP SLP SLP SLP SLP SLP SLP SLP SLP S	aitstics for the 1 MINNUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -18.5 -23.2 -15.6 -14.3 -0.42 -0.42 -0.58	281 central axis upp MAXIMUM 2 28.7 28.9 12.0 17.4 28.1 28.1 28.7 18.1 17.1 18.1 1.77 1.43 0.53 3	Hear Hear 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 0.0 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 0.0 0.38 0.38 0.43 0.00	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9 5.0 0.58 0.58 0.55 0.18
(ABLE BID: S) COMPONENT I (cm/s) Despiked FLP J (cm/s). Despiked FLP SLP BP T (c) Despiked FLP SLP BP SLP BP S (ppt). Despiked	Alistics for the 1 MiNNMUM -23.7 -22.8 -12.7 -12.7 -13.6 -14.3 -0.44 -0.44 -0.26 -0.26 -0.28 33.16	181 central arts upp MAXIMUM 1 27.7 26.9 28.9 12.0 17.4 1 28.1 28.7 18.1 17.1 1.81 1.77 1.43 0.53 34.34 34	Here Meter MEAN	σ 9.8 9.7 5.5 7.3 11.2 11.1 9.9 5.0 0.58 0.55 0.18 0.26

34. 34 34. 29 34. 18 0. 22

33. 33.35 33.43 -0.24

SLP BP 0 33.70 33.71 33.73 0.00

0.26 0.25 0.24 0.08

TABLE BIC:	Statistics for	the 1	1981 c	entral	axis	lower	meter		
COMPONENT	MINIM	JM		MIXAM	UM,	_	MEAN		σ
1 (cm/s)									
Despiked	-17.2	-		20. 1			-0.4		5.4
FLP	-16.5	i .		16.2			-0.4		5.2
SLP	-3.3			3.0			-0.3		1.8
BP	-16.2	1		13.6			.0.0		4.6
J (cm/s)							-		
Despiked	-9.8	1		9.3			-0.4		2.5
FLP	-8.2			7.0			-0.3 -		2.2
SLP *	-1.8			1.1			-0.3		0.8
BP	-4.5	5		6.2			0.0		1.9
T (°C)		-							
Despiked	3.2	8		3.6	6		3.57		0.09
FLP	3.3	0		3.6	6 :		3.58		0. 09
SLP	. 3.4	5		3.6	6		3.58		0.07
BP	-0.1	4 .		0.0	9		-0.00		0: 02
S (ppt)	· · · ·							-	
Despiked .	34.7	9		34. 9	9	· · ·	34.90		0.03
FLP	34.8	2		34. 9	6		34.90		0. 02
SLP	34.8	7 .	- Y	34. 9	2 .		34.89		0. 02
BP	-0.0	15		0.0	6	• , •	0.01		0: 02

TABLE Bld: Statistics for the 1981 northeastern meter

COMPONENT	MINIMUM	MAXIMUM	MEAN	σ
1 (cm/s)	· 2 · ·			
Despiked .	-37.4	21.4	-4.7	11.6
FLP	-36.0	20.5	-4:7	11.4
SLP	-16.7	12.8	-4.7	6.9
BP	-21.8	20.0	0.1	8.3
J (cm/s)				
Despiked	-21.5	. 24.8	-1.3	7.2
FLP	-19.6	22. 1	-1.4	6. 9
SLP	-8.2	3.7.	-1.2	3.0
8P	-13.9	19.3	-0.1	6.0
T (*C)			-	1000
Despiked.	-0.88	1.78	-0.02	0:80
FLP	-0.86	1. 73	-0.02	.0. 80
SLP	0.72	1.40	0.06	0.75
BP	-1, 10	0.90	. 0.00	0. 30
S (ppt)			·	
Despiked .	33.06	34.31	. 33. 53	0.35
FLP	33.12	34. 28	* 33.53	0. 35
SLP	. 33.21	34. 13	33.56	0. 32
RP	-0.49	0.36	0.00	. 0. 13

1981 Tables

- 162 -

Station	Time/Date	Latitude	Longitude	Depth of	
Number	GMT/June	degree N	degree W	Cast(m)	
1A	1256/10	45* 3593'	48* 48.5		
1В	1600/11	45", 35. 3'	48* 48.5'	75	
2A .	1519/10	45* 31.4	48 43.3'	180	
28	1447/11	45* 31.7	48° 43.5'	22	
81-2	1354/6	45* 29.0'	48° 40.0	500	
	1544/11	45* 27. 3	48* 38.3'	300	
-4	1643/11	45" 21-6"	48* 36.2'	500	

Table B2: CTD cast information tor June, 1981


.



8.5







central axis upper, and central axis lower meters,

10 ga 11









1

art i i









S. 16.1



axis upper, and central axis lower meters.

1 -









axis upper, and central axis lower meters,



















FIGURE B25: Tidal beights from Hibernia for June, 1981

APPENDIX C THE INTERIOR SOLUTION FOR THE LOWER LAYER

The solution to the differential equation 6.34 (reproduced below from Chapter 6) for the lower layer, cross-slope interior velocity is derived in this appendix using Jacobi poynomials and the method of Frobenius.

$$\left[1+\frac{\hat{\pi}'_{0}}{hL^{2}}(L-\gamma)^{2}\right]\mathbf{v}'_{yy}-\left[\frac{t^{2}}{\sigma'h}+\frac{2}{hL^{2}}\frac{\pi'_{0}}{hL^{2}}\right]\mathbf{v}'=\frac{-\tau t}{\rho Dhg'},$$
(6.34)

is to be rewritten using the following substitutions:

$$\begin{aligned} \theta_{n} &= \frac{\hat{\eta}'_{0}}{h} & (G, I) \\ \xi &= \left[\overline{\theta_{n}} & \left[1 - \frac{y}{L} \right] \right] & (G, 2) \\ \frac{d\xi}{dy} &= \frac{1}{\frac{1}{L}} & (G, 3a) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left[\overline{\theta_{n}} \right]_{n}}{L} & (G, 3b) \\ \frac{d}{dy} &= \frac{-\left$$

The choice for L was made in Chapter 6 such that,

$$L^{l} = 3 a = \frac{3}{f} \left[g' \frac{hh^{2}}{h+h'} = 3 \frac{\sqrt{g'h}}{T} \quad \text{for } h' >> h \right]$$
(C.4)

4 F (

Therefore, the result for y'(E) using (C.1) - (C.4) is,

$$\frac{a_{s}}{L^{2}}\left(\widehat{\mathbb{I}}+\varepsilon^{2}\right) \mathbf{v}'_{\xi\xi} = -\frac{t^{2}}{\sigma'h} \left[1+\frac{2}{9}a_{s}\right] \mathbf{v}' = \frac{-\tau t}{\rho Dhg}, \tag{C.5}$$

The right hand side of equation C 5 is set = 0, and the following substitue

tion

$$\begin{aligned} -189 - & Appendix C \\ b_x &= (9 + 2a_x) & (G. 6) \\ \text{is introduced to give the homogeneous equation for the interior.} \\ (1+e^2) & \lim_{g \in G} - \frac{b_x}{a_x} & (g. 6) \\ (1+e^2) & \lim_{g \in G} - \frac{b_x}{a_x} & (g. 7) \\ (1-e^2) & \lim_{g \in G} - \frac{b_x}{a_$$

ţ

1

TABLE	C. 1:	Param	eters	determining	a,
n		N	1		÷.
1	() () () () () () () () () ()	1	5		
2		6		0.9	
3		15 .		0.32	3.00
24		56		¢ .Q. 08	

A thickness for the upper layer of h = 100 m and the depth for the interface of $\hat{\pi}_0 = 90$ m below h are suggested by the structure of the S3.4 - 33.8 ppt isohalans in the central axis salinity section (Figure 48, 11) and by the 100 m depth of the shelf break which seems to be a natural <u>dholog</u> to h, The near equivalence of $\hat{\pi}$ and h in the 1980 central axis salinity section clearly suggests the choice of 0.9 for a, by Table C.1. (Gill 1982, p. 404, suggests h = 100m for the "no-jet" model.) The locar low are latermined in Chapter 8.

(6.8) Is used here to relate the speed of the shelf break jet to \mathbf{a}_{x} . By (6.33) of Chapter 6, $\pi_{0y}^{*} = -2\frac{\pi_{0}^{*}}{L}\left[1-\frac{Y}{L}\right]$, and so, the maximum speed of the jet at y = 0 is.

(6.8)

(C. 13)

 $u_0(y=0) = 2 \frac{g^{,\eta} \cdot 0}{f L}$

u0 = -0' n'0

By substituting $L = 3 \times \frac{\overline{\sigma'h}}{T}$ (e.g., equation C.4)⁹, a final result is obtained,

 $u_{0}(y=0) = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime}} - \frac{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime}}{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \frac{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime}}{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \frac{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}}{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \frac{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}}{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \frac{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}}{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \frac{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}}{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \frac{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}}{\overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^{\prime \prime \prime}} - \overline{\eta}_{1}^{\prime \prime}} \right] = \frac{2}{3} \left[\overline{\sigma_{1}^$

With $h = 10^5 \text{ cm} (\hat{\pi}'_0) = 9 \times 10^4 \text{ cm}$ and $g' = 0.49 \text{ cm} \text{ s}^{-2} (g' \text{ is given})$

-Appendix C

by equation 6.7 with $\Delta \rho = 5 \times 10^{-4}$ by Table 5.1). then, $u_0^{-}(y=0) = 42 \text{ cm s}^{-1}$. Therefore, the value of 48 cm s $^{-1}$ which was defermined by geosfrophic calculations in section 3.6 of Chapter 3 for the velocity axis of the Labrador Current agrees reasonably well with $u_0^{-}(y=0)$ calculated here for $a_1 = 0.9$.

Returning now to equation G_{1} 10, the solution for $n = 2\begin{bmatrix} u_{x} \\ e_{x} \end{bmatrix} = 6$ is the second order Jacobi polynomial given by (Hildebrand 1962, p. 184). $J_{n=2}\left[\frac{1}{2}, \frac{-1}{2}, -x\right] = 1 + 6x + 5x^{2}$ i $x \in 1$ (C. 15e)

or. in terms of y by (C.2) and (C.8) as.

 $= J_2 \left[\frac{1}{2^2 - 2} - a_x \left[1 - \frac{y}{L} \right]^2 \right] = 1 - 8a_x \left[1 - \frac{y}{L} \right]^2 + 8a_x^2 \left[1 - \frac{y}{L} \right]^4 \quad (C. 15b)$

 $(1+\epsilon^2) v'_{\epsilon\epsilon} + \frac{1}{\epsilon^2}(-12\epsilon^2) v' = 0$. (C. 18)

The assumption that $\mathbf{v}^{\star} = \sum_{k=Q}^{\infty} \mathbf{A}_{k} \mathbf{\xi}^{k+3}$ is introduced into the last relation

resulting in the following condition.

$$= \hat{a}(a-1)A_{0}e^{b-2} + \hat{a}(a+1)A_{1}e^{a-1}K_{0}$$

$$+ [(a+1)(a+2)A_{2} - 12A_{0}]e^{a-1}$$

$$+ [(a+1)(a+2)A_{2} - 12A_{0}]e^{a+1} - 12[a_{0}]e^{a+k-2}$$

· Recursion relations for the A's are found for s = 0 by setting the coefficlents to each of the terms in ξ equal to zero. A and A are set equal to unity. The A_k for $k \ge 6$ and k even go to zero. There are two Independent solutions depending on whether k is even or odd. These two solutions are.

Appendix C

(C. 18b)

 $A_1 = A_0 + A_2 \xi^2 + A_4 \xi^4$ (C. 18a) $v_{2}^{i} \neq A_{1} + A_{3} + A_{5} + A_{5} + A_{7} +$

The polynomial coefficients A, have been determined, and are given below In Table C.2a up to n = 15, for n odd. The values: $A_n = 1$, $A_{p_i} = 6$. $A_4 = 5$, and $A_{n \ge 6} = 0$ (for even n), are the same as the coefficients of $J_{0}\left[\frac{1}{2},\frac{-1}{2},-x\right]$

The fact det lim & < lim [a,]* = 0 insures that the nth order term of the polynomial converges to zero. A maximum error of 0.5% is introduced by setting the coefficients > $A_{11} = 0$ (Table C. 2a). Also shown in Table C. 2a and b are the first and second derivatives of the polynomial (not including constant factors of L). Note that both these series co verge as well.

•	A, .	-E/	A . E" (y	=0)	- Σ n=2	A	P. 2"	-1 (y=0	0)
1.	1		0.94868	. *		-(94868		
3	2		2.6563		1	-6	3.07157		
5	0.6		3.1174			-8	3. 37687		
7	-0. 11429		3.0383			-	. 82358		
11 .	-0 025974		3.0680			_	09034		
13	0.016317		3.0616			-	03723	1	
15	-0.011189		3.0566			-7	. 96107		
		*	1						
					×			s -	
n	C.2b: The C.1	the su 16b at	$\sum_{n=3}^{n}$	$\xi = \sqrt{0}$	_derivati 9). -1) a,	νe ter ε ⁿ⁻² (y=0)	oltaupe	
n 3 5	C. 2b: The C. 1 A _n	the su 16b at	$\sum_{n=3}^{2} \frac{1}{n}$	$\xi = \sqrt{0}.$	-1) a,	ε ⁿ⁻² (248	ms for (y=0)	equation	
7ABLE 7 3 5 7	C.2b: The C.1 A _n 2 0.6 -0.11429	the su 16b at	$\frac{y}{y} = 0$ ($\sum_{n=3}^{\infty}$	$\frac{second}{\xi} = \sqrt{0}.$	-1) a 10.2 19.4 10.2 19.4 15.7	ε ⁿ⁻² (246 167 778	y=0)	equation	
n 3 5 7 9	C.2b: The C.1 An 2 0.6 -0.11429 0.047619	the su 16b at	$\sum_{n=3}^{2}$	$\frac{second}{\xi} = \sqrt{0}.$	-1) a -1) a -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1)	ε ⁿ⁻² (246 467 778 912	y=0)	equation	-
n 3 5 7 9 11	C. 2b: The C. 1 A 0.6 -0.11429 -0.025974	the su 16b at	$\sum_{n=3}^{n}$	$second \varepsilon = \sqrt{0}.A_n n c_n$	-1) a, -1) a, 10.2 19.4 15.7 17.9 16.3	xe ter ε ⁿ⁻² (246 467 778 912 312	y=0)	equation	
7 3 5 7 9 11 13	C.2b: The C.1 A 0.6 -0.11429 0.047619 -0.025974 0.016317 -0.016317	the su 16b at	$\frac{y = 0}{n=3}$	$second \varepsilon = \sqrt{0}.A_n n c_n$	-1) a, -1) a, -1) a, -1) -1) -1 -1) -1 -1 -1) -1 -1 -1) -1 -1 -1) -1 -1 -1) -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -1 -	xe ter ε ⁿ⁻² (246 467 778 312 595 595	y=0)	equation	
ABLE A 3 5 7 9 11 13 15	C. 2b: The C. 1 A 0.6 -0.11429 0.011429 -0.025974 0.016317 -0.011199	the su 16b at	$\sum_{n=3}^{2} \sum_{n=3}^{2}$	$second \xi = \sqrt{0}.A_n n c_n$	-1) a -1) -1) a -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1) -1)	xe ter \$\$^n-2}(246 167 778 912 312 595 529	ms for (y=0)	equation	
7ABLE 9 11 13 15	C. 2b: The C. 1 A n 2 0.6 -0.11429 0.047619 -0.025974 0.016317 -0.011189	the su 16b at	$\sum_{n=3}^{n}$	$\frac{1}{\xi} = \sqrt{0}.$	l derivati 9). -1) a, 19.4 15.7 17.5 16.5 17.5 16.5	xe ter ε ⁿ⁻² (248 467 778 912 312 595 529	y=0)	equation	
ABLE A 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 N	C. 2b: The C. 1 A _n 2 0.6 -0.11429 0.047619 -0.02597 -0.01189 ow. the part	the su 16b at	um of the r = 0 (e second $\xi = \sqrt{0}$. A _n n (n	-1) a, -1) a, -1) a, -1) a, -1, -1, -1, -1, -1, -1, -1, -1	<pre>xe ter xe t</pre>	ms for (y=0) nd simp	ly by t	akin
ABLE 7 9 11 13 15 N	C. 2b: The C. 1 A C. 1 C. 1 C. 1 C. 1 C. 1 C. 1 C. 1 C. 1	the su 16b at	um of the y = 0 ($\xi = \sqrt{0}$. $A_n n (n)$ for the	-1) a, -1) a, 10.2 19.4 15.7 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5	ve ter ξ^{n-2} (248 467 778 912 912 912 955 529 1s four	ms for (y=0) nd simp	ly by t	akin
ABLE 7 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 N	C. 2b: The C. 2b: The C. A_n A_n 0.6 -0.11429 0.047619 -0.025974 -0.01189 ow. the part = 0 in (C. 5)	the su 16b at	um of the y = 0 ($b = \frac{1}{\xi} = \sqrt{0}$ $A_n = n \ln n$ for the	1_derivati 9). -1) a, 19.4 15.7 17.5 16.5 16.5	ve ter ξ^{n-2} (248 467 778 312 595 529 15 four	ms for (y=0)	ly by t	akin
ABLE A 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 N * * *	C. 2b: The C. 2b: The C. 1 A_{a} 0.6 -0.11429 0.047619 -0.025974 0.016317 -0.01189 cow. the part = 0 in (C, 5) $\frac{7}{7}$ 1 $\frac{1}{7}$	the su lob at ticular	um of the y = 0 (∑ n=3 solution 0 ≤ y =	$\frac{1}{\xi} = \sqrt{0}.$ $A_n n (n)$ for the.	L derivati 9). -1) a, 19.4 15.7 17.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5	ve ter ϵ^{n-2} (248 467 778 312 595 529 1s four	ms for (y=0)	ly by t	akin
n 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 N * E E	C. 2b: The C. 1 An 2 0.6 -0.11429 0.047619 0.0476	the su lob at ticular	um of the $y = 0$ () $\sum_{n=3}^{\infty}$ solution $0 \le y$	$\frac{1}{\xi} = \sqrt{0}$ $A_n n \ln n$ for the	-1) a, -1) a, 19.4 19.4 19.4 19.4 19.4 19.4 19.5 16.2 17.5 16.5 17.5 16.5	xe ter \$\$n-2 (\$ 246 167 778 312 312 312 3595 529 1s four	ms for (y=0)	ly by t	akin
n 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 N (<i>£</i> £ <i>£</i> <i>£</i> <i>£</i>	C. 2b: The C. 2b: C. 2	the su lib at	arm of the y = 0 ($\sum_{n=3}^{\infty}$ solution $0 \le y$	$\frac{1}{\xi} = \sqrt{0}.$ $A_n n (n)$ for the	-1) a, -1) a, -1) a, -1) -1) -1 -1) -1 -1] -	<pre>ve ter \$ n -2 48 467 778 12 595 529 15 foun 1</pre>	ms for (y=0)	ly by t	a akin

•

Appendix v' in = Bv' + Cv' + v' $v'_{in} = B(1 + 6\xi^2 + 5\xi^4)$ (C. 20) + $C(\xi + 2\xi^3 + 0.6\xi^5 - 0.11429\xi^7 + 0.047619\xi^9) + \frac{5\tau}{6\rho tD}$ for D 4 y, where A, B, and C are integration constants. These constants will now be determined. Since $y'_{in} = 0$ and $\xi = \sqrt{0.9}$ at y = 0. V' (y=0) = 0 = 10.45B + 3.06797C + 5 T (C. 21) The exterior solution was found earlier in Chapter 6 here for convenience. $v'_{ex} = A e^{-y/a} + \frac{T}{ptD}$ At y = L = 3a. (6.36) is. $v'_{ex} = Ae^{-3} + \frac{\tau}{\alpha D}$ (C. 22) Therefore, at y = L, v'_III = B + $\frac{5}{6\rho fD}$ by (C.20) matches (C.22) and $B = A e^{-3} + \frac{1}{600} \frac{\tau}{10}$ (C. 23) The y derivatives of v'_{in} and v'_{ex} must be continuous because η' is also continuous and $\pi'_t = \frac{\partial v'}{\partial y}$ by equations 6.18 and 6.21 of Chapter 6. Setting $\frac{dv'_{in}}{dv} = \frac{dv'_{ex}}{dv}$ at y = L; equations 6.36 and C.20 give. C = A -3 or, since L = 3a $C = \frac{3A}{6}e^{-3}$

195 -Appendix C Equation 2,23 for B and (C. 24) for C are substituted In (C. 21) to $A = -2.566 \frac{\tau}{\rho t \rho}$ (C. 25 From (C. 23) and (C. 25) . 0.2335 T 6 pfD From equation C. 24 (or equation C. 21), $C = \frac{-2.424}{6} \frac{\tau}{ofD}$ (C. 27 Therefore, (6.36) and (C.25) yield the exterior solution, $y'_{ex} = \frac{T}{O(D)} \left[1 - 2.566 e^{-y/8} \right]$ YZL (C. 28) and by (C. 20). (C. 26) and (C. 27) the interior solution is. $v'_{III} = \frac{\tau}{\rho I D 6} \left[0.2335(1 + 6\xi^2 + 5\xi^4) \right]$ - 2.424 (E + 2E³ + 0.6E⁵ - 0.11429E⁷ + 0.047619E⁹) + 5 where $\xi = \left[\overline{a_x} \left(1 - \frac{y}{L} \right], L = 3a$ and $a = \left[\frac{g'h}{f} \right]$.






